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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of REXLot Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and joint ventures are principally engaged in lottery
system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

JOINT VENTURES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures and principal subsidiaries
are set out in Notes 19 and 47 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 82 to 231.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group (including the
Kingsail Group and Sinodata Group as defined in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) had additions of approximately
HK$14,888,000 (2016: approximately HK$25,683,000) to property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s operations. Details of
movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2017,
calculated under Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), amounted to approximately HK$437,522,000 (2016:
approximately HK$355,955,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 232.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 28 June 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) which, unless otherwise terminated, will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 28 June 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives and/or rewards for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

According to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the
eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme to subscribe for
such number of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted
should be accepted within 30 days from the date of the letter of
grant. Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Subject to the
terms of the 2012 Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the
power to determine the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, which
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(i) the nominal value of a share.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the
limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
Options previously granted under any share option schemes of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will not be

counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
such grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders in general meeting at which the relevant eligible
participant and his associates abstained from voting. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors or
any of their respective associates in any 12-month period in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant or
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The 2012 Scheme
will expire on 28 June 2022.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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The following table discloses details of the movements in the share TREEREHEZE T —+F+_A=T—HLEFER
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year ended 31 BT -——FHERECEREZHFE-
December 2017.

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of price per  Exercisable
Category of participant 2017 the year the year the year 2017 grant share  period
RZB-+tF
R-B—tF +=A BR
SEATES —-A—H ERRH ERTRE FREK =t-B RiHBH THE &S
HKS
BT
Directors/substantial shareholder
EE/FERE
Chan How Chung, Victor 5,000,000 B - B 5,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
RER 28/09/2018
Boo Chun Lon 5,000,000 B - B 5,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
RigE 28/09/2018
Yuen Wai Ho 5,000,000 B - B 5,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
RS 28/09/2018
Chow Siu Ngor 5,000,000 B - B 5,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
BNE 28/09/2018
Lee Ka Lun 5,000,000 B - B 5,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
T 28/09/2018
Employees 285,000,000 B - B 285,000,000  29/09/2016 0.1082 29/09/2016 -
& 28/09/2018
Total
@ 310,000,000 - - - 310,000,000
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As a result of the Rights Issue (as defined in the section headed
"Rights Issue” in this report), the exercise price of the outstanding
share options has been adjusted from HK$0.1082 per share to
HK$0.1068 per share and the number of shares issuable upon
exercise of the outstanding share options has been adjusted from
310,000,000 to 313,949,090. As at the date of this report, the
total number of shares available for issue upon exercise of the
options outstanding under 2012 scheme was 313,949,090 shares
(representing approximately 2.09% of the shares in issue as at the
date of this report).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the financial
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Yuen Wai Ho shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Lee Ka Lun shall retire
by rotation in accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws and shall
not offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company is identifying suitable candidate to fill the
above vacancy. Announcement will be made by the Company in this
regard when appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

(i)

On 4 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as supplemented and amended) (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with Sunjet Investments Limited (the
“Purchaser”), in relation to, among other things, the sale and
purchase of the entire issued share capital of Multi Glory Limited
Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor (“Mr. Chan"),
a Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, is

(the "Disposal”).

also a director of the Purchaser and its controlling shareholder.
In consideration of the Purchaser entering into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, on 2 August 2016, the Company executed
a deed of guarantee pursuant to which the Company agreed
to guarantee in favor of the Purchaser the due performance
and observance by the seller of all its obligations under or
pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement. The Disposal
was completed in February 2017. The Purchaser has withheld
HK$350,000,000 pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement
for tax payments if the PRC tax authority makes additional
demands.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2017, Kingly Profits Corporation (“Kingly Profits”)
has agreed and undertaken to the Company, among other
things, to (a) provide a valid block voting instruction in favor
of the relevant extraordinary resolution in relation to the 4.5%
convertible bonds due 2019 (the “2019 Bonds”); and (b) that
its holding of the 2019 Bonds that are subject to the 3rd
anniversary put option notice would not need to be repaid:
(i) until the aggregate outstanding principal amount, together
with any accrued but unpaid interest thereon, of the Put Bonds
(as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 29
March 2016) and the 6% convertible bonds originally due
2016 and extended to 2017 (the “2017 Bonds”) have been
repaid in full; and (ii) unless the 2019 Bonds held by other
bondholders that have given 3rd anniversary put option notices,
if any, are being repaid in full at the same time. Kingly Profits
also agreed to grant an unsecured shareholder’'s loan to the
Company in an amount equivalent to its entitlement under the
partial repayment in respect of the 2019 Bonds. Accordingly,
an unsecured shareholder’s loan in the principal amount of
approximately HK$133,583,000 with an interest rate equal to
the coupon rate of the 2019 Bonds has been granted by Kingly
Profits to the Company with an initial term of one year for the
Company'’s general working capital. Kingly Profits is indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Chan, who is also its director.
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

On 2 August 2016, Mega Market Assets Limited (“Mega
Market”) provided an interest-free unsecured loan to the
Company in an amount of approximately HK$357,867,000 (the
“Mega Market Loan"), which was due for repayment upon
completion of the Disposal, to finance the Company’s partial
redemption of the convertible bonds. Mega Market is directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Chan, who is also its director. The Mega
Market Loan has been repaid in February 2017 upon completion
of the Disposal.

During the year, Kingly Profits continued to provide interest-
free unsecured and repayment on demand loans to the
Company for the Company's general working capital. As at 31
December 2017, the outstanding principal amount of loans were
approximately HK$279,194,000.

In April 2017, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with Keen Start Limited (“Keen Start”)
for the proposed subscription of shares and convertible
bonds by Keen Start (the “Subscription Agreement”). As the
conditions to the completion of the transaction contemplated
under the Subscription Agreement have not been fully satisfied,
the Company and Keen Start have agreed to terminate the
Subscription Agreement and the related undertaking has been
released and discharged. Keen Start is indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Chan, who is also its director.

In November 2017, the Company entered into the underwriting
agreement (as supplemented and amended) (the “Underwriting
Agreement”) with, among others, Keen Start in relation to the
Rights Issue. Mr. Chan, Keen Start and Kingly Profits have given
irrevocable undertaking in relation to the subscription for the
Rights Shares (as defined in the section headed “Rights Issue”
in this report). The Rights Issue has been completed in March
2018.
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(vii) In November 2017, the Company entered into the conditional
agreement (as supplemented and amended) with Keen Start for
the proposed subscription of convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$167,500,000 by Keen Start (the “CB Subscription
Agreement”).

(viii) During the year, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries (the "PRC
Subsidiaries”) had the following transactions with a PRC
entity (the "PRC Entity”) indirectly controlled by Mr. Chan: (1)
processing fees for machineries and equipment in the amount
of HK$960,000 was charged to one of the PRC Subsidiaries; (2)
one of the PRC Subsidiaries sold parts to the PRC Entity for the
consideration of HK$18,000; and (3) the PRC Entity advanced
interest-free unsecured and repayable on demand loans in the
amount of HK$13,475,000 to the PRC Subsidiaries for operation
under ordinary course of business.

Particulars of Directors’ interest in other transactions are also set out
in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions” in this Directors’ Report.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,
arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company’s subsidiaries or any of its holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the

EENBETRAEZER
R-ZZF—tF+-_A=+—"R EZRKERTERAER
PA R 1% 5 27 B B N0 AR 2 R Sl H (AT AR B O B 2 AR
- HERDIEBSFTEECHEARTREZSFR
HEGD (TBFRBEGRD]) E32GEFEZS
MEZRALIAR  ABRBE LT ETAZESETES
ZHMBESTR ([BEFE ] EMAGEARA LB
FretEmsoRR T

RAQXRASREABEIOIELEER (TRH) REEAR

“Shares”) and underlying Shares in the Company BEE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Number of underlying issued share capital

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total of the Company

HERTRE

EEpng BELE FERHEE FERERO YA 5t BRED T

Chan How Chung, Victor Interest of controlled 4,442,412,782 2,942,230,289 7,384,643,071 73.64%
REHE corporation/beneficial (Note 1) (Notel)
owner (Hrt1) (HaE1)

R ARSI A AR
BEREBA

Boo Chun Lon Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
Rk B BRBEAA (Note 2)
(Hiz2)

Yuen Wai Ho Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
e BRBEAA (Note 2)
(Hiz2)

Chow Siu Ngor Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
FNE BEaEEA (Note 2)
(Hiz2)

Lee Ka Lun Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
ZRB BRBEAA (Note 2)
(Hiz2)
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Chan is taken to be interested in (i) 1,187,640,997 Shares held by,
593,820,498 Shares to be taken up, and up to 2,200,000,000 Shares to
be underwritten by Keen Start and (ii) 307,300,858 Shares held by and
153,650,429 Shares to be taken up by Kingly Profits. Each of Keen Start
and Kingly Profits is wholly-owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which in
turn, is wholly-owned by Mr. Chan. Mr. Chan is a director of Keen Start,
Kingly Profits and Smart Ease Corporation.

Mr. Chan is beneficially interested in 5,000,000 underlying Shares to be
derived from the share options granted by the Company on 29 September
2016. Keen Start agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$167,500,000 (the "New CB") at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.067 per Share in accordance with
the terms of the CB Subscription Agreement. Keen Start also agreed to
purchase certain bonds, details of which are set out in the section headed
“The Offer” in this report. Accordingly, Mr. Chan is also deemed to be
interested in, through Keen Start, 437,230,289 underlying Shares to be
derived from conversion of the 2017 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds at their
respective applicable conversion price, and 2,500,000,000 underlying
Shares to be derived from conversion of the New CB at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.067 per Shares.

(2)  The underlying Shares to be derived from the share options granted under
the 2012 Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review, the
Directors or chief executives had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the 2012 Scheme as disclosed in the “Share Options”
and the convertible bonds as disclosed in the “The 2017 and 2019
Convertible Bonds”, “Subscription Agreement in relation to New
Shares and New Bonds” and “CB Subscription Agreement in relation
to New CB"” set out in this Directors’ Report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year ended
31 December 2017.
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ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in this Directors’ report, at no time during the year
under review was the Company, its holding companies, its fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Chan is a director and deemed to be the substantial shareholder
of RPI Finance Limited (“RPI”). RPI is principally engaged in the
money lending business. The terms and conditions of the financing
loans of RPI are market driven and agreed at arm’s length between
the borrowers and the financiers. When making decisions on the
money lending business of the Group, the relevant director, in the
performance of his duty as a director of the Company, has acted and
will continue to act in the best commercial interest of the Group.

Mr. Chan is a director and deemed to be the substantial shareholder
of FIYNIT BLEEIEFEMBMR AT (Shenzhen Sinodata Technology
Co. Ltd.*) (“Sinodata”). Sinodata and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Sinodata Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of design and provision of lottery systems
and equipment for lottery in the PRC for traditional Welfare Computer
Ticket Games operations. Apart from Mr. Chan, the other members
of the board of directors of Sinodata do not overlap with the
members of the Board. The day-to-day business operations, financial
management and administration of Sinodata are responsible by a
management team consists of full time senior officers of Sinodata,
and reports to the board of directors of Sinodata. Mr. Chan has
confirmed that he does not involve in the daily operations of Sinodata
Group. When making decisions on its lottery business, the Group
has been operating independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
business of Sinodata, and is able to ensure that the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole will be adequately represented.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as the
Directors were aware, none of the Directors and his respective close
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

1 4 REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that every Director or other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in
relation thereto.

A permitted indemnity provision that meets the requirements
specified in section 469(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) for the benefits of the Directors is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 47 to 48 of this report.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report (continued)
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ARAAETR SRESREMRRBE L AELK
FRANTRESAZBBZBE UL AS SR ATAE
AEEARTZAARM KA BR - BB -BELH
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BRIERERNERNER ARARHERESTZNE B
HadE (RBED) ($£622F ) F469(2)1KFIB 2
HE 2 EERTH R B R

EESRSREEARRE

EEREREBABREERERNARE F4TER
48H -

FTERRERS

RIZ—tFT_A=Z+—B RARFAREZFK
HEGRMEIHRATEZELMME - ToI575 (kK
ARBEZHRSTHAEIN) RAR B A KA
iRz BESOARMT

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares in the Company REARBRGREBEARG ZHFR
Number of
Number of underlying Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total issued share capital
RREB/ M2 BENE FsRo8E FisEBRL 8 A @t HERTRABAL
Smart Ease Corporation Interest of controlled 4,442,412,782 2,937,230,289 7,379,643,071 73.59%
corporation (Notes A and B)
REH D AEE (H##ARB)
Keen Start Beneficial owner 3,981,461,495 2,937,230,289 6,918,691,784 68.99%
ExBEEA (Note A)
(HfzA)
Kingly Profits Beneficial owner 460,951,287 - 460,951,287 4.60%
ExBEEA (Note B)
(HfstB)
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Notes:

A. These Shares and underlying Shares are held by Keen Start as beneficial
owner. Keen Start is wholly-owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which
in turn, is wholly-owned by Mr. Chan. The interest disclosed herein was
included in the interest of Mr. Chan as disclosed in the section headed
“Interests of Directors and Chief Executives” in this report.

B. These Shares are held by Kingly Profits as beneficial owner. Kingly Profits
is wholly-owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which in turn, is wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan. The interest disclosed herein was included in the
interest of Mr. Chan as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of
Directors and Chief Executives” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares of the

Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Sale and Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, as detailed in this report, constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the transactions are set out in the circulars of the Company dated
29 February 2016 and 30 September 2016.

The CB Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, as detailed in this report, constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the transactions are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 November 2017, 29 January 2018 and 21 March 2018.

The subscription of the 2019 Bonds by Kingly Profits, as detailed in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute a non-exempt connected

transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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All the shareholders’ loans made by Kingly Profits to the Company,
the loans advanced by the PRC Entity to the subsidiaries of the
Company and the Mega Market Loan as disclosed in section headed
“Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts” in this report were fully exempted connected transactions

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 29 March
2017, during the year, the Company paid the consent fees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$131,000 to Kingly Profits
in relation to the 2019 Bonds. The payment of the consent fee to
Kingly Profits was regarded as a connected transaction under the
Listing Rules, which was not subject to the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Kingly Profits and Keen
Start agreed to take up their respective pro rata entitlement of Rights
Shares. Keen Start agreed to take up additional Rights Shares in the
capacity of an underwriter. The allotment of Rights Shares to Kingly
Profits and Keen Start was regarded as a fully exempted connected
transaction under the Listing Rules. In addition, pursuant to the
Underwriting Agreement, the Company would pay an underwriting
commission to Keen Start, which amount shall not in any event
exceed HK$3,000,000. The payment of the underwriting commission
to Keen Start was regarded as a connected transaction under the
Listing Rules, which was not subject to the independent Shareholders’

approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, processing fees for machineries and equipment in the
amount of HK$960,000 was charged to one of the PRC Subsidiaries
by a PRC Entity indirectly controlled by Mr. Chan. Meanwhile, one
of the PRC Subsidiaries made sales of parts to the PRC Entity for the
consideration of HK$18,000. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, considered that the above transactions were
on normal commercial terms and the applicable percentage ratios
for each of the above transactions are less than 5% and the total
consideration are less than HK$3,000,000. As such the transactions
were regarded as a fully exempted connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Particulars of other transactions and balances with related parties of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, the other transactions with related parties
did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BANK BORROWING
Details of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and

marketing of lottery products in China.

The Chinese lottery market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group's lottery business can be broadly divided into System
and Games Development Business (“SGDB") and Distribution and
Marketing Business (“DMB"”). Revenue of the lottery business
accounted for 100% of the Group's total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$402,305,000, representing
a decrease of 67.87% over the same period last year (2016:
approximately HK$1,252,144,000). The Group recorded a loss before
taxation of approximately HK$520,355,000 (2016: approximately
HK$416,091,000).
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The decrease in revenue in the year reflected a macro driven sales
decline in parts of the Chinese lottery market, multifaceted challenges
faced by the Group in the industry and an one-off impact related to
the restructuring of the Group’s SGDB. The Group's core operations
continued to experience strong pressure from the unfavorable
operating environment, especially in scratch cards market where
the effect of marketing efforts did not live up to expectations. With
no meaningful progress made in the development of paperless
lottery during the year under review, uncertainties in the regulatory
environment continued to hinder the Group from benefiting its
solid infrastructure in paperless lottery operations. In particular, the

operations of mobile lottery business was adversely affected.

There were a number of one time events that impacted the
Group’s revenue and earnings in 2017. In February 2017, the
Group completed the restructuring of SGDB and the disposal of its
subsidiaries operating in the traditional Welfare Computer Ticket
Games ("CTG") market. As a result, there was a substantial decrease
in the Group's revenue as the revenue of the Sinodata Group was not
consolidated into the Group's consolidated account after completion
of the Disposal. In addition, loss on disposal of subsidiaries after
taxation of approximately HK$49,910,000 was recorded in relation
to the Disposal. Furthermore, as required by applicable accounting
standards, impairments on goodwill of a total of approximately
HK$301,283,000 and an impairment of an investment of
approximately HK$67,617,000 were recorded for the year under
review. The impairments on goodwill were made in relation to the
Group's business units engaged in the provision of Sports CTG
equipment, Welfare Scratch Cards printing and Sports VLT to reflect
the lower value in the assets of these business units, which was due
to the continued decline in revenue attributable to a slowdown in
Sports CTG equipment replacement cycle, keen competition among
industry players and the unfavorable operating environment in scratch
cards and Sports VLT markets. The impairment of approximately
HK$67,617,000 was made in relation to the Group's investment

engaged in paperless lottery operations.

Despite challenges in the lottery market, the Group made progress
towards its long-term strategy to improve and transform the
Group's business portfolio. In light of the uncertainties in regulatory
development and increased competition in the lottery market, the
Group commenced evaluation of various investment opportunities
to alleviate these challenges and seize new opportunities to deliver
shareholder value.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgeHE (&)

REENRARDRREEDFEZETEHNHEERTR
BERZETHK ASEEHEAZ T EAOKE X
RASESHRGRBBRAZEEBHN —RETE - K
SENROEBNAEAIXRE TS RBERENEKRE
N REETISHEBERBRIIZEM RS &
MEXENERNEBEFARE T EERENTD
BEMBMBENASENBEREEERBEEERR
hEGZ-ET FREERXRBZECRITNZE-

CTEEFBRESZH-AEEHEEREEHKRA
PR - R_E—tHE - AEBEREHAEZGR
HEAERER THEECEEREVEKETEN
MEBAA -Ei AHEEFETHE  BLEENK
AT HEERNEEMOGEERBGAEAR SHASEEN
WARERD -BE EELEEEHEGEENEA
A HY PR B 1 B9 18 14949,910,00058 7T © 3 91 0 & B E A
S EAMBET REBEFAHSHEREATD
301,283,000/ 7t & % & # B 4167,617,0007% 7T ° i
BREDHRAEERERBEVEKERE BEA
FEORRESEEY SN EREMEL UK
BMZEBENHEEEBE NS MBBTRIIHNE
HEKEREESEERE ERABFR AR
FEBRBENEEEMBERRETSER  SWARE
BT - 467,617,000 7T 2 WA T3k 2N &£ @45
BEMALTREEMMEDL-

BEXET SRS AREREESE ARG
NI ASENEBEARITREE -AHEEER
MAEERERTSHHET AL NEEEHRT
BTIRRERGENZERB R RAERRBENE
P8 -

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+F4Ff

19



20

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

During the year under review, the Company announced proposed
fund raising plans (i.e. a Rights Issue which was completed in
March 2018 and a proposed CB Subscription), which would provide
an overall solution to the financing of the Group. Through the
proposed fund raising plans, the Company shall be able to raise
sufficient offshore funds to settle the Group’s current offshore
liabilities, including the 2017 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds (collectively,
the “Bonds”) and shareholder’s loans. Following the successful
completion of the Rights Issue, the CB Subscription is expected to
be completed in mid-May 2018, subject to obtaining shareholders’
approval at the special general meeting of the Company. The
Company believes that after the completion of the proposed fund
raising plans and repayment of the existing offshore liabilities, the
Company will be able to strengthen its capital structure and resume
its sound financial position, and will be poised to focus on growing its
business.

Chinese Lottery Market
Chinese lottery market registered total lottery sales of approximately
RMB426.7 billion in 2017, increased by 8% compared with 2016.

Total sales of Welfare Lottery was approximately RMB217.0 billion,
increased by 5% compared with 2016. Welfare CTG accounted for
about 73% of total Welfare Lottery sales; Welfare Scratch Cards was
about 6% and Video Lottery Terminals (“VLT") took about 21%.

Welfare CTG sales in 2017 was approximately RMB158.0 billion,
increased by 8%. Welfare Scratch Cards sales was approximately
RMB12.6 billion, down 15%. VLT sales increased 4% to approximately
RMB46.2 billion. Sales of Keno was approximately RMB180 million,

decreased 31%.

Total sales of Sports Lottery was approximately RMB209.7 billion.
Sports CTG accounted for about 94% of total Sports Lottery sales and
Sports Scratch Cards was about 6%.

Sales of Sports CTG, including Single Match Games (“SMG"),
increased by 13% to approximately RMB197.7 billion. Sports Scratch
Cards sales was approximately RMB12.0 billion, down by 12%. Total
sales of Sports VLT was approximately RMB7.9 million.
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System and Games Development Business

The Group’s SGDB is an active participant in the provision of lottery
system and specialized equipments for both CTG and scratch card
products in China. During the year under review, the Group’s SGDB
continued to actively participate in the upstream and mid-stream
lottery market by providing various lottery system and specialized

equipment for both Welfare and Sports lottery markets.

Welfare CTG Business

2017 was a transformational year for the Group’s SGDB. During
the year under review, the Group completed the restructuring of its
Welfare CTG business and disposed part of this operations which
covered the manufacturing and provision of Welfare CTG machines
and supporting system for traditional lottery market. After completion
of the Disposal in February 2017, operating results of the Sinodata
Group were no longer consolidated under the Group's Welfare CTG
business unit. As a result, performance of this unit was adversely
affected. After the completion of the Disposal, the Group focused
its business on the non-traditional market segment for Welfare CTG.
Despite the one-time impact on operating results resulting from the
restructuring, the Group is confident in the growth potential of the
non-traditional market given consumer preferences for relevant lottery
products in this particular market segment remains strong.

In 2017, market performance of the traditional Welfare CTG market
(national draw based games) remained stable while the non-
traditional market (regional and high frequency games) continued to
maintain a fast comparable growth. It is expected that market players
will put more focus and resources on the regional and high frequency
games market. In particular, the Group’s Welfare CTG business is
foreseen to experience strong competition from these players in the
market. Given the above development, maintaining or improving
the earnings performance of the Group's Welfare CTG business is
expected to become more challenging. The Group adopted a number
of important actions in the second half of 2017 to improve the
execution of the streamlined Welfare CTG business unit in preparation

for the competition ahead.

Welfare Scratch Cards Business

The Group is involved in the validation and printing business of
Welfare Scratch Cards in China. Total sales of Welfare Scratch Cards
in 2017 declined by 15% when compared with 2016. Performance of
the Group’s validation and printing operations were adversely affected
by the lackluster sales performance of Welfare Scratch Cards market.
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The Group has jointly controlled interests in a validation system and
specialized equipment provider which provide validation services for
the Welfare Scratch Cards market. During the year under review,
the Group rolled out relevant systems and equipment of validation
services to support the revitalisation initiatives taken by lottery
authorities. Meanwhile, the Group’s printing operations focused on
delivering various seasonal and thematic games to the market through
its cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing House.

Sports CTG Business

The Group’s Sports CTG business is engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of CTG/SMG terminals to provincial Sports Lottery Centres
across China serving the needs of traditional CTG segment and
supporting the development of SMG.

Replacement demand for new Sports CTG/SMG terminals has been
driven by the needs to modernize sales equipment in the physical
lottery distribution network. Despite the new tenders secured by
the Group, continued declines in revenue were recorded due to
a slowdown in equipment replacement cycle and keen market
competition over the years. Consequently, with a view to reduce
the ongoing operation cost of this business unit by streamlining its
operating structure, the Group has entered into a memorandum of
understanding to dispose a group of subsidiaries, the Kingsail Group.
While agreement has not been reached, the Group will continue
the negotiation with the third party under the memorandum of
understanding on this matter.

Distribution and Marketing Business

The Group’s DMB is a major participant in lottery distribution in
China.
platform which consists of a widely diversified and recognized

It has successfully established a comprehensive distribution

physical retail network and a portfolio of innovative and advanced
electronic lottery platforms.

The Group's downstream lottery operations pledge to provide reliable,
efficient and innovative lottery services to address the needs of end
consumers in lottery market and assist lottery authorities to promote
and develop the Chinese Lottery market in sustainable manner.
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During the year under review, the unsatisfactory sales performance
of the scratch cards market in China continued to hamper the
performance of the Group’s DMB. While the uncertainties in the
regulatory environment remain, the Company considers that paperless
lottery will present long term growth opportunities when it resumes.
The Group has reserved adequate financial resources so that it may
respond swiftly to the development opportunities in paperless lottery

once relevant regulations are formalized.

Scratch Cards Distribution Business

The Group’s scratch cards distribution business focuses on the
distribution and sales of scratch cards through a physical lottery
distribution network. This network comprises selective prime locations
that have diversified and recognized sales distribution channels.

In 2017, the aggregate sales of Welfare Scratch Cards and Sports
Scratch Cards in China was approximately RMB24.6 billion, decreased
by 14% as compared to 2016. Despite actions taken by the lottery
industry to reinvigorate the scratch cards market, the anticipated
improvements in overall scratch cards market did not materialize
during the year. The performance of the Group’s operations has been
adversely affected under this challenging environment. Additionally,
the Group experienced increased competition in this market
segment with the appearance of new market players. The increased
competition intensified market pressure against the backdrop of
macro headwinds in the scratch cards market. Although it is expected
that the operating environment in the 2018 may not experience
any notable improvements, the Group has been making progress to
improve its operation management in order to mitigate the negative

impacts created by the above impediments in the market.

Single Match Games Business

SMG achieved record-breaking sales in 2017 and reached another
new height of RMB80 billion, increased by 19% year over year. The
extraordinary performance of SMG was achieved despite the absence
of sizeable international soccer tournament comparable with the
UEFA European Championship in 2016. This clearly demonstrates
that the ongoing developments, such as increased options of game
play and enhanced prize payout, have successfully turned SMG into
a predominant lottery product in China enjoying wide support from
lottery players.
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The Group operates the SMG business through its physical retail
network since paperless electronic lottery distribution has been
suspended since early 2015. During the year under review, the
Group’s distribution network engaged customers with enhanced
marketing efforts to take advantage of the opportunities arising from
the rapid market growth.

While it is undeniable that the SMG has achieved a great success
through the physical distribution network, performance of SMG could
have been taken to the next level with the assistance of paperless
distribution channel. During the year under review, the Group
noticed that People.cn divested its investment in the company under
the Okooo platform. Despite that, the Group remains positive on
the long-term prospect of paperless distribution platform as when
the market is reopened, and will continue to reserve and invest
resources in paperless lottery platform to capture the future growth
opportunities.

Mobile Lottery Business and Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
The Group self developed a Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
(“Mobile ELP") for its mobile lottery business. The Mobile ELP offers
a multi-functional back-end system with convenience interface
to facilitate lottery distribution over mobile devices. Mobile ELP
was designed to improve the convenience of lottery purchase by
connecting players directly to the centralized system of provincial
lottery centre, enabling a safe and reliable lottery purchase
experience.

During the year under review, the regulatory environment for
operating Mobile ELP remained uncertain, as signified by the
suspension of a trial mobile operation in the market. Although the
Group's mobile lottery business has been brought to a halt by the
regulatory uncertainty, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about
its future and will continue to monitor market development closely
and review its business strategy during a challenging transition

period.

Sports Video Lottery

The Group has participated in Sports VLT operations in support of
Hainan Province’s local tourism development since 2015. Currently,
it offers four distinctive lottery games for local lottery consumers
and tourist in Hainan. Overall, sales of Sports VLT in the market
was unsatisfactory during the year under review, but the Group will
continue to play its part in fostering the development of this lottery
product and contributing the local lottery market.
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Outlook

During the year under review, the Group has been redoubling its
efforts to drive improvement in various areas of operations at a time
of strong headwinds in the lottery market. All the painstaking work
laid the foundation for the Group to overcome challenges in the
evolving lottery industry. Looking ahead to 2018, it is anticipated that
the Group's lottery business will continue to face a difficult operating
environment due to uncertainties in the regulatory framework,

particularly in the paperless lottery segment.

However, the Group still believes that paperless lottery will operate
under a transparent and well regulated model when it is relaunched
in the future. Whilst the PRC authorities have yet to announce the
schedule for formalizing paperless lottery regulations, the Group
expects paperless lottery to present long term growth opportunities
for the lottery industry and the Group. Our ability to stay competitive
in the industry and respond swiftly to relevant development holds the
key to future success. Therefore, retaining adequate resources in order
to swiftly respond to the development opportunities appear in the
lottery market once paperless lottery is formalized in the PRC will be
among the Group's top priorities.

It is a critical part of our core business strategy to support the lottery
authorities in modernizing the customer experience and staying
relevant to lottery consumers via different means. Being a leading
player in the lottery market, the Group has always been a desirable
partner of the lottery authorities since our growth priorities are
aligned with evolving consumer needs in the lottery market. Going
forward, the Group will continue to focus on growing and investing in

sectors where we believe we can drive long-term sustainable growth.

The Group's financial position is expected to improve substantially
after proposed fund raising plans have been completed and the
financial challenge posed by the Bonds redemption obligation has
been addressed. With that, the Group is confident of making further

progress underpinned by the exciting growth opportunities ahead.

With strengthened capital structure and sound financial position, the
Group not only will continue to strive to remain competitive in the
lottery market and seek to capture its future growth opportunities,
but also it will proactively looking for opportunities to diversify
its business portfolio in order to tapping into other potential

opportunities that can provide attractive returns on capital.
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The Group has tentative plans to diversify its business into the
computer gaming business and is actively searching for investment
opportunities in the entertainment business. Dedicated taskforce has
been commissioned to undertake an in-depth evaluation and strategic
review over these important strategic moves. In addition, in order to
further enhance the Group’s profile and finance capability, it intends
to introduce and establish strategic partnership with renowned
financial institutions, active discussion and negotiation are underway.

With the right vision in place, it is envisaged that the execution of
our ongoing strategies will allow the Group to weather through the
challenging environments and to resume healthy profitable growth

beyond.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$402,305,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,252,144,000), representing a decrease of 67.87% over
that of the last year. The decrease was resulted from the disposal
of subsidiaries in February 2017 and the continuing unfavorable
operating environment of the PRC lottery market since the second
half of 2016, especially in the scratch cards market and paperless

electronic lottery distribution market.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was approximately HK$704,265,000 (2016: approximately
HK$393,007,000). The loss per share was 6.93 HK cents (Adjusted
2016: 3.88 HK cent). Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are the same as the basic
loss per share as both the share options and the Bonds outstanding
during the years had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.
The basic and diluted loss per share for current and prior reporting
periods have been adjusted as a result of rights issue completed on
20 March 2018 as set out in Note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements. Cost of sales reduced as in line with revenue. However,
administrative expenses and selling expenses remained at similar level
as last year excluding Sinodata Group mainly due to general cost
increase in China and reposition of the Group’s business in light of
the challenging competitive landscape in the Chinese lottery market.

2 6 REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

AEEERAEEBIBRESKEREY LR
BYEREXZBHNRERG AKECZTEEE /)
Bt EERRMBEETRANGERER R -
BESN RE—TEBEEB R RE N AEEH S
AMBEHEBLRERTREBEHER REESR
EITR R LER -

AEEREREZERER ERABERE BHE
AEBRERN A FRABR BO@EEEMNE RN
E# -

Bt 7% [ B8

MRS

HE-_ZT—+t&E+ A=+ BLEE A4&H
815 W A 4402,305,0008 T (T —RFE: 4
1,252,144,000/ 7T) - WA F N #67.87% @2 Th
RERZZE—+F-_AHEWNBRR UERFEEE
mE AHRANFAEMSREMMCETFHER KNS
MEEREA T — "F T FRIFETSRAME -

AN B R IR R E G B 1B 40 /704,265,000 T (=
T — X 49393,007,0008 L) - F R E 1B A6.9378
il (ZZ—NELFAL:3.8881l) - AR FAEKIT
FErERERAESR ZSEFHEREAEIEL
ERBEYE MEE-_T—+tF+_A=+—H8BK
T AF+ AT ALFEZERBEEIE
BEREAEEBHAR ARERERZ=ZZE—N\F=A
Z+AER (WERE B HRERM 49T E) - B A TR
SHRBAREHCEREARBEEECEHE-
HERARBWARD R BEFHE -BREBELE
BN THREALKBEEBRARFY T Z2HNRPREE
BERALFA BEASERBEFRYEMSRFHEE
BT



A loss on disposal of subsidiaries after taxation of approximately
HK$49,910,000 was recorded.
in the net asset value of the Sinodata Group and the exchange

It was mainly due to the increase

difference created by the release of exchange reserve as at completion
of the Disposal. As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 30
September 2016, with reference to the terms of the Sales and
Purchase Agreement, the Group would not be entitled to the profit/
loss of the Sinodata Group after 1 January 2016. As a result, the net
asset value of the Sinodata Group increased as at completion of the

Disposal.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s total equity amounted to
approximately HK$4,942,084,000 as compared to approximately
HK$5,511,177,000 at the end of the previous year.

At 31 December 2017, the Group (including the assets of the
disposal group classified as held for sale) had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$1,841,419,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,237,048,000).

The decrease in cash and bank balance was mainly due to the net
cash outflow for operating activities and partial repayment of the
Bonds.

In 2011 and 2012, the Company issued the 2017 Bonds in principal
amount of HK$964,700,000 and HK$429,000,000 respectively. Each
2017 Bond is convertible into fully paid Shares at the applicable
conversion price of HK$0.5600 per Share as at 31 December 2017.
The 2017 Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum payable
semi-annually in arrears. During the year under review, there was no
conversion of the 2017 Bonds into Shares by the bondholders. On 29
March 2017, the Company made a partial payment of all the 2017
Bonds for the principal amount of HK$154,823,091.06. As at 31
December 2017, the principal amount of the 2017 Bonds remaining
outstanding was HK$100,906,642.86 (2016: HK$255,729,733.92).

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

EME AR 2T & B H4 /849,910,000 7T - &=
BRLEEEEFELANRR SR EEEE
KREXFEAEEZELZE -HOA AT B H
=— ﬂihﬂf+EZLm%ﬁ"'%%§§%
EZBRR O AEEGEEREZEILERN T —RF
*ﬂ*E?éZiﬁT’i%‘/!ﬁEﬂE"lﬁt’/u\%%@b”s\&j%%
BREKRBZEEFEGRM A

hEaEs MBEERRBME
R-TBE—+tE+-_A=+—B KA&EBz2EZR
WBERH) B4,942,084,0008 0 EFFRAND A
5,511,177,0005% 7T °

RZTE—+tF+_A=1+—RH FEB(BEIEA
FEREZHEEARNZEE) HER e RIRITTHEKRL
1,841,419,000/%8 7T ( = Z — /N4 : £2,237,048,000
BT e

BERBITERB L T EZHNEERBIRER

= R
MEEIH D ZEESFME -

RB——FRN T ARBBTALED
5 /964,700,000 7T % 429,000,000/ 7T 7 = =
—t+tEBEEF BN T LtFEBEHFARN-_Z—+
F+-ZA=+—HB2zHEAEKRESTR0.5600% T
BAERG —T—LtFEHFRFERRE L FIE
;ﬁHéiﬁlﬂaksiﬁom@@%m'wﬁ%a%hﬁ/\
BTt FEFERARG R —EF=A
AR ARBERFAE_E—tFEEIMNED
N4 %154,823,091.06 8 L - R_E—+tF+=A
=St+-—B HMAEEZ-_Z—tFBEHFZASES
100,906,642.86/8 7 ( =& — ;N4 : 255,729,733.92
HBIT) e

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+44F4f

27



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (&)

In 2014, the Company issued the 2019 Bonds in principal amount
of HK$1,900,000,000. Each 2019 Bond is convertible into fully paid
Shares at the applicable conversion price of HK$1.3700 per Share
as at 31 December 2017. The 2019 Bonds bear interest at the rate
of 4.5% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. During the
year under review, there was no conversion of the 2019 Bonds into
Shares by the bondholders. On 29 March 2017, the Company made
a partial payment of all the 2019 Bonds for the principal amount of
HK$846,027,772.50. As at 31 December 2017, the principal amount
of the 2019 Bonds outstanding was HK$551,402,486.50 (2016:
HK$1,397,430,259).

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 was 13.31% (2016:
32.36%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the total
borrowings including the Bonds, obligation under finance leases
and bank borrowing of approximately HK$657,671,000 (2016:
approximately HK$1,783,405,000 (includes those classified as part
of liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale)) by the
amount of total equity. The liquidity ratio of the Group, represented
by a ratio between current assets over current liabilities, was 458%
(2016: 260%), reflecting adequacy of financial resources. The liquidity
ratio increased mainly due to the partial payment of the Bonds during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of approximately
HK$5,362,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$142,357,000), of which bank borrowings of HK$Nil (2016:
approximately HK$137,456,000) was loaned to the Sinodata Group.
As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings were denominated
in Renminbi and interest bearing at prevailing commercial lending
rates. The Group's trade receivables were pledged to secure the bank

borrowings.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present

operational requirements.

Impairment Loss on Goodwill

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made a
provision of approximately HK$301,283,000 (2016: approximately
HK$226,319,000) and HK$Nil (2016: approximately HK$58,823,000)
for impairment losses on goodwill and intangible assets respectively.
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The impairment loss on goodwill recognized for year ended
31 December 2017 was in respect of three business units: (i)
approximately HK$185,505,000 for the business unit engaged in
lottery machine production; (ii) approximately HK$108,826,000
for the business unit engaged in scratch cards printing; and (iii)
approximately HK$6,952,000 for the business unit engaged in the
provision of Sports video lottery terminals and related services.

According to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36, an impairment
loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of a business unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use.

Impairment in relation to lottery machine production business
unit

The overall operating environment of the market for lottery machine
production has been worsening since 2016. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2017, the performance of this business unit
was unsatisfactory due to the continuous slowdown in equipment
replacement cycle, keen market competition and strong pricing
pressure. This business unit recorded a decline in total number of
units sold, average unit price and profit margins during the year under

review.

The Company engaged an independent valuer to prepare a
valuation of this business unit. The independent valuer determined
the recoverable amount by calculating the value in use of this
business unit based on the budget prepared and approved by the
management, applying the discounted cash flow valuation method. It
applied a pre-tax discount rate of 17.8% per annum and the terminal
value growth rate of 3%.

For the purposes of the valuation, the management prepared financial
budgets for 2018 to 2023 based on (i) the market conditions and
performance of this business unit in 2017 and (ii) the expected
market trend. Due to the difficult operating environment in 2017, the
projected cash flow forecasted to be generated from this business
unit was lower than that forecasted in previous years and this in turn
affected the recoverable amount of this business unit. The Company
recognized full impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$185,505,000.
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Impairment in relation to scratch cards printing business unit
The national Welfare Scratch Cards sales dropped for the third year
in a row in 2017. The year-on-year decrease in national Welfare
Scratch Cards sales further widened from 8.4% in 2016 to 15.3% in
2017. National Welfare Scratch Cards sales in 2017 had decreased
by approximately RMB3.65 billion compared to that in 2015. The
performance of the Group’s scratch cards printing business unit was
affected by the unsatisfactory performance of the national Welfare
Scratch Cards market.

In the impairment review on goodwill attributable to this business
unit, the Company engaged an independent valuer to prepare a
valuation of this business unit. The independent valuer calculated the
value in use of this business unit based on the budget prepared and
approved by the management, applying the discounted cash flow
method. It applied a pre-tax discount rate of 22.24% per annum.

The management prepared a financial budget for this business unit
for nine years, up to 2026 as the Group has the printing contract
which is valid until 2026. As a result of the further deterioration of
the scratch cards market in 2017, the projected cashflow forecasted
to be generated from this business unit was lower than that
forecasted in previous years. This led to a decrease in the recoverable
amount. The Company recognized full impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$108,826,000 of this business unit.

Impairment in relation to Sports video lottery business unit

The Sports video lottery business unit commenced business in 2015,
and is engaged in the provision of Sports video lottery terminals and
related services.

The performance of this business unit did not grow as expected
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and recorded a
loss. This was due to the unfavorable operating environment of the
PRC lottery market since last year, the slowdown of the Sports video

lottery market and the increase in operating costs.

The Company considered these factors in the impairment review of
the goodwill attributable to this business unit and forecasted that
its performance would continue to be unsatisfactory in the coming
years. The Company considered that it is appropriate to recognize full
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$6,952,000 of this
business unit.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
HK$19,351,000 (2016: approximately HK$15,052,000) was pledged
to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Sinodata Group’s land and building
with total market value of approximately HK$118,667,000 was
pledged to banks to secure the bank borrowings granted to the
Sinodata Group.

Share Capital

There was no change in the Company’s share capital structure during
the year. As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued Shares
was 10,028,495,338.

Upon completion of the Rights Issue, 5,014,247,669 Rights Shares
were issued on 20 March 2018. The total number of issued Shares as
at the date hereof is 15,042,743,007.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate
Risk

The Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The exchange
rate of RMB fluctuated significantly in recent years, the Directors are
aware that the fluctuations in exchange rate between Hong Kong
dollar and Renminbi may give rise to potential foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy and will continue to monitor and evaluate the Group's foreign

currency exposure and take actions as appropriate.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as the interest rates currently remain
at low levels.

Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements of HK$Nil (2016: HK$Nil) for purchase of
property, plant and equipment and approximately HK$84,597,000
(2016: approximately HK$84,000,000) for increase in registered

capital of subsidiaries respectively.
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Contingent Liabilities

(a)

(b)

Contingent liability in respect of default under the Bonds
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
not fulfilled its redemption obligation of 2017 Bonds in the
principal amount of approximately HK$100,907,000 and the
redemption obligation of 2019 Bonds in the principal amount
of approximately HK$551,402,000 on 28 April 2017 and 31
May 2017 respectively. The amounts under the 2017 Bonds and
2019 Bonds have been outstanding since 28 April 2017 and
are currently due to be repaid to the holders of the Bonds (the
“Bondholders”). The trustee or the Bondholders through the
trustee may take legal actions against the Company in respect
of the outstanding Bonds. The Company does not expect the
possible courses of action to materially impact the Group, as
the Company has sufficient offshore financial resources to fulfill
repayment obligations under the outstanding Bonds.

As disclosed in the Company’'s announcements dated 19
November 2017, 6 December 2017, 29 January 2018, 19 March
2018 and 21 March 2018 and the Company’s prospectus dated
on 23 February 2018, in relation to, among other things, the
Rights Issue and the CB Subscription of the proposed fund
raising plans, upon completion of the proposed fund raising
plans, the Company expects it will fully repay the 2017 Bonds
and 2019 Bonds on or before 31 May 2018. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company do not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Company.

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, a subsidiary
of the Group has issued a corporate guarantee in respect of the
secured bank borrowing granted to a subsidiary of the Group
which will expire when the bank borrowing is repaid.

As at 31 December 2016, certain subsidiaries of the Group
have issued corporate guarantees in respect of the finance lease
obligation under a sales and leaseback arrangement granted to
a subsidiary of the Group which had expired when the lease is
terminated during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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The Group has not recognized any deferred income and the
related expenses in respect of such guarantees, as in the opinion
of the Directors, their fair values cannot be reliably measured
using observable market data and their transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against these
subsidiaries under any of the guarantees.

HUMAN RESOURCES
At 31 December 2017, the Group had 559 employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on the
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic
remuneration, discretionary bonus and share options may be granted
to eligible employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well

as the individual’s performance.

The Group will continue to place emphasis on staff training and
total quality management to better prepare its staff members for the
upcoming changes and challenges in the market and industry.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

In February 2017, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Multi Glory Limited and the assignment of
the entire amount owing from Multi Glory Limited to the Group,
at the cash consideration of HK$2,150,000,000. The net proceeds
from the Disposal was approximately HK$1,925,000,000. As at 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report, approximately
HK$975,000,000 has been used for partial redemption of the
outstanding Bonds and interest. The Purchaser has withheld
HK$350,000,000 pursuant to Sale and Purchase Agreement in order
to apply this amount to tax payments if the PRC tax authority makes
additional demands. Approximately HK$600,000,000 of the net
proceed from the Disposal remains unutilized. The Company intends
to apply the unutilized amount of the net proceeds from the Disposal

to redeem the outstanding Bonds in around end of May 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

THE PROPOSED FUND RAISING PLANS

Rights Issue

On 19 November 2017, the Company announced that it proposed
to raise not less than approximately HK$255,726,631 but not more
than approximately HK$276,741,792 before expense by way of a
rights issue, on the basis of 1 new rights share (the “Rights Share”)
for every 2 existing shares held on the record date at the subscription
price of HK$0.051 per Rights Shares payable in full on acceptance by
qualifying shareholders of the Company (the “Rights Issue”).

The Rights Issue has been completed and 5,014,247,669 Rights
Shares were issued and allotted on 20 March 2018. The gross
proceeds and net proceeds from the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$255,727,000 and HK$249,747,000 respectively. The net proceeds
will form part of the Group's offshore financial resources for the
repayment of the Group’'s existing offshore liabilities. Details of the
Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 19
November 2017, 6 December 2017, 29 January 2018 and 19 March
2018 and the Company’s prospectus dated 23 February 2018.

CB Subscription Agreement in relation to New CB

On 17 November 2017, the Company and Keen Start entered into a
conditional subscription agreement (as supplemented on 14 February
2018 and 21 March 2018) (the "CB Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue to Keen Start, and Keen Start has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$167,500,000 (the “New CB") at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.067 per Share (the "CB Subscription”). The aggregate
principal amount of the New CB is HK$167,500,000. The CB
Subscription constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules and is subject to the Company’s independent
shareholders’ approval. In order to allow sufficient authorized share
capital after completion of the CB Subscription, the Board has
proposed and will seek approval from the shareholders to increase
the authorized share capital of the Company from HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 Shares to HK$500,000,000 divided
into 50,000,000,000 Shares, by the creation of an additional
30,000,000,000 Shares which shall rank pari passu with the existing
Shares in all respects upon allotment and issue.
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As at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report, the CB
Subscription and the proposed increase in authorized share capital
have not yet been completed.

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT IN RELATION TO NEW
SHARES AND NEW BONDS

On 7 April 2017, the Company and Keen Start entered into a
conditional subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which, among other things, the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue to Keen Start, and Keen
Start has conditionally agreed to subscribe for (i) 1,900,000,000
new Shares at the subscription price of HK$0.134 per Share (the
“Share Subscription”) and (ii) the convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$348,000,000 (the “New Bonds”) at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.145 per Share (the “New Bond
Subscription”). The aggregate subscription price of the Share
Subscription is HK$254,600,000 and the aggregate principal amount
of the New Bonds is HK$348,000,000. The Shares Subscription and
the New Bonds Subscription constitute connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
November 2017, as the conditions to the completion of the
transaction contemplated under the Subscription Agreement have
not been fully satisfied, the Company and Keen Start have agreed to
terminate the Subscription Agreement and the related undertaking
has been released and discharged.

THE 2017 AND 2019 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The 2017 Bonds

The Company issued the 2017 Bonds in 2011 and 2012 respectively
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,393,700,000 which was
convertible into fully paid Shares at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.6175 per Share. As at 31 December 2017, the conversion price
of the 2017 Bonds was HK$0.5600 per Share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no conversion
of the 2017 Bonds. On 29 March 2017, the Company made a partial
payment of the 2017 Bonds for the amount of HK$154,823,091.06.
On 28 April 2017, the maturity date of the 2017 Bonds has been
extended from 28 February 2017 to 28 April 2017. As at 31
December 2017, the principal amount of the 2017 Bonds outstanding
was HK$100,906,642.86 (2016: HK$255,729,733.92). Each 2017
Bond is convertible into fully paid Shares at the applicable conversion
price of HK$0.5600 per Share.
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As a result of the Rights Issue, the conversion price of the 2017 Bonds
has been adjusted from HK$0.5600 per Share to HK$0.5200 per
Share, effective from 12 February 2018.

The 2019 Bonds

The Company issued the 2019 Bonds in 2014 in the principal amount
of HK$1,900,000,000. Each 2019 Bond was convertible into fully
paid Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.4070 per Share. As
at 31 December 2017, the conversion price of the 2019 Bonds was
HK$1.3700 per Share. The 2019 Bonds are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

There was no conversion of any 2019 Bonds since their issuance and
during the year ended 31 December 2017. On 29 March 2017, the
Company made partial payments of the 2019 Bonds in the amount of
HK$846,027,772.50. As at 31 December 2017, the principal amount
of the 2019 Bonds outstanding was HK$551,402,486.50 (2016:
HK$1,397,430,259). Each 2019 Bond is convertible into fully paid
Shares at the applicable conversion price of HK$1.3700 per Share.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no conversion
of the 2019 Bonds.

As a result of the Rights Issue, the conversion price of the 2019 Bonds
has been adjusted from HK$1.3700 per Share to HK$1.2900 per
Share, effective from 12 February 2018.

Relevant Event and Consent Solicitation Proposals in relation to
the Bonds

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August
2015, pursuant to the terms and conditions of each of the 2017
Bonds and the 2019 Bonds, a “Relevant Event” occurs when, among
other things, the Shares are suspended for trading for a period equal
to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Notice has been given by the Company to the
Bondholders that a “Relevant Event” occurred. Each Bondholder had
the right at such Bondholder's option, to require the Company to
redeem all or some only of such Bondholder’s Bonds on 2 November
2015 (the "Relevant Event Redemption Date”) at their principal
amount together with interest accrued to such redemption date, in
each case in accordance with the respective terms and conditions of
the 2017 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds. Upon redemption of any of the
Bonds, such redeemed Bonds will be cancelled.
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Given the occurrence of the "Relevant Event”, the Company had

formulated various consent solicitation proposals (the “Proposals”)
to the Bondholders to, among other things, (a) delay the maturity
date of the 2017 Bonds;

Redemption Date and extend the relevant put period end date;

(b) delay the original Relevant Event

(c) extended the original 3rd Anniversary Put Option Redemption
Date (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 29 March
2017) of the 2019 Bonds; and (d) to waive the events of default for
the respective Bonds. On 29 March 2017, the Company has made
a partial repayment to satisfy part of the principal amount of the
outstanding Bonds and the accrued but unpaid interest thereon
and default interest. Subsequent to the passing of the extraordinary
resolutions by the Bondholders and the execution of the supplemental
trust deed, (i) the maturity date in relation to the 2017 Bonds was
delayed to 28 February 2017 and further extended to 28 April 2017;
(i) the Relevant Event Redemption Date in relation to each series of
the Bonds was delayed to 28 April 2017 in relation to the Relevant
Delisting Event (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated
29 March 2017);
Date of the 2019 Bonds was extended to 31 May 2017; and (iv) any
breach of the terms and conditions or the trust deed of each series of

(iii) the 3rd Anniversary Put Option Redemption

the Bonds in respect of any non-payment of any amount otherwise
payable was waived on 28 April 2017. The Company has not made
payment of the outstanding Bonds on 28 April 2017, and the Bonds
have been in default since then. The Bonds were still outstanding as
at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report. The trustee or the
Bondholders through the trustee may take legal actions against the
Company in respect of the outstanding Bonds. The Company does not
expect the possible courses of action to materially impact the Group,
as the Company has sufficient offshore financial resources to fulfill

repayment obligations under the outstanding Bonds.

Detailed information regarding the Proposals and the relevant
meetings/resolutions (as the case may be) of the Bondholders are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 September
2015, 7 October 2015, 29 October 2015, 29 March 2016, 8 April
2016, 3 May 2016, 3 June 2016, 2 August 2016, 9 September 2016,
15 September 2016, 14 February 2017, 14 March 2017, 24 March
2017, 29 March 2017, 21 April 2017, 27 April 2017 and 28 April
2017 respectively.
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THE OFFER

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 May 2017,
the Company understood from Keen Start that Keen Start would
invite holders of any and all of its outstanding Bonds to tender
such Bonds for purchase by Keen Start at an amount equal to the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of such Bonds plus any
accrued but unpaid interest and default interest of such Bonds up to
but excluding the settlement date (the "Offer”). Keen Start would
purchase all, part or none of the Bonds tendered by any Bondholder
pursuant to the Offer subject to certain conditions, including the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds being tendered by the
Bondholders for purchase by Keen Start in the Offer shall exceed 75%
of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of each of the 2017
Bonds and the 2019 Bonds.

Amongst others, Keen Start has expressed to the Company that,
subject to completion of the purchase of the Bonds in the Offer, it is
Keen Start’s intention to discuss with the Company in good faith as to
when the Company would be in a position to repay the outstanding
Bonds and to discuss alternative proposals, if necessary, and it is
also its intention to waive the default of the Company under the
outstanding Bonds, subject to the terms of any proposal that may be
agreed between Keen Start and the Company.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 July 2017,
Keen Start has received from the participating Bondholders holding
more than 75% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of
each of the 2017 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds, respectively, sufficient
email confirmations together with evidentiary support details that
their relevant Bonds have been un-put and are ready to be traded. As
at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report, the Offer has not
yet been completed.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 19 November
2017, 29 January 2018 and 20 April 2018 respectively, Keen Start has
revised the settlement date for the purchase of the Bonds to be on a
date falling on or around the 5th business day after the day on which
an announcement (or, if more than one announcement is made, the
latest announcement) is made by the Company on the finalization of
the subscription of Shares by a strategic investor. In the event that the
subscription of Shares by a strategic investor cannot be materialized
by around end of April 2018 and the strategic investor has decided to
put on hold the subscription of Shares, Keen Start would reschedule
the settlement date of the purchase of the Bonds to around mid-May
2018. The Company has been informed and confirmed by Keen Start
of its intention to proceed with the purchase of the Bonds after the
publication of all the inside information (if any) with respect to the
Company. In light of the above, the Company understands from Keen
Start that the settlement date would be fixed: (i) after the publication
of the announcement on the finalization of the subscription of Shares
by a strategic investor, or (i) in around mid-May 2018 if eventually
the Company is not able to conclude the subscription of Shares with
the strategic investor by around end of April 2018 and the strategic
investor decides to put the subscription of Shares on hold.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Disposal is approximately
HK$1,925,000,000. As at the date of hereof, the Group has utilized
approximately HK$975,000,000 of the net proceeds as follows:

Date of documents Project

4B B

Net proceeds

RS REFE

FIBRERE
HESFBEZAMEHIBFELNR1,925,000,0008 7T °
RAREBEBH AEBEEHBAERBEFEFL
975,000,000/ 7T 40T :

Actual use of proceeds

RERERRARE

Company's circulars dated 29 February  Disposal of the entire issued share Approximately
HK$1,925,000,000
#71,925,000,0007% 7T

2016 and 30 September 2016, and

announcement dated

14 February 2017
ARARARBMAZE—RE-_A=1+NH

RZT-R"FAA=Z+HZEEMN

AR —tE-ATMAZ

YN

capital of Multi Glory Limited
& Multi Glory Limited
FEHEEITRA

The Purchaser has withheld HK$350,000,000 pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement. The Purchaser will apply this amount to
tax payments if the PRC tax authority makes additional demands.
Insofar as the Company is aware, the PRC tax authority has not made
any additional demands. The Company is advised by its PRC legal
advisers that in the normal course of events, the PRC tax authority
has power to review the amount of tax payable after 3 to 5 years of
the completion of the Disposal. The Purchaser will refund any excess
amount that has not been applied to pay additional tax payments
to the Group. The Company is negotiating with the Purchaser as to
when the amount will be refunded and expects to receive payment
next year.

The Company intends to apply the unutilized amount of the net
proceeds from the Disposal to redeem the outstanding Bonds after
completion of the CB Subscription in the end of May. The outstanding
Bonds will continue to incur default interest up to the date of
payment.
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Approximately HK$310,000,000 used
for the partial redemption of the
Bonds and interest payment in
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Bonds and interest payment in
March 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group supports environmental protection programs and is
constantly looking to reduce the impact of business activities on
the environment. We also encourages the efficient utilization of
resources through the use of energy-saving lightings and recycled
paper, minimizing the use of paper, reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances. In
order to enhance environment preservation, the Group gives careful
consideration to various operational aspects and activities within the
Group to minimize any environmental impact. The Group will also
discuss and understand better the Group’s suppliers and take into
account their environmental and social responsibility practices in the
selection process.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda, whereas its Shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations are mainly
carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in China. The establishment
and operations accordingly shall be subject to the relevant laws of
Bermuda, Hong Kong, China and the British Virgin Islands. During
the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
to the best knowledge and belief of the Board, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
of Bermuda, Hong Kong, China and the British Virgin Islands.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, MAJOR CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable assets and
core competitive advantage of the Group. In order to provide
a good and fair working environment and safeguards the well-
being of the employees, the Group seriously considers all those
valuable opinions from the employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony. Meanwhile, it retains talents and constantly
improves policies including remuneration and benefits, trainings and
occupational health and safety with regular reviews and updates.

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made
approximately 66% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 18%.
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None of the Directors, or any of their respective associates or any
other Shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers during the
year.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 57% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 19%.

None of the Directors, or any of their respective associates or any
other Shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest suppliers during the year.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP
The followings were the major risk and uncertainties of the Group
during the year under review.

Macroeconomic Environment

The gross turnover of lotteries in PRC is closely related to consumers’
lottery purchase behavior. Any change in consumers’ lottery purchase
behavior resulting from changes in global and domestic economic
conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Impact of Lottery Related Regulatory Requirement in China

The Group’s lottery business is subject to regulations and measures
promulgated by the relevant authorities in the PRC. Any change in
these regulations and measures in PRC could materially and adversely
affect the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Uncertainty in the Implementation of Internet and Telephone
Lottery Sales Services

The rules and regulations on internet and telephone lottery
sales services in PRC are subject to interpretation by the relevant
authorities and may involve uncertainties in their implementation.
Any unfavorable new regulatory requirements, amendments or
interpretations could have a material adverse effect on the business,

financial condition, results of operations and prospects of the Group.
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Industry Trends

The Group’s business operations are affected by trends in the lottery
industry in China. For example, the Group's business operations
have been negatively impacted by declines in scratch cards purchases
among lottery consumers and the prolonged suspension of the
internet distribution channel. There can be no assurance that the
industry trends experienced by the Group in the future will not

adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Competitive Markets

The Group’s lottery business faces significant competition across
the diverse segments in the lottery market. Any of the following
competitive risks could adversely affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations. The new market entrants and
intensified competition among existing market players of the Group’s
scratch cards distribution business. The risk of competition with
respect to secure new or extend existing business contracts required
for SGDB. The risk of competition with respect to gain access or to
get required licenses to newly developed market and business, for
example, paperless lottery. The risk of competition from attracting and
retaining specialized staff members in certain areas of the Group's
lottery operations.

Renewal of cooperation agreements

The Group operates part of its lottery business pursuant to fixed-
term cooperation agreements with provincial lottery centres and
strategic partners. The Group's reputation among customers and
partners as a leading reliable and trustworthy lottery services provider
is of significant importance to the success of entering into such
agreements, which is subject to the combination of the track record
and scale of operation of the Group in the industry. There is no
assurance that these cooperation agreements will be extended or
renewed on favorable terms or at all. The occurrence of any of the
above situations may materially and adversely affect the Group’s
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Business Strategy and Future Growth

Over the last decade, lottery business has been the principal operation
of the Group. While the Group believes that its diverse operations in
the entire value chain of the lottery industry and provision of services
to both Welfare Lottery and Sports Lottery reduce its exposure to
particular industry trends and cycles, its operating results have been

adversely affected by macro driven industry trends and development.
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As a measure to address the above concentration risk and increasing
uncertainties on the industry trends, particularly on regulatory
development, the Group will cautiously expand its businesses through
investment in organic growth and diversify its business if appropriate
opportunities in the market arise. These businesses opportunities
may require significant investment and the commitment of executive
management time and other resources. There can be no assurance
that the merged or acquired businesses will operate successfully and
as a result may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in regions where the Group’s lottery
distribution network, suppliers, customers and lottery consumers are
located could adversely affect the business and results of operations
of the Group.

Risks Mitigations

The Group understands that it faces a number of discussed risks
and uncertainties that if not properly managed could create an
exposure for the Group. It is believed that thorough risk assessment
and mitigation could help to ensure these risks are well managed
and governed effectively. Key measures for risks mitigations are
adopted by the Group, and they include: proactive monitoring of
lottery industry trends, competitors and innovations; working closely
and constructively with lottery centers and relevant regulators to
provide relevant input from industry player perspective on regulatory
matters; mobilizing internal resources to ensure timely response
to regulatory changes and maintaining regulatory compliance;
responsive investment controls to allow strategic flexibility and
dedicated strategy resources; and investment capital at risk limited by

investment policies, restrictions and guidelines.

CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its various
businesses and the local communities where we operate. Further
information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 64 to 70.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices. Further information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 50 to 63.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
the review of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

By a resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 11 June 2015, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“THKC
CPA Ltd.”) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy arising from the retirement of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan as a result of their internal corporate structure reorganisation.

THKC CPA Ltd. will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution for re-appointment of THKC CPA Ltd. as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has adopted
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (&)

APPRECIATION &)

The Board expresses its sincere thanks to all the shareholders, EETRLEHEZERR EHFFBEA EBEBEHEK
bondholders, business partners and professional advisors for their HEEBRRAFE—BE2XF THEEEREIR
support throughout the year, and to our management and staff for EARNEERELTERRHE -

their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board KRE=ZE

Chan How Chung, Victor HiTEE

Executive Director [

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018 B - N\F=ZR=ZTHH

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information * FXEFXARZ EXFFEERDE  TRERZEF
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English X &7 [EAEXBGE -

translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director on 4 July 2002. Mr. Chan is responsible for the strategic
development and overall operations of the Group. He holds a
LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant. Mr. Chan
has over 28 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director
on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the development of
the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts from the University
of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company, he has been
the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an international

manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 8 April 2004. Mr. Yuen obtained a master of
business administration from the University of Bath in England in
1988. Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators. Mr. Yuen has more than 28 years of
experience in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were
working in multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a

firm of certified public accountants.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 October 2004. Mr. Chow is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honors degree in Social
Science. He then obtained an honors degree in Laws from the
University of Birmingham in England in 1987. Mr. Chow was admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1990 and has
been in private practice since then. Currently, Mr. Chow is a Partner of
King & Wood Mallesons, Solicitors. He also serves as an independent
non-executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited and CCT Fortis
Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow was a non-executive director of China Baoli Technologies
Holdings Limited, which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from April
2006 to September 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EE

LEE Ka Lun, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 April 2007. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Lee has over 21 years experience in banking and
auditing. He had been the Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB
Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and Regional Director — Finance and
Operation of Lloyds TSB’s operations in Asia for over 15 years and has
extensive experience on corporate banking, private banking, treasury,
operations, IT developments and general management. Mr. Lee also
serves as an independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang
Holdings International Limited, Yuexiu Property Company Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, Medicskin Holdings Limited and Ever
Harvest Group Holdings Limited, all of which are listed companies in
Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr. Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo has over 21 years
of experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms. Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 25 years of experience in the field
of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 45, is the Director — Corporate Development
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms. Yau has over 22 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong
listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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ZHANG Beiguang, aged 48, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets) of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Peking University with a bachelor’'s degree in arts. He
has over 16 years of experience in strategic development and
management.

JIANG Libin, aged 45, is the general manager of & /N 4415 Rt
R BB R F (Guangzhou Latech Technology Co. Ltd.*) (“Guangzhou
Latech”). Mr. Jiang joined Guangzhou Latech in 2000 and has
extensive experience in mechanical and electronic engineering
research and related business operations. He graduated from the

faculty of power control in Beihang University.

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 54, the Chief Executive Officer of 1t F {5 % &

FEHEHBR A A (Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co. Ltd.*) and
is responsible for the overall management of the printing of lottery
tickets. Mr. Tsang holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Massey University in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C
Security Printing Company Limited for around 20 years and was
experienced in security printing. He was formerly the general manager
of Hong Kong and Dongguan plants of RR Donnelley, an international
printing firm.

ZHONG Wu, aged 54, is the Chief Operating Officer of it R{E%L H
B A R A7) (Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co. Ltd.*) and is
responsible for the overall operation of the printing of lottery tickets
of the Group. Mr. Zhong graduated from Beihang University — School
of Economics and Management, with a master’s degree in business
administration. He has over 10 years of experience in product

development and logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 53, is the general manager of it R %4F1
W EEM AR A A) (Beijing Lohowin Marketing Co. Ltd.*) and
is responsible for the overall management of the sales of lottery
tickets of the Group. Mr. Tung holds a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over 11 years of experience in sales & marketing and management

and has thorough understanding to the Chinese market.

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.

Management for Lottery Business
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) under the CG Code throughout the accounting period
covered by this report except in certain circumstances which are
provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of business and affairs of the Group of the best interest
of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with two
executive Directors namely Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor and Mr. Boo
Chun Lon and three independent non-executive Directors namely
Mr. Yuen Wai Ho, Mr. Chow Siu Ngor and Mr. Lee Ka Lun. A list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 47 to
48. To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
members of the Board.

Throughout the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules respectively relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the independent non-
executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the Group's
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance
of the Group, preparing and approving financial statements,
recommending the Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
considering and approving material contracts and transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests) as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board also gives clear
directions as to the powers delegated to the management for the
day-to-day operation, management and administration functions of
the Group. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management and the

Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

There were seven Board meetings and one general meeting held for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The following was an attendance
record of the Board meetings and general meeting during the year:
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Board meetings meeting
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Name of Directors EEMR EESEELH BERAERE

Executive Directors HITEF

Chan How Chung, Victor BR 2 1R 717 0/1

Boo Chun Lon AR % B 717 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TEE

Yuen Wai Ho bt = 717 1/1

Chow Siu Ngor PN E 717 1/1

Lee Ka Lun EPN 717 11
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

PANE" - SN /N

TEEBRRE (&)

The Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of offices held in other public companies or organization and other
significant commitments in a timely manner and will provide updates
to the Company on any subsequent changes.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the Group’s
management, giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail to keep them abreast of the Group’s
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out

in writing.

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities of
a Chairman and a Chief Executive are currently held by separate
individuals with written guidelines for the division of responsibilities
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties between
the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group's business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of
a Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive if candidates with
suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term, but are subject to retirement by rotation at the Company's
annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-laws.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

BEFLERHAARARAARERENEMARAFK
HBETZBBEREMERARZHE RMEE  Hi&
WMEESY TBRAARRBREEFRER -

PREESCEHASEERERECEARTER
ETHAUAKE KRR KR OIHMERLANR 2
REMBRERZTE ATRAERERZHAELE
=B UAMRERTLETRABHRAEZHME -

EFRRITBAR

REBETAGXA2  TERTRERZACEAR
DU EE-ARBRE-TELTRAH ZEE
FEVEBMTIR 5 - WIAEEH T -

ARABAYBEFRITRAE - AT REEER
ENEEEEREALEERBREEZAREER
B IRRTREHZZIEBBREFENHBLZ
BEMALREEHERAEFE 2 EMESIEE-

ARABBEBERTAEELEEORBIRY LE
BRASEBEANMIUIDERBEERES A
B RBEREBRZANEDETEEE TR LITRAE
AT -

FHITES

THRXAANEE FATESZZEREHETEL
H - YARSENER R BYFATEFLE
BETH EARARAAUMEERARA ZBREE
FRELBHESE-



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Code
Provision on considering the independency of an independent non-
executive Director who has served more than nine years for his further
appointment. Mr. Chow Siu Ngor, who has served on the Board for
more than nine years, was re-elected as independent non-executive
Director at the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2017 (the
“2017 AGM") by passing separate resolution at the 2017 AGM. The
Board’s view on Mr. Chow's independent status was set out in the
2017 AGM circular. The re-election of Mr. Yuen Wai Ho, independent
non-executive Director who has served the Board for more than nine
years, will be considered by a vote on a separate resolution in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established relevant board committees to assist in
discharging its responsibilities.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012.
It currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Lee Ka Lun (as Chairman), Mr. Yuen Wai Ho and Mr. Chow
Siu Ngor and one executive Director namely Mr. Chan How Chung,
Victor.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship, appointment or re-appointment and succession
of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. Details of the duties and powers of the
Nomination Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy since August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees board diversity is an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In reviewing
Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider balance
of a number of factors, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on merit,
having due regard to the overall effective function of the Board as a
whole.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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TEEBRRE (&)

There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The following was an attendance record of
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year:

Nomination Committee Members

(E_T—t+F+_A=+—-HILFE REEE
BRIT—REHE-UTARFRARTZIREEZESE
2 T AL 8
Number of

meeting

attended/held

HE BT

RV

Lee Ka Lun FRE
Yuen Wai Ho B (& 5
Chow Siu Ngor /N E
Chan How Chung, Victor (e

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination
of directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence; and (iii) reviewing the board diversity policy of the
Company. Nomination procedures and the process and criteria will be
determined by the Nomination Committee should there be the need
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005. It currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Chow Siu Ngor (as Chairman), Mr. Yuen Wai Ho
and Mr. Lee Ka Lun.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the management’s remuneration proposals, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy of the
Company and remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the duties and powers of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its written terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There were two Remuneration Committee meetings held for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The following was an attendance record of
the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year:
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Remuneration Committee Members FTMEEERE BRRE
Chow Siu Ngor 2N E 2/2
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Lee Ka Lun TR 2/2

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
of individual executive Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority
to approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included (i) assessing performance of executive Directors
and senior management and, where applicable, approving their
terms of services including the directors’ fees and the emoluments
of executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and determining on policy
and structure of the remuneration package of Directors and senior

management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2017 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

BEEETAZTFAEXBAS BHEZT—tF+=
A=+t - RIFEZSRERBAEFHEAFBN
T~

Number of
employees
EEBAH
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T £1,500,000/% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7C £3,000,000/% 7T 1
3

Audit Committee ERZEER
The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It BERZEBER_ZEZETFNAZFTNBKIZ BAIE

currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr. Chow Siu Ngor and Mr.
Lee Ka Lun. The committee members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, business or accounting and related financial
management expertise and experience to provide relevant advice and

recommendations to the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting, risk management and internal
control system of the Company, and assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibility over the audit. Details of the duties and powers of
the Audit Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include: (i) to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and (v) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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There were five Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended HE_T—+tF+_A=1T—HLFE EFZZE"

31 December 2017, two of which were held with the external auditor. RAReR: HPMIEIINEZHEMET-UT A
The following was an attendance record of the Audit Committee RENBITZERZEESR 2B L

meetings held during the year:

Number of

meetings

attended/held

HE BT

Audit Committee Members EREEERE BERH

Yuen Wai Ho b i& 5 5/5

Chow Siu Ngor HNE 5/5

Lee Ka Lun TR 5/5

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Group.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results and the
unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the compliance
and internal audit reports and the compliance and corporate
governance issues of the Group; (i) discussing with external auditor
the audit planning work (including the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit of the annual results
of the Group; and (iv) reviewing the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditor
during the year under review.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited, represents the provision
of audit fees for statutory audit and other non-statutory audit services
related to advisory service amounting to approximately HK$3,198,000
and HK$400,000 respectively. The remuneration payable to the
Company’s subsidiaries auditors in the PRC for statutory audit
and other non-statutory audit services amounted to approximately
HK$64,000 and HK$Nil respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to the Group's
operations and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates that are relevant to the financial statements.

The Company has not been able to fulfill its redemption obligations
under the Bonds. As of 31 December 2017, 2017 Bonds in the
principal amount of approximately HK$100,907,000 and 2019
Bonds in the principal amount of approximately HK$551,402,000
were outstanding. The Company has proposed fund raising plans to
repay all the Group's offshore liabilities, including the outstanding
Bonds. The details of the proposed fund raising plans are outlined
in the Directors’ Report. As the outcome of these matters cannot be
presently assessed, the auditors are of the opinion that this indicates
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
Directors have assessed the liquidity position of the Group. The
Group's offshore resources exceeds the amounts due under the
Bonds. Upon the completion of the CB Subscription under the fund
raising plans, the Group will be able to fully repay all its offshore
liabilities. Accordingly, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. Please also refer to Notes 4B(a) and 38a to the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and

those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on pages 78 to 81.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the
CG Code and to protect the assets and to ensure the accuracy and
reliability of the financial information that the Company employs in
its business or releases to the public, the Company conducts regular
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control system. The scope of these reviews includes, among
others, strategy, finance, operations and regulation compliance.

The Group maintained the risk management and internal control
systems aiming to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses caused by
judgment in decision making process, human error, fraud or other
irregularities.

During the year, the Board has continued to retain an independent
professional firm, to facilitate adequacy of resources and quality of
review to satisfy the Group’s internal audit function as required by
the Stock Exchange and to assist the Board to perform an annual
internal audit environment review and risk assessment on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems for the year 31 December 2017 following the CG Code.
The Group has reviewed an internal audit charter, conducted an
annual risk assessment and updated a continuous three-year audit
plan under a risk-based approach. An annual audit was performed
according to the audit plan with a view to assisting the Board and
the Audit Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control mechanism.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, covering strategic, financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the monitoring of the
Group on an ongoing basis and the results of the risk assessments and
the outcome of the annual audit review, the Board is of the view that
the Group has maintained sound and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has adopted
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS' CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her first appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
year under review. The individual training record of each Director for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is summarized below:

Directors’ duties and responsibilities/

EECRHEEXERRE
BUFZEZEETHANEREZERERFSE2E ERX
REBEMBORERS ERFTESHAEEE
BREE UWEREREWRUERBEEEREERE
TZRE BBELETREEEEMR-

ARBFATESEARE RUBEBAEERERERD
HREEER-

EERERGAMLTRREMCEREER TR
MEBERER  BREEMAZEST-

EEHNEBTEETINZTRKRXAE6S REAMH
ESHRIFHMAMBRRE 2T ABREALE
EEHEARTEMEBEATHESSEL TR -

REEERREETARNARARBZLE 28BS
EROBEFENASEQEREZERERTY HE
TEtEFFT AT HLEFEREZEZEAE
SR

Business related/
Accounting/Financial/

Corporate Governance/ Management or

Updates on Laws, Rules and Regulations other professional skills

ESRERRYE tEER/ ES 1 Ve-5 04 )
B RURBHZHER EEGHMEER
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ In-house Reading seminars/
materials conferences briefings materials conferences
LEMNE/ HEHRHE/
BEM R L ECE: BEM A EE]
Executive Directors HiTEE
Chan How Chung, Victor e v v % v v
Boo Chun Lon MR8 v v v/ v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Yuen Wai Ho ER v v/ / v v
Chow Siu Ngor BNE v v / v v
Lee Ka Lun P v v v v/ v/
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DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

During the year under review, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal
actions against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of
the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such
directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Ng Yuen Yee, who was
appointed by the Board on 27 April 2006.

During the year, Ms. Ng has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder(s) of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company with the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may request the Board to

convene a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed in writing with contact
details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Office A, 32/F,
YHC Tower, No.1 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong

Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting
Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at general meetings. Proposals shall be directed in writing with
contact details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Office A, 32/F,
YHC Tower, No.1 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong

Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director are
available on the websites of the Company.

The Board may, in its sole discretion, consider if such proposals are
appropriate and shall be put forward to the Shareholders for approval

at the next general meeting to be convened by the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels including publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and other corporate
communications and publications available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The
Company encourages their participation through general meetings
where the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.

To promote the communication between the Company and
its shareholders, the Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy which shall be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

An up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and Bye-laws is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There have been
no changes to such constitutional documents during the year under

review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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We are pleased to present this report covering certain environmental
and social responsibility aspects underlying the Group’s business
operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 with reference to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Reporting Guide"”). The
Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide throughout the year.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
business and the local communities where we operate. The Group
also recognizes the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public in making business decisions. The Group aims at making
constant efforts in areas such as environmental protection and general
social welfare.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group supports environmental protection programs and is
constantly looking to reduce the impact of business activities on
the environment.

A1: Emissions

The direct and indirect emissions are mainly generated
from the Group’s business operations, i.e. the provision
of lottery machines and equipment, provision of lottery
printing service and distribution of lottery products in the
PRC. Lottery printing service in Shijiazhuang is one of the
major businesses, in terms of turnover amount generated
during the year, to the Group.
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In order to comply with the regulations and standards
under Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s
Republic of China in Shijiazhuang for the printing business,
the Group recognized the following emission volumes in
an environmental testing and assessment by a third-party
consultant during the year. The Group is committed to
achieving emission reduction and wastewater under the
regulations and standards on environmental protection in
PRC.
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Tonnes over

the year
Emission Volume & 7 6F B W B
1. Air emissions 1. BR¥EK
Sulfur dioxide =R |7 0.369
Nitrogen oxides REy 0.454
Non-methane hydrocarbon IR T 4B I 0.053
Benzene series KREY) 0.027
2. Wastewater emissions 2. BEKEER
Wastewater EE K 4,800
Chemical oxygen demand tEFE=E 1.68
Ammonia nitrogen [A 0.056
The greenhouse gas emissions data directly generated from HREXERE2BETE=FEHMHE
lottery distribution during the year is unavailable to the BMAEERENSFANEEREGYERE
Group as shipments of goods have been outsourced to B 3% 2 R = RBS B EUE -
third-party transportation providers.
In addition to the above direct gas emissions, the use B EREEREMIN AEBRERE

of electricity by the Group is indirectly attributable to
production of greenhouse gases, most notably carbon
dioxide generated from purchased electricity in lottery
printing business. The data of indirect gas emissions
generated from purchased electricity is unavailable as the
electricity consumption data is a lump sum and inseparable
from other party for the year.

Despite that the non-hazardous waste data during the
year is unavailable to the Group, the Group considers only
limited non-hazardous were produced during assembling
and printing processes.
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A2:

A3:
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Use of Resources

The Group also encourages employees to save energy,
water and improve efficient utilization of resources through
the use of energy-saving lightings, recycled paper and
e-statement, minimizing the use of paper, reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers and

electrical appliances.

Lottery printing business contributes a major use of
resource, which mainly include paper, electricity and
water, to the Group. No significant use of resources are
attributable to the provision of lottery machines and
equipment and lottery distribution. During the year, the
energy and water consumption in the lottery printing
business is unavailable as the data is a lump sum and
inseparable from other party.

The Group believes that there is no significant packaging
material involved and use of resource attributable by the
Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

In order to enhance environment preservation, the
Group gives careful consideration to various operational
aspects and activities within the Group to minimize any
environmental impact. The Group will also discuss and
understand better the Group's suppliers and take into
account their environmental and social responsibility
practices in the selection process.

The Group is committed to reducing its environmental
impact generated by its business operations.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BERE #HE8REAR

B. SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

B1:

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Group. In
order to provide a good and fair working environment
and safeguards the well-being of the employees, the
Group seriously considers all those valuable opinions from
the employees for enhancing workplace productivity and
harmony.

The Group creates an optimal working environment
in which all employees are treated with fairness and
respect, paying attention to employee benefits and career
development, protecting employees’ interest such as
occupational and health. During the year, there were no
material and significant dispute between the Group and
the employees.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted
on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
the market trend. Employees are entitled to discretionary
bonus, mandatory provident fund, medical insurance,
allowance for transportation, annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, compassionate leave,
marriage leave, jury duty leave and examination and study
leave. The Group also adopted a share option scheme
under which options are granted to eligible staff based on
individual performance.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations in the localities of its operation, and the
relevant administrative rules and measures are strictly
enforced. These rules and regulations specify the
requirements relating to employment, labour relations,
employees’ remuneration, social insurances, housing fund
and mandatory provident fund and welfare to protect the
rights of employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRE #H8K
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Health and Safety
The Group strives to provide a safe and congenial
workplace for all employees. The Group also encourages
employees to take part in work-life balance activities and
community service.

To safeguard employees’ occupational health and safety,
we work hard to provide a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment and have strictly complied with
regulations on occupational health and safety in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Employees are asked to stringently
abide by all safety rules and regulations, and utilize
available and applicable protection measures at all times
to avoid accidents and protect themselves and co-workers
from safety risks in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The Company offers its employees
comprehensive health care coverage.

Development and Training

The Group promotes the personal development and
professional growth of its employees. The Group aims to
offer a learning atmosphere to its staff in enriching their
work practices. The Group also encourages the employees
to identify their own personal objectives for development,

allowing them to grow together with the Group.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction training
for new employees. Experienced employees will act
as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs. Such
arrangements can enhance the communication and team
spirit, also improve their technical skills and managerial
capability and encourage the learning and further
development of the employees at all levels. The Group
arranges the trainings designated according to the roles
and responsibilities of the employees. The Group also
updates the latest information of the industry and laws and
regulations which is essential to the Group’s operation and
their job responsibilities from time to time.
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B4:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BERE #HE8REAR

Labour Standards

Review and verification of applicant’s identity information
is required during the recruitment process, and recruitment
of child labor is strictly prohibited. Every applicant is
also required to provide document proofs of academic
qualifications and working experience for verifications.
The Group enters employment contract with each of its
employee in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong and also prohibits forced labor.

Operating Practices

B5:

B6:

Supply Chain Management

To ensure the Group's product quality, only those approved
suppliers who have passed the Group’s quality control
tests and have a satisfactory record of quality and on-time
delivery were selected. To achieve this, all personnel with
supply chain management responsibilities are trained to
ensure, to the extent practicable, that selected suppliers
are legally compliant in respect of materials and products
provided to the Group.

Apart from continuously monitoring the quality of products
and materials procured with suppliers, the Group will also
review suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility
related practices through, for example, site inspections and
interviews.

Product Responsibility

The Company complies with various PRC regulations
relevant to the operation of its business in areas such
as health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to its products and services. In addition
to following relevant laws and regulations, the Company
follows its own operating policies and rules including the
pre-installation checklist, client and contractor guide to
installing system and governs installation and maintenance
and after-sale service.

The Group has arranged sufficient channels and staffs for
customers to communicate and provide the solutions to
the problems as soon as possible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRE - #H8K

B7:

B8:
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Employees are encouraged to report any suspected
infringement. The Company will take corresponding
anti-infringement actions.

The Company employees are obligated to retain in
confidence any and all information obtained in connection
with their employment, including, but not limited to, trade
secrets, know how, client information, supplier information

and other proprietary information.

Anti-corruption
All of the Group’s operations comply with local and
national legislation on standards of conduct, such as
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and relevant legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in
mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to code
of business ethics and put any corruption bribe behavior to
an end as stipulated in the employment contracts.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to being a responsible member
of the community and aims to make a positive impact on
the local community. The Group encourages employees to
participate in various voluntary events, creating a strong
social network and providing assistance and supports for
the people in need, which could provide an opportunity
for them to connect outside the workplace, and inspire
teambuilding experiences while contributing to the local

communities.
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN

TO THE MEMBERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (the
the "Group”) set out on pages 82 to 231,

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
M % B ED *ﬁ &=

TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LTD

9/F., Tung Ning Building, 249-253 Des Voeux Road C, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBE®RE (F)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to Notes 4B(a), 35 and 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, which indicate that the Company has not been
able to fulfill its redemption of the Bonds and payment obligations
on the specified extended due dates. To address these issues, the
Company has proposed funds raising plans (“Plans”) as set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 19 November 2017. Upon
completion of the Plans, the Company expects it can fully repay the
Bonds. The ultimate outcome of these matters could not be assessed
at the date of our report. As stated in Notes 4B(a) and 38(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, these events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Notes 35 and 49 indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty exists which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:
o Revenue recognition
° Goodwill impairment assessment

o Impairment of “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments
and other receivables”

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Revenue recognition

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

BBE®E (&)

LN
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEPNEFNAEEFARESSE

Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of the
underlying products have been transferred to the customers or
when the services are rendered and collectability of the related
receivables are reasonably assured. We focused on this area due
to the huge volume of revenue transactions generated in many
locations and from various customers.
WARHEHAERZEARLREREEBREE P ANIEHRB AR
Bb & T2 b B E B G YK AR B R AR BE R c M E R R UL E
B - AARKAXRZIUMEES TFREAZHESEEKR

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and because there is an inherent risk of manipulation of
the timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.

MRBRAERRBAREAFE BAKRAR E%IEEF—
HERRRER BPREEBRIEWAERREZEBUETE
IRRHEIE Z B AR -

We evaluated and tested management’s controls in respect of
the Group's sales transactions from contract approval, recording
of sales based on contract terms and through reconciliations
with cash receipts.

BHMFERAAEREY ESEHEERHIIEE REAHNE
Ttt\}Tz,ﬂic’{é.\Z«’Jﬂ%ﬁuﬂﬁzﬁﬁ%%ﬁuiﬁééﬁiﬁiﬂﬂmz,ﬂﬂé°

We selected samples of different customers at different
locations and tested the occurrence and accuracy of the revenue
recognized by examination of the sales contracts, invoices and
goods delivery notes to revenue recorded.
BPHRTRAMEAREFER REHEESH ERENERE
FEBREMTHE A MBS R MAREEEEER
HETE o

We checked that revenue had been recognized at the correct
time by testing a sample of transactions and comparing the
delivery dates with the dates on which the revenue had been
recognized.
BIVAAR ZEAER LEE
H&A%E%Eﬁ&ﬁﬁaﬁﬁ&aw

HHEEER WA Z B #miad

We found that the Group's revenue recognition was consistent
with the terms of the sales contracts and the Group's revenue
recognition accounting policy.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBE®RE (F)

Goodwill impairment assessment

Refer to Notes 4A(a) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter
BREETSBE

AmERENR
F2 MG A BB WK EAAQ@ KT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNESFNAEEFAREETSE

The carrying value of goodwill of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was HK$301,283,000. There is significant judgement
involved in forecasting and discounting of future cash flows,
which is the basis of the assessment of the recoverable amounts
of goodwill that constitutes 5% of the Group's total assets.
EEER T - RN+ A=T-—HZ2HEKRKHEEAR
301,283,000/ 7t « T8I & BE 3R R 2R IR & 7t 2 T AT 1 7 2 A] Y )
TREEE BRI RERAAE mEEEK EEEEERE
Z25% °

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

In evaluating the impairment of goodwill, we reviewed the value
in use calculations prepared by management and performed
various procedures including the following:

REEBHEBRERS RMECEHBEREERECERAEENE
EWHETEENTEBEZRER:

o Assessing the valuation methodology;

A ES A

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions on key
valuation factors including discount rates, growth rates,
periods cover and those contradicted the facts that come
to our notices during the course of audit;
RESHERZCIERIREAAE BEMBAX ER
FORERRE URERMNETEREPERERTEE
BRI E

o Testing the Group’s controls relating to the preparation of
the cash flow forecasts;
AE BEXEYURERSRERAZ BT

o Recomputation of the value in use of each cash generating
unit;

BN ESReEEEMN 2 ERER:



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

Refer to Notes 4A(a) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEESBE

BYZBEMBE (F)

AEEENH (E)
B2 MG A B WM EAAQ K17 (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNESFNAEEFAREETSH

The impairment of goodwill was determined with reference to
the cash generating unit's value in use, which is based on the
cash flow forecast for that cash generating unit. Management
has concluded that impairment losses of HK$301,283,000 in
respect of the goodwill of the Group was recognized during the
year. This conclusion was based on a value in use model that
requires significant management judgement and assumptions
with respect to the underlying cash flow forecasts, the discount
rates and the growth rates, which are highly subjective since
they are based on management’s experience and expectations
rather than observable market data.
FEZREN2BRECEFEEU EREREE  MEMREER
NEeEAEM s RENERARELE - BRBELLE  FAER
0 OBEEHEFE 2RAERE301,283,000/ 7T o I 48 45 A
EREEEMAEE EhTEERERERR RSN /L
REREREEHERABHREBR EEREEBZERLE
H - MmIERBEmISEE MERTHE -

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets with reference to historical data and
available market information; and
HEAERBREH A BAESIR/RIBRER W2RE
CHERAES T HERN ZRZZHERTAE R

=

\

o Evaluating the independent external valuer's competency,
capacities and objectivity.

AHEBIIMNEGEM 2 B8 B RERIL-

We found the assumptions made by management in relation to
the value in use calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence. The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in Notes 4A(a) and 17.

REBFGER BMER EEERCREEFEEELZBR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBERE (F)

Impairment of “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments

and other receivables”
Refer to Notes 4A(c),
statements

Key Audit Matter
BEEEE

24 and 25 to the consolidated financial

[PEE£LHEMZES I R[EARERIMEK
RIE | 2R E
FLHERAE VB HRERMELAQ)  24%25

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEERAEESSE

The Group has “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments
and other receivables” as at 31 December 2017 amounting
to approximately HK$1,451,872,000 and approximately
HK$1,962,837,000 respectively.

EEER T —+tF T A=+ -HZI2AEEREMES]
Ko [FEAMRIA N E th U R IR | 9 B 49 %1,451,872,0007%8 7T &
1,962,837,000/ 7T ©

For the deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables,
management performed periodic credit monitoring, which
included the review of debtors’ creditworthiness, collection
of outstanding balances and individual credit terms or
assessing the appropriate level of investment projects which
may be ultimately materialized or withdrawn. For lottery
project deposits paid and prepayments, the impairment loss
provisions are a key area of judgement for management to
assess the appropriate level based on the management’s
expectations for future market conditions. The identification
of impairment and the determination of the recoverable
amount are an inherently uncertain process involving various
assumptions and factors including the financial condition
of the counterparties and the expected future cash flows.
The use of different assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of the impairment loss provisions. For other
receivables, if there is indicator of impairment, management
would make specific allowance against individual balances
with reference to the recoverable amount. After the relevant
assessment, management considered to make an allowance for
impairment of other receivables amounting to approximately
HK$130,779,000 for the year.

HRENES BEFELEMEKRTIE BEETHETER
B BERAEBAGE  WORERERNEREBERX
FAERERERARAERAHE 2@t - HRENERIER
Re REHFE REBERENERE ZHRAEHE A
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REFAKEEEBREFEERE TREN P RZERELE
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MR ERE4130,779,0008 7T ©

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BMABREEEREN G ZIETFRE:

o Testing and evaluating the Group's controls and
procedures on deposits paid, prepayments and other
receivables;

AT BEEEEE RS FRHEIE & H A YR
B2 BEERAET:

o Testing cash flows to the bank statements on payment or
refund/settlement on deposits paid and prepayments with
proper authorization and approval documents;
RBRITEER 2 ENIRS REHRBEBRNRIRREE
EHREREERERELXG EREREAH

o Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging profile on
other receivables;

FHAEORI BE A PR MORROR 7 R B R I

o Confirming the existence by obtaining direct confirmations
from debtors on material balances for deposits paid,
prepayments and other receivables and/or their repayment
terms;

HEMEBARRACNES AHFIALEMEWRRIAE
RESRRJEHBRIGH BRERTFE:

o Testing the recoverability and impairment assessment
by tracing the subsequent settlement to bank records
and testing the assumptions underlying the impairment
identification and quantification including the forecast
of future cash flows and reliability of management'’s past
estimates of recovery on default risk;

WERITEE SRR At H 18 5 (B 50 8% - 16 DRI & AT Uk (Bl 1 Rk 1B
FHE AR R EMREZEERR  BEAKRRESRE
TERI - IR B 1R FE A 1T EE AR e 2 W Bl (A A S



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BREEHRE (&)

Impairment of “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments [AAEXREMZS | RIEAZELRHEMELK
and other receivables” (continued) RE | ZEE(8)
Refer to Notes 4A(c), 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial H2HEA M B®MEMT4AQ) 24 K%25(48)

statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BT BE BB NAEERAEESSE

The audit was focused on this area, due to materiality of the Evaluating management project progress assessment

balances and subject to significant judgement of management. reports;
EAEPRUHE RERGEHEN WHkAEREFEHZE FHEERE 2B R EEN MRS
K F T -

o Challenging management on long outstanding receivables
and project status with updated information;
RERHENFRPREEREFERIERRRAEAE
;

. Obtaining directors’ representation on assumptions and
basis in assessing the impairment provision; and

AR ERBZRENEESHEERR &

. Obtaining board approval on lottery project deposits paid
and prepayments made during the year and outstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period.
RERNINZENERERB RS RAHFIEA KRR REH
R AREBREHRBHEZTGH

We consider management’s conclusion to be consistent with
available evidence obtained and the allowance for impairment
of other receivables and lottery project deposits paid and
prepayments have been appropriately disclosed.

BMRR BRE BAERMMSEBRMBR - A M EKRIEUR
ENFRERRE REMREREREC BEMIRE-

Annual Report 2017 ZZ—+44F4f

77



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

78 REXLot Holdings Limited #Zee #A%R B 2 7]

FHEAZHMBES
EEFHHEMAGERAR - HOGERRETENFERR
ZEE BETE TAHM%#&%E&%HF?E’N?%(EW%&

=5

HMEGAVBRER2BERL NREHMES - &M
NAHZEEMEERREMT A 2 ER LR -

HmARMEGAMBRERZES HMNETIME
HiER HEUBRED ZEEMEAREHESY
ﬁ%#&%iﬁzﬁz MAESESBETMER BEAFEEAK
B EUFFAEERERRBAZER - BERRFIBE
MESCHTZIHE MREMB/EMELSFTES
REERFM RHFEREZEE @ &M
REEMRSmE -

ESRAEBRGAMBBRAAEZEE

EZARERBEESHMAGHEM ZERHBRE
HEAUREFE (RBGD) 2HERERBEENTS

ZIEEMBHRE UHERSRESRAVHRERANH
BAFERNRFRERMEMZERHERRAAFT
ZAMEEAE-

ERBREVBHRRE EFAENE E5£EKE
ez TEERBATREASBELCEREHL
FHR ULERFECEREHER BRIEFAR
B BEEEFRFEFLLE AREEMERZER
o

BN

ENEREeARY BEQARCZEFAREE H&5HE
ZE G RE-



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BYZBEMBE (F)

RBMRESREMBHRREAREZEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

VR BERE (&)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,

where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shu Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P01297

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

BYZBEMBE (F)
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Consolidated Income Statement

AW aE K

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+t#F —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ikza FHET FET
Revenue ['ON 5 402,305 1,252,144
Cost of sales/services rendered WEIRERE 2 KA 22(b) (204,352) (543,310)
Other income H b A 5 27,335 30,222
Other gains/(losses), net Hitz (E18)F58E 5 544 (9,360)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB ARz W 41 165,290 -
Selling and distribution expenses & &5 5 & A (47,106) (68,549)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEBEERE 17 (301,283) (103,923)
Impairment loss on At EeRmEEREERE
available-for-sale
financial asset 20 (67,617) -
Allowance for impairment of BB ZER K
trade and other receivables H e W R R B B 23,25 (132,654) (238,467)
Administrative expenses THER (281,595) (415,000)
Operating loss RERE (439,133) (96,243)
Finance costs B 7% 2 A 8 (74,968) (132,257)
Share of losses of joint ventures PMEEEREEIE 19 (6,254) (187,591)
Loss before taxation BB ATEE 9 (520,355) (416,091)
Taxation | 12 (210,448) (29,898)
Loss for the year FEEIE (730,803) (445,989)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Equity shareholders of RRARE=BRER
the Company (704,265) (393,007)
Non-controlling interests eI AR = (26,538) (52,982)
(730,803) (445,989)
Loss per share for loss ARATREERRELCEAZERER
attributable to equity (Adjusted)
shareholders of the Company 13 (K A%EE)

— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 90 to 231 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

—EANEE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ez EKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-_Z—+tF+A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
M it FHETT FET
Loss for the year FEEFE (730,803) (445,989)
Other comprehensive income/ HizmEmkzE (BAx)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified HEgngesmoHEBa cEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising BREBIINERHBRREEZ
from translation of financial & i ZE%8
statements of foreign
operations 115,156 (133,720)
Exchange translation reserve i BB A R SN EE R
reclassified to profit or loss ENoBEEER
upon disposal of subsidiaries 41 41,105 -
Share of other comprehensive DIEEEEZEMEE R
income/(expense) of joint (%)
ventures 19 9,208 (9,207)
Total other comprehensive HihzmEkzE (BAX)EHE
income/(expense) 165,469 (142,927)
Total comprehensive expense FEX>HBAXATE
for the year (565,334) (588,916)
Attributable to: AT AL A :
Equity shareholders of the AT E=RBRR
Company (543,192) (529,513)
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 2 (22,142) (59,403)
(565,334) (588,916)

The notes on pages 90 to 231 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REHMBERR X

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FET F&ET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB REHE 15 41,136 46,633
Prepaid lease payments on T AR TR AN K
land use rights 16 710 723
Goodwill 5k 17 - 301,283
Intangible assets mREE 18 - 331
Interests in joint ventures REEPEIER 79 172,220 169,266
Amount due from a joint venture [EUR—HAZMERIE 79 2,393 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AIftHESHEE 20 239,432 288,806
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 21 83 77
Total non-current assets EMBEEMLE 455,974 807,119
Current assets RENEE
Inventories ey 22 17,125 7,956
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 23 388,791 490,836
Utility and other deposits PAFEREMZS 24 1,451,872 1,533,259
Prepayments and other receivables T8 % 218 & H b f& Yz 18 25 1,962,837 1,839,938
Financial assets at fair value BBEREALBENECSREE
through profit or loss 26 - 132
Current tax refundable AREZHBIE 43 -
Cash and bank balances B RIRITH R 27 1,841,219 2,136,962
5,661,887 6,009,083
Assets of the disposal group DEARBIELRECHEMEAZEE
classified as held for sale 14 219,564 2,295,597
Total current assets MEEEBE 5,881,451 8,304,680
Total assets EEHAE 6,337,425 9,111,799
EQUITY EE
Capital and reserves ENTEERRELEERNRHE
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Share capital & A 29 100,285 100,285
Reserves i 37 4,812,857 5,356,049
4,913,142 5,456,334
Non-controlling interests FIERER 28,942 54,843
Total equity AR 4,942,084 5,511,177
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBERRER (&)

At 31 December 2017

RZE—tF+_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF A S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a joint venture ER—R& & ERE 19 66,552 46,195
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEEE 21 45,352 163,245
Convertible bonds Al 2 j% 15 5 35 - 201,740
Total non-current liabilities EMEBERE 111,904 411,180
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERTE 5 RN 32 8,238 1,801
Other payables and accruals Eh FE T FRIE K B RT ARIE 33 70,321 77,271
Bank borrowing RITEE 34 5,362 4,901
Current portion of AR ES 2 mE D
convertible bonds 35 652,309 1,431,040
Obligations under finance leases @& & & 7% 36 - 8,268
Amounts due to related parties FE T A Bt 5 k1B 45 426,252 1,259,967
Current tax liabilities EHNHIEAE 197 2,211
1,162,679 2,785,459
Liabilities directly associated with E 2 EARFERE 2 HEAR 2
the assets of the disposal group BEEEEEBzZBE
classified as held for sale 14 120,758 403,983
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 1,283,437 3,189,442
Total liabilities =RiER 1,395,341 3,600,622
Total equity and liabilities EEhEaEEEHE 6,337,425 9,111,799
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,598,014 5,115,238
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBERE 5,053,988 5,922,357

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized
for issue by the Board on 29 March 2018 and are signed on behalf of

the Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

BRZH

DIRECTOR

BF

The notes on pages 90 to 231 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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RERRETE THTIEETSRREE:
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Boo Chun Lon
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DIRECTOR
=2

#aye

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+F4Ff 8 5



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREH X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Share-
Capital Convertible based Exchange Non-
Share Share redemption bonds payment translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
e TER HRHZA
S R ER REGE RihE HEZRE EXRE REEA & FERER RHEE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TET AT AT iz AT A AT iZ:23
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF-~F-A-Hz&8 99,835 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6329 3015 1,451,736 5,971,157 114,246 6,085,403
Loss for the year FREEE - - - - - - (393,007) (393,007) (52,982) (445,989)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMRERR - - - - - (136,506) - (136,506) (6,421) (142,927)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ] - - - - - (136,506) (393,007) (529,513) (59,403) (588,916)
Recognition of share option benefit at fair value &A% BEDEREET - - - - 10,367 - - 10,367 - 10,367
Issue of new share LR 450 4419 - - - - - 4,869 - 4,869
Transfer to share premium on exercise of REREETENEAZRVEE
share option - 1314 - - (1,314) - - - - -
Lapse of share options ERELH - - - - (6329) - 6,329 - - -
Redemption of convertible bonds (Note 35) BETERER (M) - - - (89,030) - - 88,484 (546) - (546)
Total contributions, distributions and transactions %+ 2 EAREAATEE A
with owners of the Company 2588 450 5733 - (89,030) 2,724 - 94,813 14,690 - 14,690
Balance at 31 December 2016 100,285 4,018,663 3,025 305,257 9,053 (133,491) 1,153,542 5,456,334 54,843 5511177
Balance at 31 December 2016 and I ETZAZT-BR
1 January 2017 “E-tE-R-BrER 100,285 4,018,663 3,025 305,257 9,053 (133,491) 1,153,542 5,456,334 54,843 551,177
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - (704,265) (704,265) (26,538) (730,803)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEB2ANE - - - - - 119,968 - 119,968 1439 124,364
Exchange translation resenve reclassified to profit  HENBAIRERLGEE
or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) ~ EFI A% (Hskar) - - - - - 4,105 - 41,105 - 41,105
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 8 2EU %/ (H%)EE - - - - - 161,073 (704,265) (543,192) (22,140 (565,334)
Redemption of convertible bonds (Note 35) BETARES (MiF35) - - - (184,808) - - 184,808 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) HEMBAR (K1) - - - - - - - - (3759) (3759)
Total contributions, distributions and L& ARAREADAREARS
transactions with owners of the Company bk - - - (184,808) - - 184,808 - (3,759) (3,759)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RB-tE+-A=t-B2zk# 100,285 4,018,663* 3,025% 120,449% 9,053* 21,582* 634,085% 4913142 28,942 4,942,084
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREFROBEGEHBMNAERAZEEFEL
approximately HK$4,812,857,000 in the consolidated statement of 4,812,857,000;% 7T °
financial position.
The notes on pages 90 to 231 are an integral part of these F0E23N B M T B AGAMERE — 5 -

consolidated financial statements.

86 REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

REBRERE XK

HE-_Z—+tF+A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEK
Loss for the year FEEE (730,803) (445,989)
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Taxation B1E 12 210,448 29,898
Interest income FLE WA 5 (9,476) (14,454)
Interest expense FEMAX 8 74,968 132,257
Share of losses of joint ventures DMhEEREEE 19 6,254 187,591
Employee share option benefits 12 B Rk A 30 - 10,367
Impairment losses on goodwill BB A E B 17 301,283 103,923
Impairment loss on available- AHEEeMmEERERE
for-sale financial asset 20 67,617 -
Intangible assets written off & E M 9 - 1,011
Allowance for impairment of BKE ZFERR
trade and other receivables B At JE SRR IR R (E R B 23,25 132,654 238,467
Write-down of inventories 17 & MU 9 - 31,085
Depreciation and amortization EREBHE 9 14,004 61,990
Loss on redemption of BRI RRES ZEE
convertible bonds 5 - 6,151
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZBRFHE
plant and equipment, net 9 215 499
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR z W 41 (165,290) -
Net losses on disposal of HEBBEREANENEZ
financial assets at fair value TREEBIBTFE
through profit or loss 5 - 2,060
Fair value losses on financial BRABREAALENEZ
assets at fair value through CREEZANBEEE
profit or loss 5 132 1,149
Exchange differences fEH =% (5,062) 5,017
Operating cash flows before KR EEESBRBAZRERERE
changes in working capital (103,056) 351,022
Changes in working capital EEESEE
Decrease in financial assets at fair BBEZEAALBENEZ
value through profit or loss TRMEERD - 60,594
Decrease in bank balance — RITHERRL —BILERP
segregated accounts - 330
Increase in inventories FEEm (3,955) (6,950)
Decrease in trade receivables EWE 5 R TR 35,335 272,560
Decrease in utility and other TREERAMZSRD
deposits 82,126 65,759
Increase in prepayments and other B4 7 1B K E b i U F 8 18 A0
receivables 28(a)(iii) (329,063) (309,906)
Increase in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFIE N 69,810 9,518
(Decrease)/increase in other Hoh e OB M ERTEE CRd) S
payables and accruals & (102,966) 187,545
Net cash (used in)/generated BREEK (A FEBRLFE
from operations (351,769) 630,472
Interest received B U F B 9,476 14,454
Interest paid 2ATFE (33,804) (99,421)
Taxation paid [EERE R 28(a)(iir) (6,067) (22,153)
Net cash (used in)/generated BE¥% (A /FMEBRLFE
from operating activities (382,164) 523,352
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Conso|io|ofed Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mEBRERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZT—+F+_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt i FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Net advances to joint ventures NEERERNRIBFE 17,964 -
Proceeds from disposal of Hj’EMTJ;' GRS e
subsidiaries 28(a)i), 41 761,961 -
Purchases of property, BEWE BERZE
plant and equipment (14,888) (25,683)
Addition of prepaid lease 4N+ M 5F R R 2 TR AR A9 1K
payments on land use rights - (2,958)
Deposit paid for acquisition of RBERERFI N 2ES
leasehold building - (169,059)
(Increase)/decrease in fixed bank  FEHIRTEZ () w4
deposits (493,839) 491,429
Payment for acquisition of BUHE I & E N AR E
intangible assets - (153)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWZE KERZEMERIE
plant and equipment 17 783
Investment refund from AHEESREAERERN
available-for-sale financial asset 20 - 1,305
Dividend received from Bl —EEEER
a joint venture 19 - 11,550
Deposit received for disposal of REEREHECEER
assets and liabilities held for sale & @& WEIZ S - 622,100
Purchase of an available-for-sale BE BRI ESHEE
financial asset 20 (925) (556)
Net cash generated from RETEMBRESFE
investing activities 270,290 928,758
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERETREXR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZTE-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
bt FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEED
Issue of shares, EATIRD (FOBREEITRAAN)
net of issuing costs 29 - 4,869
Payments for redemption of W FE B A HR AR & 5 2 AT ROE
convertible bonds 28(b) (867,268) (482,155)
Net advance from a shareholder H—EZRERBRMERFE
loan - 162,000
Net advances from related parties  FA 8B 77 28 (1 2B F 58 28(b) 13,475 357,867
Proceeds from bank borrowing IRITEEMBHE 28(b) 5,958 145,831
Repayments of bank borrowing BERITEE 28(b) (7,300) (70,141)
Repayments of obligations under (EEmREHEEHS
finance leases 28(b) (8,902) (16,652)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEES (A FEREFE
from financing activities (864,037) 101,619
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE RERBELEEY (HD) S
IN CASH AND CASH I hn 7 58
EQUIVALENTS (975,911) 1,553,729
Exchange differences on cash and HRERBEEEW EHZ5
cash equivalents 86,443 (67,713)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BZEL2RELZEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 2,237,048 751,032
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+Z-A=+—-HBHZHREREE
AT 31 DECEMBER ZEY 27 1,347,580 2,237,048

The notes on pages 90 to 231 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%%AA

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

Bt %5 # R MY R

—tFt+=-A=

GENERAL INFORMATION
REXLot Holdings Limited (the
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The

“Company”) was incorporated

principal place of business of the Company during the year was
located at Suite 2601, 26/F, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company changed its
principal place of business to Office A, 32/F, YHC Tower, No.
1 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong with
effect from 23 December 2017.

Pursuant to a group reorganization scheme to rationalize the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) in preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares
“Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

Group in Hong Kong on 15 August 2000 and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from
28 September 2000.

The Group is principally engaged in lottery business comprising
development and production of lottery machines, related
operating software system and networks for lottery industry, the
distribution and marketing of lottery products and development
of paperless electronic lottery platform for lottery business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

“Listing Rules”). A

summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new HKFRSs, amendments
to HKFRSs and interpretation that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Note 2(e)(i)) are stated at their fair values.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see Note 2(x)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
applicable of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

%%AA

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

2.

B mERWE (&)

—tFt+=-A=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(0

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
Note 4.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
"HK$") while the functional
currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD" or

functional currency of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
is Renminbi ("RMB"). The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider the presentation currency in HKD
is more useful for its current and potential investors. All
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income or expense for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 2(n), 2(o)
or 2(p) depending on the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B mERWE (&)

%%AA

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

2.

—tFt+=-A=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9

Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

(i1)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

joint venture (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
(ii) Joint ventures (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(d) and 2(i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognized in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognized immediately in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= Ba

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

B mERWE (&)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii) Joint ventures (continued)
When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognized at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(e)).

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2(i)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable
amount of the purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction cost and gain or loss on
the fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period
which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables’ and ‘cash and bank
balances’ in the consolidated statement of financial
position (Notes 2(k) and 2(1)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and
held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value, which
is their transaction price including attributable
transaction costs. Gain or loss on fair value changes
of available-for-sale financial assets is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortized cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognized directly in profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognized in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognized in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(see Note 2(i)), the cumulative loss is recognized from
equity to profit or loss even though the financial
assets have not been derecognized.

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed
from equity and reclassified to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortization) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on those financial

assets previously recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMB®RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEHBER(E)
(e) Financial assets (continued) (e) SRWEE(E)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) (iii) THAELHBEE (&)

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for
an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such investment is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding investments
directly.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less any impairment losses. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on such instrument, the amount of impairment loss
is measured as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar instrument. Such impairment
losses are not reversed.

Fair value of an instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated
by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something other
than the investment.

After initial recognition, the fair value of an
investment quoted in an active market is based
on the current bid price and, for investments not
quoted in an active market, the Group establishes
the fair value of such investment by using a valuation
technique.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable
willing parties, if available, by reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flows analysis and option
pricing models.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(i)). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and

equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20%
Lottery machines 4 - 12 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6-33%
Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
Motor vehicles 10 - 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in profit or loss in the

period the item is derecognized.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortized
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognized at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(i)). Amortization of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at

cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognized as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired.

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalized if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalized
includes the cost of materials, direct labor, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses. Other development expenditure is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on

the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use

the specific software. These costs are amortized over their

estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer

software programmes are recognized as expenses as

incurred.

Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortized cost or classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognized as follows:

For investments in joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2(c)(ii)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment as a
whole with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 2(i)(ii) below. The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favorable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with Note 2(i)(ii) below.

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortized
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognized in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognized in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortization) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognized in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognized in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognized in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade and other
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognized in profit
or loss.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognized no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating units (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M)

0

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of

the first six months of the financial year. At the end

of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria

as it would at the end of the financial year (Notes 2(i)

(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognized in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognized had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security increases in
the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognized in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labor, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and
all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

M

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (Note 2(i)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either;

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realize the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realize and settle simultaneously.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

THLEFE

2.

FTESHBER(E)
(m) FREHE (&)

EHAEENESERBEBHALITRFE
EERABEREEZIR RRBEHK
EEMRELGLEEM ZRERFE-RLT
MEEEMBBETERR-

BERBEEZREENEREDRR
A WA BE B A R SR B A A B
ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁﬂ*%ﬂ]ﬁ°EHEE§W’J‘E

BEE B A AR T ) A R (B A B ) o

PRIk 3% 8
1 48 B8 B 2

MEE ZBINTEHERER
ZETEER

EHBAERNEERIBEGUREZE
EOREN TTEBE - WARARAEE
BAAERBIAITENAERRAEER
HEMTIAEE WA AT 0 8
EHNAEEARERBEERE N K
HEANBRAERREEREBAAGE:

- WEESMHEAERAM AAFR
ARBEEWFAELEE  RAH
PREEREEAME: %

- WMBELIVBEEERAG MEFE
ERBEER -HBEERALTEHR
—HEBKZERER

- RA-ERVEE: K

- TRERVESE MSHEE
ERBEHAEABELCHAERESR
BEFTEFERAAKE 2 FE
AR RFELERRR
BEESNEERERESBEA
B ZABSEREEREEE
EafE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortized cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component. The values of non-equity derivative
component which are considered as closely related to the
host contract are included in the liability component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds, including the non-equity derivative
component, is measured at fair value which is determined
by reference to the fair value of a similar stand-alone
debt instrument that includes the non-equity derivative
feature but does not have an associated equity conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognized as the liability component (including the non-
equity derivative component) is recognized as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognized directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortized over the periods of the convertible bonds using
the effective interest method.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortized cost. The interest expense recognized in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognized in the convertible bonds reserve until either the
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the convertible

bonds reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognized as
expenses in profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries
have no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end
of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilized by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based compensation

(iv)

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, and a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment

reserve over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options

are exercised.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognized in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognized in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognizes a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee for a
loss the holder of the guarantee incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognized as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognized in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognized in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized
as deferred income is amortized in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognized in accordance with Note 2(r)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognized, less

accumulated amortization.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at date
of acquisition are initially recognized at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognized at the higher of
the amount initially recognized, less accumulated
amortization where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with Note
2(r)(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with Note 2(r)
(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event; it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Gain or loss on investments held for trading
Realized gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognized on a trade date basis whilst unrealized
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognized to restate to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period.

(ii) Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising:
Sales of goods
Sales of goods including lottery machines and related
software systems are recognized when the goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related receivables
are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from lottery business

Income from lottery business including lottery
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance
service and other related services is recognized in the
accounting period in which the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes value added tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognized on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from sales of lottery ticket

Sales of lottery tickets are recognized when the
lottery ticket are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods; the related risks
and rewards of ownership and collectability of the
related receivables are reasonably assured. Revenue
excludes value added tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(s) Revenue recognition (continued) (s)

FTESHBER(E)
AR ()

120

(t

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is
recognized when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognized when the right to receive payment is
established prior to the end of the reporting period.

(v) Subletting income
Subletting income is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the sub-lease.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets to the Group. All other assets are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets,
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease. The corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, on the finance leases are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property, plant
and equipment, except for those properties held to
earn rental income which are classified as investment
properties, in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognized in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment as set out in Note 2(f), except for
the estimated useful lives cannot exceed the relevant
lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognized in profit
or loss over the period of the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the

lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t

Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Leases of land and buildings (continued)

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position as prepaid lease payments on land use rights
which are stated at cost and are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals (if any) are
charged or credited to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(iv) Sale and leaseback resulting in a finance lease

If a sale and leaseback transaction that results in a
finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortized over the
lease term. If the fair value at the time of a sale and
leaseback transaction is less than the carrying amount
of the asset, no adjustment is necessary unless there
has been an impairment in value, in which case the

carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Foreign currency translation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
HKD, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded in the functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures are currencies other than HKD. At
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HKD at the rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss items are translated into HKD
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The exchange differences arising from the translation
are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating
to that particular foreign entity is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognized.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HKD at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HKD at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the Company's statement of financial position,
until they have approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognized as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognized
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups,
are recognized at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognized in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortized.
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows
“Disclosure initiative”

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes “Recognition
of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses”

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current and prior years.
However, additional disclosure has been included in Note 28
to satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative, which require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not early applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (Note 46).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

A. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(i). The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value in use calculations or
their fair value less costs of disposal, whichever is
appropriate, and both bases require the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units, discount rates
and growth rates for present value measurement.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions (Note 17). Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of goodwill and the
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
A. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of available-for-sale

(c)

financial assets

The Group tests annually whether the available-for-
sale financial assets have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(i). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on their fair
value less costs of disposal or by reference to the
recent economical condition and comparable market
consideration, whichever is appropriate, and both
bases require the use of estimates and assumptions
(Note 20). Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets
and the impairment in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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4.

130

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
A. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

(d) Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving

(e)

inventories

The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realizable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the inventories may be obsolete or
slow-moving. The identification of obsolete or slow-
moving inventories requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the inventories and charges in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax
losses of approximately HK$90,493,000 (2016:
HK$106,290,000) was not recognized in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. The
realizability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future.
When the expectation of future profit is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax expenses in the year in which such
determination is made.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
B. Critical judgements in applying the Company’s

accounting policies

(a)

Going concern basis

The Company’s management has considered the
adequacy of the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements concerning the possible outcome
of non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting
period as detailed in Note 49. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the successful in obtaining the funds from Rights
Issue and CB Subscription to fully repay the Bonds (as
defined in Note 35).

The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from
these material uncertainties. Based on the facts
and circumstances as made available thereto, the
Directors are of the opinion that the redemption of
the Bonds which is subject to redemption notices
or maturated will be completed after the CB
Subscription. Accordingly, the Directors consider that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. However,
should the redemption of the Bonds cannot be
completed, and the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments might have to be made
to the carrying values of the Group's assets to state
them at their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
its non-current assets and non-current liabilities to

current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
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4.

132

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

B.

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s
accounting policies (continued)
(b) Recognition of an indirect non wholly-owned

company as an available-for-sale financial asset
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company’s management reassessed whether it had
control or significant influence over the management
including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions over an indirect non wholly-owned
company (the “PRC Company”). This reassessment
requires significant management judgement in
determining if the Group could or could not
exercise control or significant influence over the
PRC Company relating to the matters set out in
either HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
or HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures given the unique nature of the online lottery
business in the PRC. The Directors resolved that the
Group did not have control or significant influence
over the PRC Company. Accordingly, the Group
continues to recognize the PRC Company as an
available-for-sale financial asset (Note 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 5.
(LOSSES), NET
Revenue represents the aggregate of income from provision of

lottery machines and related services and commission income.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and other
gains/(losses), net for the year is as follows:

WA - Hp AU R HE bz (B8) F8E

N
KB o

% R Ko 1 B AR S M A R B 2 A

REBEPRRFERZZ WA~ EAUAA R B AU &=
SBE)FEAFTWMT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue llﬁll
Income from provision of lottery machines and  £2 7% 2 # I 48 78 AR 7% U A
related services 402,305 1,252,144
Other income H A
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R B WA 3,347 10,368
Other interest income EH 4 F B A 6,129 4,086
Sundry income MW A 13,674 11,923
Rental income from sub-letting of HAME >HEzES KA
rented premises 4,185 3,845
27,335 30,222
Other gains/(losses), net Hnlkz  (B18) F8
Net losses on disposal of financial assets HEBBERRANBENEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZEETFRE - (2,060)
Fair value losses on financial assets BBREREALBEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZANEEE (132) (1,149)
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds fE B Al AR 15 5 2 518 (Fi3E35)
(Note 35) - (6,151)
Exchange gain b 5 W % 676 -
544 (9,360)
430,184 1,273,006
Total interest income on financial assets not WHIBBAERERAABHEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRUEE BRI SWA 9,476 14,454
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134

B mERWE (&)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organized by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, i.e. the Group’s Executive Directors, for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance, the Group has presented lottery business as the
reportable segment.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The Board assesses the performance of the business
segments based on loss before taxation without allocation of
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Business Segment ¥EBoE
(a) The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2017 (a) BHE-_ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILEFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2017 are PWEBRN T —EF+_A=+—H
as follows: ZOHEERBENT
As at and for
the year ended
31 December 2017
R=-T—+&F
+ZA=+—HEk
BEZALEE
Lottery business
HEEK
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 402,305
Segment results DEPEE (520,906)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z W 165,290
Net unallocated expenses ROEFAZFE (164,739)
Loss before taxation BREBIRTE 1B (520,355)
Taxation HiE (210,448)
Loss for the year FEEE (730,803)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 5,948,762
Assets of the disposal group classified DEARFIELECLEMRRCEE
as held for sale (Note 14) (FfF=E14) 219,564
Unallocated assets ROBEE 169,099
Total assets EEBE 6,337,425
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities HEEE 172,199
Liabilities directly associated with HYBRBERE cHEAR 2
the assets of the disposal group classified EEEREEAzEE ([HiE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 120,758
Unallocated liabilities KofEaRE 1,102,384
Total liabilities BERHE 1,395,341
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6.

136

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Business Segment (continued) BB (E)
(a) (continued) (a) (&
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT-—XF+-_A=+—BLEFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016 are PWEBRN T —RF+=_A=+T—H
as follows: ZOEHMEERBENRT
As at and for
the year ended
31 December 2016
RZZE—REF
TZA=+T—HK
HEZALEE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 1,252,144
Segment results DEEE (104,549)
Net unallocated expenses ROEFAZFE (311,542)
Loss before taxation BREBIRTE 1B (416,091)
Taxation Bi1E (29,898)
Loss for the year FEERB (445,989)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 6,584,993
Assets of the disposal group classified NEAFIEHEZHEMERCEE
as held for sale (Note 14) (FF5E14) 2,295,597
Unallocated assets ROBEEE 231,209
Total assets BEREA 9,111,799
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities HEEE 277,757
Liabilities directly associated with HEAYBEABELNEZEEARZ
the assets of the disposal group classified BEEEMEBZAE (HiF14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 403,983
Unallocated liabilities RKOBEAE 2,918,882
Total liabilities BEBE 3,600,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business Segment (continued)
(b) Other segment information

6. IWER(E)
EBDE(H)
(b) RfttrEEH

For the year ended
31 December 2017

BE-—ZT—t#F
+=—A=+—H
LEE
Lottery business
KREK
HK$000
FET
Other information H & #

Depreciation and amortization e R iE 13,683
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 301,283
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial asset ~ A {t X & & @& E R EE 1B 67,617

Allowance for impairment of trade and JE W 55 AR 5 T EL i R R TE R (A s 1R
other receivables 132,654
Capital expenditure EARAZ 1,308
For the year ended
31 December 2016
HE-T—KRF
+ZA=+—H
IFFE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET

Other information Hih &R

Depreciation and amortization e R H 61,990
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEIE 103,923

Allowance for impairment of trade and FEWE 5) AR 1 K H th JE WK TR (E B
other receivables 238,467
Capital expenditure BEARAE 2,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical Segments
In terms of geographical location, 100% of the Group’s revenue
is attributable to the market in the PRC.

Total non-current assets by location are as follows:

FEER (&)
ih & 7 I
BHEMS  NEE100% U ARR T E ML -

BiwRE D ZIFRBDEELEMT :

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —T—X

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

PRC 2l 421,439 773,515

Hong Kong BE 34,452 33,527

455,891 807,042

Deferred tax assets RIS E 83 77
Total non-current assets per consolidated REMBIKRARARSERESEELE

statement of financial position 455,974 807,119

Information About Major Customers

During the year, the Group had transactions with four (2016: nil)
customers from lottery business who each contributed over 10%
of the Group's total revenue for the year. A summary of revenue
earned from each of these major customers is set out below:

FHTEREFZEH
FRNAEEEYEEBINAR (ZT-RF:F)
BEEHEAEBRFAEWRAI0%A EZEFHETT
ZXH kKB LMBERETERP ZWRABEZEHIIN
T

2017 2016

—ZE—+tF ZTE—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer 1 =PI 71,098 N/ATNGE Y
Customer 2 B2 67,500 N/ATE R
Customer 3 ®F3 45,000 N/AAS ji# FR #
Customer 4 BF4 44,000 N/AR 3 R *
227,598 N/AAS i F

# The corresponding revenue of the related customers did not # TRRAE P 2 A8 FE U AT FE 46 75 52 [ 48 4 A 10% BA

contribute over 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE
STAFF COSTS 7. BIRK
2017 2016
—E—+F T—XRE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR REENZ 69,592 122,855
Bonuses TE4L 18,214 14,174
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAE FIFT IR 6,248 11,933
Severance payments %%ﬁl% 604 899
Social security costs @ REE R AR 4,484 9,407
Employee share option benefits & B fi i 4@ - 10,367
99,142 169,635
FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEA
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET F&ET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBELFE 970 4,928
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 35) AR ESF B (H5E35) 50,158 126,308
Acceleration of unwinding interest on DR PTHR AR & 5 F) S8 | (M9 5E35)
convertible bonds (Note 35) 19,176 -
Interest on a shareholder loan (Note 45) REREFF B (M5E45) 4,562 1,020
Finance charges on obligations under MEBEEEB 2MBEE
finance leases 102 1
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities I[jFLiE?E SIRAREREZ
not at fair value through profit or loss TRBEZAFEMXZ 74,968 132,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

9.

140

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

9. KRBAERE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group's loss before taxation is stated RE BB ATE BN 25 51 2 Hkk
after charging the following: IAT&IE
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN &
- audit services —BZRH 3,262 3,429
- non-audit services —EEZARTE 400 350
— under-provision of non-audit services —EEZRBEETT 50 -
Cost of inventories sold (Note 22(b)) HEFE 2R (MiFE22(b)) 185,533 477,393
Depreciation and amortization on IATIEB 2 4T & R
— property, plant and equipment —ME WERZE
— owned assets —-BERE 12,425 40,217
— leased assets —HEEE - 6,084
— prepaid lease payments on land use rights — i R TR R AV R 91 990
— intangible assets —EREE 1,488 14,699
Exchange losses M H 518 - 53,091
Intangible assets written off A E M - 1,011
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BFE KRB EEFE
equipment, net 215 499
Operating lease rentals in respect of NTHIBEZKEHEEER
— office premises and warehouses -WMAEMEREE 13,795 23,096
— machinery — 23 8,671 8,721
Research and development costs W9t e R B A A 37,048 1,449
Write-down of inventories 5 & HUR - 31,085
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) EENeREES (RREH) E383(NK K
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (RRAI(BBEEERREER) BH) F23HEEN
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2017
Name of Directors EEpg Fees in kind bonus contributions Total
e 2K BIKER —E—+tF
ok BERE WMETEA sTEIftR mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FEx FET
Executive Directors HITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor BRI - 6,709 1,009 18 7,736
BOO Chun Lon N3 200 - - - 200
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
YUEN Wai Ho B & 5 200 - - - 200
CHOW Siu Ngor BNE 200 - - - 200
LEE Ka Lun FRE 200 - - - 200
800 6,709 1,009 18 8,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

10. EEM= (&)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share
and benefits  Discretionary scheme option 2016
Name of Directors EENE Fees in kind bonus  contributions benefits Total
e 2R RIKEH NS
e BEME BT A BRERER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTES
CHAN How Chung, Victor S - 7,653 483 18 146 8,300
BOO Chun Lon AR #E 200 - - - 146 346
Independent Non-executive YV FEHITES
Directors
YUEN Wai Ho g 5 200 - - - 146 346
CHOW Siu Ngor ;B/NE 200 - - - 146 346
LEE Ka Lun FRB 200 - - - 146 346
800

7,653

There was no arrangement under which any Director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the years. In addition,

no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the Directors

as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office (2016: HK$Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2016: one) was a Director of the Company whose
emoluments were included in the disclosures in Note 10 above.

1. EEEESFMAL

AEEREESHFMALZTEE-—R(ZF
—RF I CR)ARAER HMESEHN LEX
MEI0ZEEER -HEBOE (ZT—XF: 0

The emoluments of the remaining four (2016: four) individuals BIANLTZBIEMT
were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUEREENZ 7,924 5,299
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKAR A ET B AR 72 55
Employee share option benefits EEEKRERT - 7,884
7,996 13,238

Their remuneration was within the following bands: BEZHeHBRRT :
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZTE—RF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE B8 AZ
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L =1,500,000/7%8 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7L £2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7L £3,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T £4,000,0007 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7t £5,000,000/%8 7T - 1
4 4
In addition to the above and Note 10, one employee was BEXRMFI0MMEN REE-F— X F

granted share options of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016. Details of the share option scheme are set out

in Note 30.
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B mERWE (&)

12. TAXATION

144

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits derived from Hong Kong during the year
(2016: 16.5%).

One (2016: two) of the subsidiaries, E /M4 SRR H R A 7
(Guangzhou Latech Technology Co. Ltd.*) (2016: &M 1 4415 55
B2 AR Q7] (Guangzhou Latech Technology Co. Ltd.*) and %
Y71 B4 B F il A BR A B(Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co.
Ltd.*)), of the Group’s lottery business in the PRC is entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% as it is recognized as high
technology enterprises for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 15%).

In the current year, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
are entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 10% (2016:
10%). The applicable income tax rate for other subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC is 25% (2016: 25%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

12. BiE

HAAREERNFALEREBEZERTEA
M (22— RF 1216.5% )RR A B B8R
RAHRE BN S ESE

AEEBYEXBHMAPEZ —H(ZF—X
ﬁiﬁlﬁf‘ﬁ)W%“ﬁfﬂ‘l‘lﬁ%%%ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@u
(ZZ—RF-EMTLEHBREGR QAR
ﬂl\mFE%%{%F&TTJ%EE"‘T)EW5%(*%
—RFE 5% )EBEABHE - REARZRAR
BE-Z—tF+ A=+ -HALFERATE
REEmek-

‘\ZlifF“'K%IH:FEPWE“_TEﬁW%

T—RF:10% ) 2BEME cAREEAE
‘rﬁl':F'EWJ%QﬂZiEFﬁFﬁ fRiF%ZS% -z
—RE:25%) e

KRG W R AR 2 TRIBREE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: EHBIE:
Hong Kong profits tax BABNEH - 765
PRC income tax on disposal of HEMB AR ZPREMEE (HiEa1)
subsidiaries (Note 41) 215,200 -
PRC income tax PR ATE R 4 32,804
(Over)/under-provision BAFE (BBERE) BETE FE
in respect of previous years, net (5,234) (1,707)
209,970 31,862
Deferred tax: IRFERIE
Deferred taxation relating to the origination BHEARBEERER
and reversal of temporary differences RIERTE (FiFE21)
(Note 21) 478 (1,964)
478 (1,964)
Taxation charge TIE H 210,448 29,898

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMB®RRHME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. BiE(E)

The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from

$‘i@ﬁ%%}%ﬁﬁE?TEZﬁIﬁéﬁifﬁﬁiZ@%E (LAE

the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic AREAEANRARIEBBRZ MM EAE) 2 25
taxation rates applicable to loss of the consolidated companies I
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T -RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Loss before taxation KR AT E 1B (520,355) (416,091)
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of RS E16.5%

16.5% (2016:16.5%) (=% /\E 16.5% ) st E 2 B8 (85,859) (68,655)
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation BERBRBA 2 RIBRZE (3,674) (3,074)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR MBI o MIBBHE

taxation purposes 111,652 153,324
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses B AMEEE BB E (175) (4,156)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RAERERHER MBS

recognized 806 4,882
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized RERTIBEBE HIETE 3,333 7,276
Tax effect of share of losses/(profits) of PMEEERERBE Cafl) 2BIEFE

joint ventures 1,034 (71)
PRC income tax on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR ZHEMED 215,200 -
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FREINEAREBEMER R 2 VE

the PRC subsidiaries (27,039) (55,252)
Over-provision of current tax in previous year — +—FE & i EBEREE (5,234) (1,707)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERLE ZWB AR Z

operating in other jurisdictions TR EZE 404 (2,669)
Taxation charge I K 210,448 29,898
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZZT—+F+_A=+—HIEFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
Group's loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

13. BREE

(a)

BREXEE
BREABEIEARNFEZERRESAR
SEFEBERAFACETID Z NE
FIHBMEHE-

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of AR BB EREIGEE (THET)
the Company (in thousand HKD) (704,265) (393,007)
(Adjusted)

(ERE)

Weighted average number of ordinary ERTERR 2 MEFLHE (TR) :

shares in issue (in thousand):

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BZze2E&TE
Effect of share options exercised EITHEEREZZE
Weighted average number of ordinary RtZA=+—Bz&R®

shares at 31 December (in thousand) IniEFHE(FR’R)
Basic loss per share BREXREE

The basic and diluted loss per share for current and prior
reporting periods have been adjusted as a result of rights
issue completed on 20 March 2018 as set out in Note
49(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss
per share as the computation of diluted loss per share
does not assume the exercise of the convertible note and
the Company's share options, since their conversion and
exercise would result in an anti-dilutive effect on loss per
share during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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(b)

10,156,247 10,110,674
- 9,657
10,156,247 10,120,331

(6.93) centsflls (3.88) centsfll
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&55 THEHCEREAREEBERD

HEE o

ﬁm

EREEESE
REBEE_ZT—+tFER=-_TE—X~"F+=A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP 14. PEARARBFEHEZHEMABZEE EF

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

1. On 4 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 1. RZE—AR"F—AWEB AXAR—@E2
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as & HE" 7] B2 BF B 75 Sunjet Investments
supplemented and amended on 23 February 2016 and 2 Limited ([Sunjet]) (— & & F/R AR E *
August 2016) (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with ERRVESFHAAERR)FIL—ME
a related party, Sunjet Investments Limited (“Sunjet”), BEm(RZE-—R"F_A=-+=ZBEKZ=
in which a director (also a substantial shareholder) of T-RENAZBAEREER) ([EEWH
the Company has beneficial interest, for the disposal of # 1) LA & Multi Glory Limited ([Multi
entire interests in Multi Glory Limited (“Multi Glory”) and Glory 1) 2 2 & # &= & Multi Glory# R 7K
the loan due from Multi Glory to the Group for a cash SEEF RE&RER2,150,000,000%
consideration of HK$2,150,000,000 (the “Disposal”). T(lHEeEsE) - FA(([EAH]ERE
Restructuring (the “Restructuring”) was carried out to put EEETKAET UEBELEE (EER
the Sinodata Group (as defined below) in place before TX)RKI e REAE - Multi Glory BB %
completion of the Disposal. After the Restructuring, F2EMB R BFRERYIT B LEEIE S
Multi Glory, through certain wholly-owned subsidiaries, ERABIREETZE FE2EWE AR
held 100% interest in AR B £ B & TG R Q& (TXHWIBEER]) 2100%E = - B
(Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co. Ltd.*) and its certain SDEECIZEBRRTBERERBRES
wholly-owned/non-wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereinafter MELEBETEER G ARERHEEERS R
collectively referred to as the “Sinodata Group”). The RBESF - HESHEN _T—+F A%
principal activities of the Sinodata Group are design and Bo-BNEERIRTK  BEEEETER
provision of lottery systems and equipment for lottery in KRRz MEBAR (KMH41) E—FFHEF
the PRC for traditional Welfare Computer Ticket Games HRART EIHH’\)E':U?%_i—/‘_\i—ﬂﬁ
operations. The Disposal was completed in February H ZZ—AR"F-AZ+=H -ZF—<F
2017. As a result of the completion of the Disposal, the =AZ+hB -ZF— /_\EV_EUE] +rB-
Sinodata Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company —T— /\iﬂﬁi +hB - =Z%— f\itﬂ
(Note 41). Further details are set out in the Company's il P = —~NFENAZB- —+
announcements dated 5 January 2016, 23 February 2016, F—ANA ‘:?—ti—ﬂ Z‘i’t A&
29 March 2016, 29 April 2016, 19 May 2016, 27 July —E— - A+WAZAGURBEA
2016, 2 August 2016, 9 January 2017, 27 January 2017 ZE-RFEZAZTABRZZT—RFAN
and 14 February 2017 respectively and circulars dated 29 A=+HZEXK
February 2016 and 30 September 2016.

2. On 28 December 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 2. RZE—tEHF+_A=Z+NH KAF
the Company, Huge Top Enterprises Inc. (“Huge Top") 2 2 & W B QA Huge Top Enterprises
entered into a memorandum of understanding with an Inc. ([Huge Topl) B — B F =
independent third party (the “Buyer”), for the disposal of F(TERIFTIL—HmBEESS B
entire equity interests in Pentium Win Limited, Jertford i & M Pentium Win Limited - Jertford
Development Limited, Global Essence Technology Limited, Development Limited B2 B & B R
Joson Limited Luxjoy Overseas Limited, Hilson Gold AR 4B QA Luxjoy Overseas
Limited, AT RIK{E EAZAERAT, RIINEFERK Limited  Hilson Gold Limited * &I/ X ik
BB AR and 77i<ﬂlim$iiﬂiﬂ¢&ﬂqﬁﬁﬁ”&ﬁ (Shenzhen EEHAAERAT R EAEREER
Kingsail Software Tech Co., Ltd.*) (hereinafter collectively n R ERIT iiilfi $Ai¢i§iﬁ]ﬁl‘ﬁ@ al (A
referred to the “Kingsail Group”) for a cash consideration THBIeNEE]) 22HKRE ReRE
to be further negotiated with the Buyer. A E R — B ER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

2. (continued)
Upon completion of the disposal of Kingsail Group, it is
estimated that the proceeds on the disposal of Kingsail
Group would close to or exceed the carrying amount of
the net assets of the Kingsail Group, and accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognized on the net assets
which were classified as assets held for sale as at the end
of the reporting period.

The results of the Sinodata Group and Kingsail Group classified
as held for sale that are included in the consolidated income

statement are shown as below:

14. PEARARBFEHEZHEMABIZEE BF

(#&)

2.

(&)

RHESNERTREZ HitHESNE
Bz RESeRANBH SN EBF
EEZEHE RTEANBREHRSE
REEHEEEZ B WFEERREMAM
BEERE-

AR ARERZ D ERABIFHEZ REEE
LENEEZZEHIIRMT

2017 2017 2017 2016
—E—tF “E-tF “E-tF —E-RF
Sinodata Kingsail Sinodata
Group Group Total Group
B4KE AT Bt fE2 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year: FE (FB) 8
Revenue A 35,830 - 35,830 486,643
Cost of sales/services rendered HE/IRBREZRA (21,061) - (21,061) (214,004)
Other income and other HEtM AL R A M2/
gains/(losses), net (B#E)FE 1 3,316 3,317 11,315
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (1,297) - (1,297) (21,009)
Administrative expenses TBER (15,892) (7,222 (23,114) (126,772)
Operating (loss)/profit T8 (BE)/BA (2,419) (3,906) (6,325) 136,173
Finance costs HKER (647) - (647) (3,859)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBIAT (B1R) RA (3,066) (3,906) (6,972) 132,314
Taxation BB 3,295 (326) 2,969 (22,300)
(Loss)/profit for the year E£E (BR) /87 229

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERME (&)

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-Z

—tFt+t=-A=

THLEFE

14. PEARABEHEZHEMABIZEE BF

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) (&)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Sinodata Group RTZRAR=1T—HoBARIFHEZEEER
and Kingsail Group classified as held for sale as at 31 December EeMEBE s EERBREFEZEMNET:
are as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZTE—RF
Kingsail Sinodata
Group Group
2MES BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE K& - 117,459
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights 3t (50 R i 2 TR R A R - 41,853
Goodwill [EES - 1,026,795
Intangible assets mVEE - 22,054
Deposit for acquisition of leasehold building KWEREEF 2 RS - 169,511
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE - 5,963
Inventories & - 98,474
Trade receivables FEULE S ER X - 84,692
Amount due from related parties JE U5 B Bt U SR IE 1,147 -
Utility and other deposits NAZEREMES - 103,393
Prepayments and other receivables TE SR IR & B b R WUGR IR 218,217 525,317
Cash and bank balances (Note 27) W MIRITER (H5E27) 200 100,086
Assets of the disposal group DERFIELHEZHEMARNZEE
classified as held for sale 219,564 2,295,597
Liabilities =N
Trade payables e B ZERN - (44,397)
Other payables and accruals EL 5T 3B K FEETRIE (1,758) (202,759)
Bank borrowings RITIEE - (137,456)
Current tax liabilities ”‘Hﬂfﬂlﬁﬁ & - (18,731)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 21(a)) REFHBEE (M5E21@0)) (119,000) (640)
Liabilities directly associated with HAOBEARELHEZHEERZ
the assets of the disposal group EEEEREBZEE
classified as held for sale (120,758) (403,983)
Net assets of the disposal group DEARIELEZHEMERN ZFEAE
classified as held for sale 98,806 1,891,614
At 31 December 2016, bank loans of approximately RZE—RNF+_A=+—HB BLEEY

HK$55,556,000 in Sinodata Group were secured on leasehold
buildings and land use rights in the PRC for the carrying
values of approximately HK$16,689,000 and HK$26,678,000

respectively.

At 31 December 2016, a Company's director, Mr. Chan How
Chung, Victor (“Mr. Chan") had given personal guarantee in
respect of bank borrowings of HK$81,900,000 for Sinodata

Group.

Annual Report 2017 =&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

150

15. V¥ - BMERKZE

Leasehold
buildings
in the PRC
erected on Furniture,
long term Leasehold Lottery  fixtures and Plant and Motor
lease  improvements machines  equipment machinery vehicles Total
RREEE
RABERZ HENE G %8 BER
HERT %8 ¥R e Ha RE &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEn TET TET TET FET TET FET
Cost HA
At 1 January 2016 RZZ2-"%-A-H 2,171 20,202 338 20,511 121,862 5788 171,472
Exchange realignment SMEFE - (574) “ (1,127) (5359) (280) (7,344)
Additions HE - 704 - 893 89 426 2919
Disposals and written off & R - (6,168) (334) (3.343) (3,103) (942) (13,890)
At 31 December 2016 and RIE-RETZAZH-HER
1 January 2017 —“5$-tf-F-H 2,171 14,164 - 16,934 114,29 4,992 153,157
Exchange realignment MEFE - 398 - 1,128 5,697 305 7,528
Additions HE - 763 - 545 - - 1,308
Disposals and written off e - (2,49 - (1,144) @) - (3,397)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t#+ZA=t-H 2,1 13,076 - 17,463 119,989 5297 158,596
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-"%-A-A 150 17,299 - 16,604 73,994 4,154 112,201
Exchange realignment SMEFE - (434) - (918) (2,494) (218) (4,064)
Charge for the year REETH 93 1472 - 1,383 7,517 634 11,099
Disposals and written off HERHE - (6,168) - (3418) (2,383) (743) (12,712)
At 31 December 2016 and RIE-RETZA=T-HER
1 January 2017 —E-t4%-f-H 243 12,169 - 13,651 76,634 3,827 106,524
Exchange realignment INEFZ - 265 - 956 3,068 25 4534
Charge for the year REEH 9 569 - 1,086 7,457 363 9,567
Disposals and written off I E R 8 - (2,249) - (912) ) - (3,165)
At 31 December 2017 R=Z-tE+=A=1-H 335 10,754 - 14,781 87,155 4,435 117,460
Net book value RERE
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t£+ZA=t+-AH 2,436 2,322 - 2,682 32,834 862 41,136
At 31 December 2016 RIZB-RETZAZT-H 2,528 1,995 - 3,283 37,662 1,165 46,633

Plant and machinery with carrying value of HK$Nil (2016:
HK$31,288,000) are held under a sales and leaseback

agreement (Note 36).

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS

17.

16. TERAEZAMNEHNRK

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H 755 755
Accumulated amortization g £
At 1 January R—H—H 32 20
Amortization for the year FEHH 13 12
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 45 32
Net book value REFE
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 710 723

The Group's interest in leasehold land and land use rights is

outside Hong Kong with long term lease.

AEEREEL MR MERBEZESZLNE

BLASME R WRBERMAERA -

GOODWILL 17. &8
2017 2016
—ZT—+tF T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost A
At 1 January and 31 December WR—A—BE+=ZA=+—H 1,293,057 1,293,057
Accumulated impairment losses ZitBEER
At 1 January m—A—8 991,774 887,851
Impairment losses VEREY SE 301,283 103,923
At 31 December R+—-—R=+—H 1,293,057 991,774
Carrying value at 31 December R+-A=+—BzKREHE - 301,283
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REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

152

The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill
arising from acquisition of investments in lottery business and is
included in the lottery business segment. The carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating units as
follows:

17.

BE(E)

HEZEHERRBREERB 2REMES
ZEEB HAXREBOB -BHEREELRT
T ADEEReELSEMLAR:

2017 2016
—E—+tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Multiple units without significant goodwill WEEAFE LB - 301,283

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition of investments in lottery business by reference to the
higher of cash-generating units’ value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal and determined the impairment for the cash-
generating units mentioned below. The calculations of value in
use require the use of cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering the operation
periods of 5 years (2016: 5 years) or contractual periods of 9
years (2016: 10 years) with pre-tax discount rates ranging from
17.80% to 22.24% (2016: 18.23% to 18.95%) per annum.
The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to the
businesses and the terminal value growth rate of 3% (2016:
3%) is in line with the forecasts adopted by the lottery industry.

The management believed that the projected cash flows based

on financial budgets/forecasts for periods by 5 or 9 years (2016:
5 or 10 years) are reliable.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

RBRASEZEHBE AEBEEL2RASESL
BUZERAEBEAAABERIERE (UREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

17. GOODWILL (continued)
(i) Year ended 31 December 2017

a.

Impairment in relation to lottery machine
production business unit

The overall operating environment of the market for
lottery machine production has been worsening since
2016. For the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the performance of this business unit was
unsatisfactory due to the continuous slowdown
in equipment replacement cycle, keen market
competition and strong pricing pressure. This business
unit recorded a decline in total number of units sold,
average unit price and profit margins during the year

under review.

The Company engaged an independent valuer
to prepare a valuation of this business unit. The
independent valuer determined the recoverable
amount by calculating the value in use of this
business unit based on the budget prepared
and approved by the management, applying the
discounted cash flow valuation method. It applied a
pre-tax discount rate of 17.80% per annum and the
terminal value growth rate of 3%.

For the purposes of the valuation, the management
prepared financial budgets for 2018 to 2023 based
on (i) the market conditions and performance of this
business unit in 2017 and (ii) the expected market
trend. Due to the difficult operating environment
in 2017, the projected cash flow forecasted to be
generated from this business unit was lower than
that forecasted in previous years and this in turn
affected the recoverable amount of this business unit.
The Company recognized full impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$185,505,000.

17. H& (&)
(i) BE=2—+tF+=-A=1+—-HLEE

a.

BRERHEEXEBENZHE

FERLETSEREERREA _Z
—REUR-—BEEE-BE_T—t
F+ZR=+—HILUBEE BN
REBEBBMHERE THRFH
URGEBENIMR B EBELZ
RIARIMIBAR o B 275 B8 0 ] R 5F
NZBEHEBEM A FHEMER
KA RIG8AG TR -

ARAREZE—BB Y EEMBRI
EBBNZEE - ZBLGEEMBE
BEAUBRESREGEL ERE
BERERIEZFEEFELERE
Uz {EREME NBEEATRESEE-
ZEEMEEREFE17.80% .2 BiAl
BB R R3%ZKABHEERE -

REEmMS EEEBEDERGO-Z
—tFzmRARNEREMRER &
(NVESMmEEERH - \FEZ
T CEZHREE- AR T+t
FRERBNE WU EBEMEE
EZHERSREBABRNBEFE
ZTER TR BN EEEA 2 AT
Bl&E - ARAICHREHBEERE
E51849185,505,0007% JC
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

154

(M)

Year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Impairment in relation to Scratch Cards printing
business unit

The national Welfare Scratch Cards sales dropped
for the third year in a row in 2017. The year-on-
year decrease in national Welfare Scratch Cards sales
further widened from 8.4% in 2016 to 15.3% in
2017. National Welfare Scratch Cards sales in 2017
had decreased by approximately RMB3.65 billion
compared to that in 2015. The performance of the
Group’s Scratch Cards printing business unit was
affected by the unsatisfactory performance of the
national Welfare scratch cards market.

In the impairment review on goodwill attributable
to this business unit, the Company engaged an
independent valuer to prepare a valuation of this
business unit. The independent valuer calculated the
value in use of this business unit based on the budget
prepared and approved by the management, applying
the discounted cash flow method. It applied a pre-tax
discount rate of 22.24%.

The management prepared a financial budget for
this business unit for nine years, up to 2026 as the
Group has the printing contract which is valid until
2026. As a result of the further deterioration of the
Scratch Cards market in 2017, the projected cashflow
forecasted to be generated from this business unit
was lower than that forecasted in previous year. This
led to a decrease in the recoverable amount. The
Company recognized full impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately HK$108,826,000 of this business
unit.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

17. BE (8)

(M)

S
(&)
b.

“E—tHF+ZA=+—-HLFE

BB B 52 £ Jo) 3 75 BE v 2 Bl 18

2EBEVIAREEER T —tF
BEE-FTK -2EBHEHZH
EERFREBEHRH T —NF284%
BAEZZE—+EF2153% =&
—tFZ2EAREHERR %
—RFERIHAREIESTET
PEBHAFEEMBERRAMNERS
FEAEENRAZORNEBBEMNZ R
o

FHEBEMREFEEZAERS
FOARARBEE-EZB L HEMR
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MEEAMRBESRER ERNEE
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ZEREE - ZGEMEER22.24%
ZHATARIR R o

ERAEBE R HRIA 48 %
EE-_RFhRI EEEBEAKLE
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—tFE—FEE R EBEME
EEZHEER S REBAIRENBE
FEZER SHATKE ST
AAREHRLEBSEMN 228 HE
BB 518 47108,826,000/8 7T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. GOODWILL (continued)

SEMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

17. BE (8)

(i) Year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) (i) BE-FT—tF+-A=+—HLEE
(%)

Impairment in relation to Sports video lottery ¢ BREERBEXEXEHENZHE
business unit
The Sports video lottery business unit commenced CERBYEEBENR _T—AF
business in 2015, and is engaged in the provision of FREL HEFRHBERBEYER
Sports video lottery terminals and related services. iy N AR R PR 7% o
The performance of this business unit did not grow REBEZ-_Z—+tF+-A=+—H1k
as expected during the financial year ended 31 MHFE WEBEGL2RRREE
December 2017 and recorded a loss. This was due HIEAE RS E B o b Th R H
to the unfavorable operating environment of the BYEMSKEREEEAFRETR
PRC lottery market since last year, the slowdown of R Eﬁﬁ WA BT S WE AR E
the Sports video lottery market and the increase in BAKARIE AT B -
operating costs.
The Company considered these factors in the RAATRBU EBEEGEEET
impairment review of the goodwill attributable to BERNKEEEZEREZ 1EA
this business unit and forecasted that its performance ﬁi@iﬁ’\ﬂixglfwg?i BRERAK
would continue to be unsatisfactory in the coming NG| UL EBEMNEREER
years. The Company considered that it is appropriate = /J'MEEETE 496,952,000 T E B 1A
to recognize full impairment loss on the goodwill =
of approximately HK$6,952,000 attributable to this
business unit.

(i) Year ended 31 December 2016 (i) BE-2-AE+-A=1+-RLEE

AEBEG -—EXTERERZEZEART
LREZRCELBEUECSZHMEF
W EB-EAYRPOITIZEAFRERX
EHERERRRBES SHEXEBL-
Hit  AEECHIABE2HBERBR
103,923,000/ 7T ©

One of the Group's cash-generating units which was
principally engaged in lottery distribution and marketing
service was fully impaired. During the year, a material
contract related to lottery distribution with a lottery center
expired without renewal which aggravated its business
performance. Accordingly, full impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$103,923,000 was recognized.

PREFZRJAZEBEDEEBHERERK
T8 2 FHE - A IASNER Ko 3 R A B AR 2 S B
BREE-

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends in the lottery
industry and are based on historical data from both external and
internal sources.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BLEE
Computer
software
B
HK$'000
FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"FE—A—H 5,113
Exchange realignment SN 3 B (274)
Written off 58 (1,519)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RF+ZA=+—HK
—E—t+tF—H—H 3,320
Exchange realignment SMNEE 38 2 255
At 31 December 2017 R=ZF-—t&+=A=+—8H 3,575
Accumulated amortization ZETE
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—HA—H 3,193
Exchange realignment SN EE 38 B (213)
Charge for the year REE LW 517
Written back on write off ] i 85 i 42 1=l (508)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—RF+A=+—HEK
—E—+F—HF—H 2,989
Exchange realignment SN HE ) B 241
Charge for the year REEZ W 345
At 31 December 2017 R=B—tH+=BA=+-—H 3,575
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tH+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2016 RZTE—RF+ZA=+—H 331
Computer software of carrying value of HK$Nil (2016: BREEZET (ZZT—NF:331,0008T) 28
HK$331,000) is the intangible assets acquired and possessed by e AR EEGRERREECENEE %
the lottery business. The intangible assets have definite useful BELEEEBRTEARER  WIRMAGAAFR
lives and are amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 TE(ZE—RF: TF)#H-

years (2016: 10 years).
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REELXZER

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets of joint ventures: DheEhEEEFE:

Balance as at 1 January R—RA—BzZ#&#% 169,266 377,614
Impairment loss on goodwill HEBERIE - (122,396)
Share of losses of joint ventures AhEEREEE (6,254) (65,195)

Share of other comprehensive income/(expense) D {h& &% 7 Hib 2 E U,
of joint ventures (A%) 9,208 (9,207)
Dividend received BB E - (11,550)
Balance as at 31 December Rt-_A=+—B2&% 172,220 169,266
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRG R 269,077 269,077
Amount due from a joint venture JEW — & & hERIE 2,393 -
Amount due to a joint venture N —EeEEENRE 66,552 46,195

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, full impairment
losses of goodwill and intangible assets with carrying
value amounting to approximately HK$122,396,000 and
approximately HK$58,823,000 respectively included in
the interests in joint ventures were recognized in profit or
loss due to the keen market competition and unfavorable
operating environment in scratch card market. The carrying
amounts of the interests in joint ventures exceeded their
recoverable amounts of approximately HK$170,000,000.
Pre-tax discount rate of 18.32% and terminal value growth
rate of 3% had been used in the calculation of the value in
use of the interests in joint ventures.

The amounts due from/to joint ventures are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment/
settlement. In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts
due would not likely be recovered/repaid in the following

year and are therefore shown as non-current.

(@) BEZZ—XR"F+=-_A=+—HLEFE"
HREEMSZTERFANRLELER
BRE REEh¥EsERKREEBRRELA
g[8l 4 6 47170,000,0005# 7 » #HR & L1
¥ HEEZNEEES R A#%122,396,000
70 M 4958,823,0008 T2 E REFRE
EEZ2EGHRRAERE TR BRAER -
REtEREehXE s ER 2 FEREBER
REEABEIE R18.32% RiFEE R R3Y%
FTHE -

(b) B NELEEFELAEIER 28K
WEIEEER TEER -EER A B
RN KA RER R FWREEE - Fit
SMEIERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

19.

158

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

19. REE

hxzERE (F)
REGUBBRRAUEDEARZIAKRERE
BhEZESFBET:

Place of Principal Particulars of Effective
incorporation/ activities and issued/registered interest
Name registration place of operation and paid up capital held
BR#T/EMK
EmREL TEEBR BHRRE ER
=L = il 3th B EE3 3] s RS
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd. British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 4 ordinary shares of 50%
KERXES in the PRC US$1 each
P BETTIR B2 R ARBREEIET
28
Success Trader Technologies Limited Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary shares of 50%
BERRBRAAF EE in the PRC HK$10,000
R BETIREER 10,0008 7L 2 E @K
FEMBREER ORI BERQA PRC Investment holding US$12,000,000 50%
H in the PRC 12,000,000 7T
R B ITREER
RINENBHRERAR AR PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
i in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
R BETIREER
ERXEFNBREARAA PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB89,180,000 50%
(Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co, Ltd.*) R equipments in the AR #89,180,0007T

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REgELEER (B)
The Group's share of the results of its joint ventures (in AEE HE= JJ:% (FMBEITBERZE
aggregate for all individually insignificant joint ventures), its R ﬂZ BEERBEOAT:
aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Group's effective interest AEBZER#ER 50% 50%
Revenue WA 113,998 112,389
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE - (122,396)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEEREEE - (58,823)
Loss from continuing operations REFBLEEG 2 EE (12,509) (130,391)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Himz2mks (FAx) 18,416 (18,413)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2EWRE, (X)) 858 5,907 (148,804)
Group's share of total comprehensive AEESEE2ER(FAX) B8
income/(expense) 2,954 (74,402)
Dividend received from a joint venture P —HEeERERE - 11,550
Non-current assets FERBEE 117,725 155,515
Current assets MENE E 261,871 197,106
Current liabilities mBaE 35,156 14,089
Equity 7 344,440 338,532
Group's share of joint ventures’ equity REBS(hEELEER 172,220 169,266
Carrying amount in the consolidated REFE M BEHRERANZREE
financial statements 172,220 169,266
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's WEABARERGECEIERIIABE

interests in the joint ventures, and no contingent liabilities of the

joint ventures themselves.

BELERGTELAREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

19.

20.

160

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
At 31 December 2017, the Group’s share of joint ventures’

future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

19. REELEZERE (8)

R-Z—tF+-A=+—H AEEShAE
CERBIAURHELEMEERMN 2 KK KER

W REEIT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings T R T
Within one year —F R 31 426
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. AIHHEESHMEE
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FLETRE  BEAE
Balance at 1 January R—A—HBz#&& 288,806 307,810
Exchange realignment SN BE 37 B 17,318 (18,255)
Addition (Note (a)) RNE (M5t @)) 925 556
307,049 290,111
Less: Investment refund IR EERR - (1,305)
307,049 288,806
Impairment loss recognized for the year FRERZREREE (b))
(Note (b)) (67,617) -
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—B2z#&& 239,432 288,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group invested the
sum of approximately HK$925,000 (2016:HK$556,000) in unlisted
investment funds with a bank during the year.

(b)  The Group invested RMB230,000,000 in an indirect non wholly-
owned company in China (the “PRC Company”) and recognized
as an available-for-sale financial asset. At 31 December 2017, a
66.6% non wholly-owned subsidiary, holds 63.3% interest in the
PRC Company. As a result, the Group owns 42.2% of effective
equity interest in the PRC Company. The PRC Company was
classified as available-for-sale as in the opinion of the directors,
the Group was not able to exercise significant influence over its
financial and operating policy decisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
recognized impairment charge of approximately RMB58,489,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$67,617,000) for its investment
in the PRC Company. The impairment charge measurement
had taken into account the recent economical condition and
comparable market consideration. Any changes in the market
could materially affect the result of the impairment assessment and
additional impairment provision might be required, or an additional
impairment charge should have been reported.

(c)  The other unlisted investment of approximately HK$32,695,000
(2016:HK$32,695,000) represents the Group’'s cost of investment
in a private enterprise fund established in the PRC. At 31 December
2017, the Group owns 18.3% (2016: 18.3%) of the paid-in capital
of the investee. The Directors consider the principal activity of the
investee is investment holding but due to the operating licence
expired on August 2017, the investee is in liquidation.

The unlisted investments are measured at cost less impairment
losses, at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair value cannot
be measured reliably and the recoverable amount would exceed
their carrying amount. The Group does not intend to dispose
of them in the near future, other than those stated in Note (c)
above.

20. AAHESHREE (&)

W :

(@ REE-_Z—+tHE+_A=+—BHILEE K&
BERF R —BRITIRE B5T#925,000% 7T (=
T — N4 :556,000/8 ) 2 LTREES -

(b) AEEEKE ARM230,000,0005T R — [+ ERE
BHE2ERB ([FRRAF])  YERAUHLE
CHEE-R-_T—+F+_A=+—80 —&
66.6%IETEMBE AR NP BAR I H6E3.3%IMHE
= AMAEEHEEFBEARL2 2% ERIME
BEARBHBEANHLEE REAAEERALE
BELHPERARZHBREBERAETEE
K2 -

REE-_FT—tHE+-_A=+t—ALFE &&
ERRAPEARZEERRRELLOARE
58,489,0007T (#H5 7 4967,617,000% 7T.) ° & &
T HFEEE LA ER R R AT LR TISHRE -
ERTSB IR EYERETGER LAl
BEZBIEHEBINRE R LR REBINRES L -

(0 EMIEEMREL32,695,00087T (=T —REF:
32,695,000/ L) EEA S ERN —BEF B2
AACEESIRERA-R=_T—+F+=A
=+ B AKEEAZEIRERRBAER
Z2183% (=T —NF:183%) - EFRE &
RBRERRZFBXEBARELR HHREE
HAECORZZ—tFE N\ AR MZEZRE
NRIBEIEBE-

HRIELTREZEEAAEBEMFBEERE K
REAEERRREAEMAEBEARE BAK
Ol B8 SR A RREE - #ul - I ETIRE N
HHIRBAAAMERIREBEE - B £ (0)
&I AERBESRAIABREEZEFEL
m&RE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

21.

162

DEFERRED TAXATION
(a) Deferred tax liabilities/assets recognized

21. EEBIIR
(a) CERAELHEAMR EE

Other
taxable
temporary
differences
Hfh FE SR B
ERER
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 155,857
Exchange realignment SN B (880)
Credited to the consolidated income statement 4R A& R A AL (M5E12)
(Note 12) (1,964)
Deferred tax assets reclassified to assets of EMOHESEARELE 2 HEAR 2
the disposal group classified as held for sale BEZREHBEEE 10,155
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RF+ZA=+—HK
—T—+tF—-A—H 163,168
Exchange realignment SMNEE 3 2 1,035
Charged to the consolidated income statement B 434 SR (FiFE12)
(Note 12) 478
Deferred tax liabilities reclassified to the disposal EF D EEHEWB AT ZELHBERE
of subsidiaries (412)
Deferred tax liabilities reclassified to liabilities EMNEEESEARBELREZ
directly associated with the assets of the HEENEEEREE BB RERIERE
disposal group classified as held for sale (PFEE14)
(Note 14) (119,000)
At 31 December 2017 R=B—tH+=A=+-—H 45,269

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21. BEBIIE (&)
(a) Deferred tax liabilities/assets recognized (continued) (a) ERRBELHEERE EE (&)
For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial M2IGAMBRAERMS & FTERER
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BEE/ (BB CERBASIGEERE &7
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set B BERRRAMTEERIBE S D TN
out. The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances e

shown in the consolidated statement of financial position:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (45,352) (163,245)
Deferred tax assets BREBIREE 83 77
(45,269) (163,168)
(b) Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of (b) WARBLATHEHEBREERIEEE:
the following items:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deductible temporary differences AR =R
— decelerated tax depreciation — R IR E 2,544 2,980
— others —HAth 7,297 6,195
Tax losses HIEEE 90,493 106,290
100,334 115,465
Notes: B ok
() The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the () WBERIHEZ THREHEZEY TS E
current tax legislation. Hio
(i) Tax losses of approximately HK$67,285,000 (2016: iy WEROTRE AEERPEZEEEL
HK$83,711,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in FrEEE 2 BiTEE 18 4967,285,00008 T (=&
the PRC will expire in the fifth year commencing from the — N 83,711,000 L) K A ELEFBEF
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately ERFAFRFIEH MAKEREE 2 Ky
HK$23,208,000 (2016:HK$22,579,000) arising from the Bff J&8 2~ B P EE 4 2 R IE 5 $8 4923,208,000/%
Group's other subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under JL(=ZF— /X% 122,579,000/ L) ¥ &
the current tax legislation. F)H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

22. 78

(a) AW BRAERZFERE:

2017 2016

—ZT—+t#F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Raw materials R 10,960 5,295
Work-in-progress T8 5,685 2,157
Finished goods BUAK SR 480 504
17,125 7,956

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognized as

expense and included in the Group's profit or loss is as

follows:

(b) ERRAXLFAAEEERZZFEHR

DT

2017 2016

—E—t & —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Cost of inventories sold (Note 9) HEFEZ KA (MF9) 185,533 477,393
Cost of services provided RRERF 2 AR 18,819 65,917
Cost of sales/services rendered HEIRERSE ZRAE 204,352 543,310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BWES KRR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables — Lottery business JEWE SRR - RER 388,791 490,836
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade EERAE ERESREFCEEERAAAE
receivables approximate to their fair values. As at 31 December HE - R-_Z—+F+-_A=+—"8 BKESH
2017, trade receivables of approximately HK$1,940,000 BE AR 491,940,000 (Z T —XRF: TEx)
(2016:HK$Nil) were impaired. As at 31 December 2017, the BERE-R_T—tF+_A=+—H ®AE
amount of allowance for impairment was approximately BESBEHA1,940,0008 T (ZFE—RF T
HK$1,940,000 (2016:HK$Nil). The Group generally grants credit BL) AEB-—RETESEFLIOKRE270K
periods of 90 to 270 days (2016: 90 to 270 days) to its trade ZE—RFRE2/I0R)ZIEEH-UTE
customers. The following is an analysis of trade receivables net FIEIE 5 R (NKRIZRRFTIR ZRERE)

of allowance for impairment by age, presented based on the ERBEHHZERES T :

invoice date:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Three months or less “@AAAT 99,310 224,922
One year or less but over three months —FHUATE=@EANUE 132,336 189,745
Over one year —F LAk 157,145 76,169
388,791 490,836
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REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

23.

24.

166

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
HK$157,145,000 (2016:HK$76,169,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The aging of
these receivables is as follows:

23.

EWE SRR (&)
RZTE—tF+=ZA=+—H" #157,145,000
L (ZZF—7"%F :76,169,0008 1) 2 FEWE
SFERCBPBAITREE ZEHREDSRZHE
WEAHR AR ZBLIRS RS RRFIAZ
BRE DT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less past due BEA=E A KIAT 92,406 66,437
One year or less but over three months BE—FHUATE=EANLE

past due 62,284 7,200

Over one year past due BEI—F 2,455 2,532

157,145 76,169

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

E=RR MAEHOEBKREZRFIGRES
HRE -

REFAERELDHWT :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT FET

At 1 January m—H—H - -
Impairment loss recognized EERREEER 1,875 -
Exchange realignment SN 38 2 65 -
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 1,940 -

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS

Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines
and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the Directors, all utility and other deposits are
neither past due nor impaired.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. BBFAR At ERKIR

Prepayments and other debtors

At the end of the reporting period, the prepayments and other
debtors represent prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project
related prepayments, staff advances and other debtors.

The amount due from a related company, HK$350,000,000
represents withholding amount by Sunjet Investments Limited
for PRC tax paid by the Group to relevant PRC authorities for the
disposal of Sinodata Group (Note 41). Details of the withheld
amount were set out in the Company’s circular dated 30
September 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, other receivables of approximately
HK$372,743,000 (2016:HK$358,175,000) were impaired.
As at 31 December 2017, the amount of the allowance
for impairment was approximately HK$372,097,000
(2016:HK$233,529,000). The individually impaired other
receivables mainly related to those which were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a small portion

of the other receivables is expected to be recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, the remaining other receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

TE R R H Al R U BRI

Amount due from a related company e — B A R E

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,612,837 1,839,938
350,000 -
1,962,837 1,839,938

R E BR - SRR R E R R IR IR R R
B2 EEFIE - FRIBEAEEGHIA 8
TR E At AR

& Y — f&) 9 B¢ X 7] 5 18350,000,000% 7T 48
Sunjet Investments Limited3t AN & B & H & B
LEE (T4 MABBFREEESNZFE
MIEBMEH 2 FIE - BIRBFHBHRAAAFH
WA-_T—"ENLA=t+BHZBH-

RZZE—+tF+_A=Z+—8 HtbEK
KB #372,743,0008 0 (—F — XN F:
358,175,000 T)EME - KR _T—tF+=
R=+—8 REEESTEL R372,097,000%
JC (== —7X% 1233,529,000/ 70) ° @B H 8
BEZEMERKIEEZHBAMRERR M
BERETG BHRIATKE NS ZEEbE
¢ ¢

BE=RR BT 2HMBURED KBS T E
WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

—tFt+tZA=t—HLFE

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts are as follows:

25. FEHE

RIBE R E bW IR (48)
REBERREBRBRZSHNOT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—REF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 233,529 151
Exchange realignment HNEE 38 2 8,614 (5,089)
Impairment recognized EERRE 130,779 238,467
Reclassified as held for sale EHOEARIELE (825) -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 372,097 233,529

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

26. BRRRBRANENBEZERMEE

OR LOSS
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Listed securities held for trading: HBEREEZ LTHES:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong* BERLETMRAFES - 132

* Trading suspended in November 2017

The fair value of all equity securities was based on their current

bid prices in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were

presented within the section of operating activities as part of

changes in working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Gains/losses on disposal of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss and their changes in fair value were recorded in

other gains/(losses), net in the consolidated income statement

(Note 5).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. RERBITHER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET
Fixed bank deposits EHIRITF R 493,839 -
Cash at banks RITHE & 1,346,836 2,136,292
Cash in hand FHERE 544 670
1,347,380 2,136,962
1,841,219 2,136,962

Fixed bank deposits represented fixed bank deposits with

maturity at acquisition over 3 months and within 1 year.

Cash and bank balances include the following amounts

denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional

currency, HK dollars:

EHMRTERERRBHEAE=ZEANALRE —F

NEIH 2 EHIRITF R -

BeRBTERBETIAERRREERE

TLIAINE ¥ HIME 2 5K

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RK

‘000 ‘000

FT Fir

US dollars ETT 29,533 29,926

Renminbi AR 830,896 1,001,342
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

%—;A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

B mERWE (&)

—tFt+=-A=

THLEFE

27.

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose

of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

RERBITHE
mERE fﬁ&/ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ% R LR EEYER
TF) & I8 -

28.

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash in hand FHER® 544 670
Cash at banks — general accounts HITRE——REP 1,346,836 2,136,292
1,347,380 2,136,962
Cash and bank balances included WADHEARIELE 2 HEMER 2
in a disposal group classified R& MRTTHEH (MEE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 200 100,086
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated ZJ|A4ABHERERZRE K
statement of cash flows ReFEEY 1,347,580 2,237,048
CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28. HEREER
(a) Non-cash investing and financing activities (a) ERERERMETH
During the current year, the Group entered into the RAFEE AEEETT THFERSES -
following non-cash activities which are not reflected in the EREHITENGEARSRERARM:

consolidated statement of cash flows:

(i) settlement of part of proceeds in respect of the

Group’s disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) was

set off by the amounts due to related parties of

approximately HK$990,000,000;

(i)

the outstanding convertible bonds due on 29

March 2017 of approximately HK$133,583,000
and the relevant interest payable of approximately
HK$4,665,000 to Kingly Profits Corporation
(“Kingly”), a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr.

Chan, a director and substantial shareholder of the

Company, were transferred to the shareholder’s loan;

and

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

28. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Non-cash investing and financing activities (continued)

(iii)

taxation paid and expenses in connection with the

disposal of subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$215,200,000 and HK$7,899,000 respectively
were set off by the prepayment and other receivables.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

28. BEHREER ()
FRERERBETH (8)

(a)
(iii)

(b)

Liabilities from financing activities

HEEWNBAREBZENHEA
KB &5 B14215,200,000/% 5Tt &
7,899,0007% JT 4 T8 £ 3¢ 18 & H '
I FRIE I 8 o

MEZTHHELEBEZHR

HETHELECEE
Bank
Finance Bank  Convertible ~ Convertible Amounts borrowings
leases  borrowing bonds bonds due to of disposal
due within ~ due within  due within due after related of Sinodata
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year parties Sub total Group Total
-FRES -FRES -FREHE  -F4I5 ECOBES HERESE
ZREHRE ZRORE ZUBRES 2TRRES RE Mt ZRTRE @
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET Fér FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R-E-t5-f-H 8,268 4,901 1,431,040 201,740 1,259,967 2,905,916 137,456 3,043,372
Cash flow: BeRE:
Payments for redemption of HEETAREFZATE
convertible bonds - - (867,268) - - (867,268) - (867,268)
Proceeds from bank borrowing ROEERENE - 5,958 - - - 5,958 - 5,958
Proceeds from related parties RABB A 2 FEHE - - - - 13,475 13,475 - 13,475
Repayments of bank borrowing BERRTEE - (5.873) - - - (5,873) (1,427) (7,300)
Repayments of obligations under ~ EEREMEEHK
finance leases (8,902) - - - - (8,902) - (8,902)
Interest paid BRFE (102) (324) (18,158) - - (18,584) (646) (19,230)
(9,004) (239) (885,426) - 13,475 (881,194) (2,073) (883,267)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 634 376 - - - 1,010 1,544 2,554
Other non-cash movements: HitFRe%8:
Reallocation as current ENDRARD - - 201,740 (201,740) - - - -
Interest expenses (Note 8) MER% (fsE8) 102 324 69,334 - 4,562 74322 646 74,968
Interest payables FERFIE - - (30,796) - 4,665 (26,131) - (26,131)
Redemption of convertible bond BB A R E % - - (133,583) - 133,583 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41)  HEKBEAF (Miz41) - - - - - - (137,573) (137,573)
Set off part of the disposal BHEBHHERE (Frita1)
consideration (Note 41) - - - - (990,000) (990,000 - (990,000)
102 324 106,695 (201,740) (847,190) (941,809) (136,927)  (1,078,736)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-H - 5,362 652,309 - 426,252 1,083,923 - 1,083,923
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number
of shares Amount
&k - ¢=| -}
‘000 HK$'000
FR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BEREECIBT2ZER
Authorized: ERE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F—A—H"
and 31 December 2017 ZE-RFE+ZA=+—HBK
—Z—+FE+-_fF=+—8H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2016 R-E—XE—A—8 9,983,496 99,835
Exercise of share options (Note) 1TEEEE RS RE (BRE) 45,000 450
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-XE+ZHA=+—-BR
31 December 2017 —Z—+tHF+=ZHA=+—H 10,028,496 100,285
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, 45,000,000 share W RBEE-FT—XF+_A=+—BLFE"

options were exercised by the eligible option holders at their
respective exercise prices for a total cash consideration of
HK$4,869,000, resulting in an issue of 45,000,000 new ordinary

45,000,00017 FE i i B & B 15 AR B B A TR 8
BT BT - BE SR (E 54,869,000/ 7T - A
#1745,000,0008 F AR EEO.01/8 70,2 7 L /A%

shares of HK$0.01 each.

All new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in

all respects with the existing shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives and/or
rewards for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group.

According to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options
to the eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme
to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine. Options granted should be accepted within 30 days
from the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the 2012
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to
determine the period within which payments or calls must or
may be made.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of approval and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from its
shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under
any share option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

ﬁ%z&

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

30.

MBEHRRKE (&)

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

RS E

—E-"F5E
CECZHFHEBEFEARRMEERSHE
ATEEBERE (EARSHASEMELZE
BEABRAAESEMNGAIEL 2 TBE H 28
B K% Sk 5 o

BE-T— -8 EFRUA-_T-—Fit
BFREAERSRALEHBRE 2B
HERFETHE 2 RGBT BRI B
M B EIAEE30 B P A o E RIS R
18 AR A A 7 A9 1,009 7T e 0 1 08 IR

ZRE-Z-F-—F 2GR RABERX
RITAR EESARETLALAEFELMR
B A R HAR -
BREZTEERESEET AZ2IA/TIZ
ReE (ONEHEH (VAR %%E)%“
BRABMBEBRAMEO ZWTE: (INEER D

AR AME ¥ HE
ZEHRHE

tRFTEBRERMRBD
K (il 2 E1E e

iR =T — ZF 58 RA A &) A E A B &
BEERE 2B RRERITE M AT 2R
MEE LR TERBBIERRN - —ZF&
BERAARRRBEITRAZI0% HARRAF
PERS kR R B ERRBFET ARENEK
RRS M ESHETLREAZEETRG
Z10% AT HEFETFE 2 LRE  ERIRERR
AMEMERE SR L 2 BRE (BEREZS
STEIMARITE D BERAKCITEZER
B)BTgdEERN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRERME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

174

2012 Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant
and his associates abstained from voting. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
or any of their respective associates in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
2012 Scheme will expire on 28 June 2022.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BBRESTE (&)
2012 Scheme (continued) —E-—FHE(E)
The following table discloses movements in the 2012 Scheme: TERBEB_T—_FHE#
During the year ended 31 December 2017: REZ-_ZTE—tF+A=1T—HILFE:

Number of share options (‘000)
BREHR (7/7)

Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period  01.01.2017 the year the year the year  31.12.2017
i ZB-tf
—g-tF T+27
RUBRE BB . -A-H N N =t-8
REA ZEHEH ke A i RATE ERRM ERTE EREM i R AT 6
HKS (Note (b))
E GED)
Directors 29.09.2016 0.1068* 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 25,318* - - - 25,318
%
1%mg\oyees 29.09.2016 0.1068* 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 288,631* - - - 288,631
g
313,949* - - - 313,949
* The exercise price and the number of share options have been * BRERER T NEFE=ZA_THEK (2H
adjusted as a result of rights issue completed on 20 March 2018 as e MR IRR M T49(a)) - MATIEE R ESL B
set out in Note 49(a) to the consolidated financial statements. [RECECE-
During the year ended 31 December 2016: REZ-_Z-—RF+A=+—RHILFE:
Number of share options (000)
BREHE (74)
Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period  01.01.2016 the year the year theyear  31.12.2016
R —3-1%
B - _ “E-RE _TIA
- RihERE &R B —A-H - ~ \ 1A
EREA EHBH i3 TEH MATTE EREH FRTR EREM HATTE
HKS (Note (a)) (Note (b)
Er (HitE(a) (BEE(b))
Directors 29.09.2016 0.1082 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 - 25,000 - - 25,000
g%
1%mg\oyees 07.01.2014 1.090 13.01.2014 - 06.01.2016 2,000 - - (2,000) -
g
27.06.2014 0.910 15.07.2014 - 26.06.2016 120,000 - - (120,000 -
29.09.2016 0.1082 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 - 330,000 (45,000) - 285,000
122,000 355,000 (45,000) (122,000 310,000
Notes: B 5
(@)  The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant (a) EZBEERLBAH(AZZE—XNELAZ-thHB)AIZ
on 29 September 2016 was HK$0.102. & {5 Y T 8 4010278 7T
(b) No share based payment reserve has been transferred to by REE-_Z—+E+_A=+—HIFE W&
retained profits during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: PARS 9 2 7008 2 i (—Z — /<4 6,329,000
HK$6,329,000). BL)EREREERN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

(a)

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BRESTE (&)
Details of share options exercised during the year ended 31 (a) REZEZZT—"F+-_A=+—HLFE
December 2016: T AR RIS -
Market value
Exercise per share at Proceeds Number of
Exercise date price exercise date received  share options
7R
TR TEE BRTE CWHABXE BREHA
HK$ HK$ HK$'000 ‘000
BT BT TET 717
07.10.2016 - 14.11.2016 0.1082 0.121-0.129 4,869 45,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise REBEZ-_ZFE-—R"F+_A=T—HILFE
for share options exercised during the year ended 31 BITEERETFEAZNMETFARERS
December 2016 was HK$0.127 per share. f%0.127% 7T -
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BREZHERMEFIFTEE
share options
Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITEEREREZEHREEEMET
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BITEBENT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

per share  share options per share share options

=13 S
FTEE BREHE FHTRE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HKS ‘000
BT Tt BT T
Outstanding at 1 January W—HA—BHEKRITE 0.107* 313,949* 0.913 122,000
Granted BERE - - 0.108 355,000
Exercised BT - - 0.108 (45,000)
Lapsed B AR - - 0.913 (122,000)

Outstanding and exercisable R+=—A=+—8

at 31 December i ARATEE & AT T 0.107* 313,949* 0.108 310,000
* The exercise price and the number of share options had been * HRERERZZT-NAF=ZA=ZTHTK

adjusted due to the rights issue completed on 20 March
2018 as set out in Note 49(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(9

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options (continued)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had
exercise price of HK$0.1068 (2016:HK$0.1082) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.74 years
(2016: 1.74 years). No option was cancelled during the
years 2017 and 2016.

The exercise in full of the outstanding 313,949,000 (2016:
310,000,000) share options at 31 December 2017 would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 313,949,000 (2016: 310,000,000)
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$33,530,000 (2016:
HK$33,542,000).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 355,000,000
options were granted and were fully vested immediately.
The estimated fair value of the options granted in 2016
was approximately HK$10,367,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The weighted average inputs into

the model were as follows:

30. BRESTE (8)
(b) BREZHERMEFYTEE(E)

R-ZE—+FE+_A=+—BHRTEZ
Bl ZITEEA0.1068B T (ZE— X
F:0.1082870)  MMEFHRTELHF
BRI B0.74F (Z T —RNF1.74%F) - =
T+ FR T ANFRLEFHTME
P& #E o

BRERARABERZEARARE  BHT
FERZZE—CtF+_A=+—"8B K
KRIT{#F 2313,949,0001) (=& — ~
% :310,000,0001% ) B8 % # 15 & 5
% 17313,949,000/% (= Z — N F
310,000,0000% ) BEINAR 10+ 4238 & K (B
B B X AT 4 533,530,00008 70 (=&
— N4 133,542,000/ 7T) °

() BREALERRBR
REBEE_Z—XF+_A=Z+—8HLHF
€+ 355,000,00017 i I 1 B 4% tH 3 B &
HEB RN E—R"ERHZEREZA
S B4 A10,367,000/8 7T

ARETIERAE N -FRRMEEER
WHE-ZREZ MEFHEAEBRT:

Share options granted
ERHBRE

Date of offer to grant options
29.09.2016
BREBREZNAH
ZE-XEAA=1+NA

Share price I B
Exercise price 111E(E
Expected volatility T8 HR K 1@

Expected option life (in year)
Risk-free rate 2 Ja| B ) 2R
Dividend yield A% B &

EHERERR (RFF)

HK$0.1067% 7T
HK$0.1082/8 7T
89.812%

0.65

0.358%

0.00%
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REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31.

178

(9

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the
previous 260 days. The expected life used in the model had
been adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognized share-based payment of
approximately HK$10,367,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016.

RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
consolidated financial statements.

Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

(iii) Convertible bonds reserve
Convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in Note 2(p).

(iv) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognized in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in Note 2(q)(iii).

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

31. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(9

Nature and purposes of the reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2(u).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2017 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends paid in 2000.

Distribution of reserves

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

the contributed surplus account of the Company is

available for distribution. However, the Company cannot

declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the

contributed surplus, if:

@)

(i)

the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and the share premium
account.

31. f#E (&)
REEEREW (F)

(b)

(o)

(v)

ELFE
E S BRI RREEINERZ B
WERMELZABELZR -ZHE

TOREM 202 ST R ERE -
i) #AZEE
AABIRZZFE—+tF+=ZA=+—H
Z B AN B IEREXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited 7 E i& 7 # A 2 AW HE
EBERAZEEEEFEENKIEmMET
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31.

(c) Distribution of reserves (continued)
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company's reserves
disclosed in Note 48 available for distribution to
shareholders as at the end of the reporting period were as

e (E)

(0 ZIRfEE (HE)
BEERAR ARRARBEHRAHRD KT
PRz (R 48 E) T

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contributed surplus f/%ﬁl)\%%} 199,605 199,605
Retained profits R & A 237,917 156,350
437,522 355,955

32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. ENESZERR

2017 2016
—ZE—+tfF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Other client payables FET E b & P BRI 5 314
Trade payables — Lottery business BB SRR —FRER 8,233 1,487
8,238 1,801

No aging analysis was disclosed for other client payables as,
in the opinion of the Directors, the aging analysis did not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade

payables approximates to their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 32. BRESER(E)
The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables by age based AEBEENEBESER-—REEXEKEREZAH
on the invoice date — Lottery business is as follows: ZEREDTAT
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Three months or less —@EAHKUT 5,883 -
Over three months =EANRE 2,350 1,487
8,233 1,487
33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. HtEMNRERER K
Other payables and accruals of the Group are expected to be ZK;‘%lZﬁi\mﬁéﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁéEf?ﬂ(lﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ(\‘—i
settled or recognized as income within one year or are repayable NEENERRBRANEREREE-
on demand.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other EERE Bz HhEMNRIBEREGSRIEZ
payables and accruals of the Group approximate to their fair REEREE ’& CEMEE
values.
34. BANK BORROWING 34. BITRE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF T—RE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank loan IRITE X
— secured and due within one year —BEAERR—FRIH 5,362 4,901
The bank loan is repayable within one year or when the facility RITERAR—FALEERMOAKER - ZEE
is withdrawn. This borrowing is used to finance the lottery REARBEEREB 2 MEESR -
business of the Group.
The bank loan of approximately HK$5,362,000 #95,362,000/ 7T ( = F — /X4 : 4,901,000/
(2016:HK$4,901,000) is secured by the trade receivables TL) ZSRITE A — B A A14719,351,000%
of a subsidiary of approximately HK$19,351,000 L (ZZF— /X% :15,052,000870) 2 EWE S
(2016:HK$15,052,000) and guaranteed by a subsidiary of the BRAREH IR W ANE®E — BB R AER-
Group.
The effective interest rate on the Group's borrowing is equal to AEBEEZERMNEBEREGONE-

contractual interest rate.
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34. BANK BORROWING (continued)
The Directors considered that the fair value of borrowing at the

end of the reporting period approximates to its carrying amount.

Bank borrowing included the following amount denominated

in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK

34. |ITEE (HE)
BEERR BENBEHRZAAEREAKREE
EEER

RITEEBE TN ARR AL E B TTIAS
BHIIEZRIE:

dollars:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
‘000 ‘000
FT Fir
Renminbi AR 4,482 4,412
35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 35. AIERRES
A. Convertible Bonds A, TBERER

182

()

2017 Bonds

On 21 September 2011, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement to issue up
to HK$1,040,200,000 principal amount of
6% convertible bonds due in 2016. On 28
September 2011, the issue of principal amount
of HK$816,900,000 of the convertible bonds was
completed (the “Firm Bonds”). On 7 November 2011,
the issue of principal amount of HK$70,000,000 of
the convertible bonds was completed pursuant to
an option under the subscription agreement being
partially exercised before the closing date of the
option (the “Option Bonds”). On 28 November 2011,
the issue of HK$77,800,000 in principal amount
of the convertible bonds to Kingly was completed
pursuant to the subscription agreement (the "VC
Bonds”, together with the Firm Bonds and Option
Bonds, the “Existing 2017 Bonds”).

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

(i) =ZF—+t&FE#F
RZFE——FAhAZ+—H X2
BRI —HOREWHRE NBETR
TE-RFIH -AeEERR
1,040,200,000/% jT 2 6[E 7] # R (&
- RZTE——FNLA=Z+N\A B
5 Ak 3 17 AR % 58 5816,900,0007 T
ZABRBKRES([BEEH]) R
T——F+—AtH EXZKER
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HIEBHAERDTEMETES
%8 /70,000,000/% 7T 2 A] # I & &
([g3EE]) R ——F+—
AZ+NB BEXRBRERBEH#ER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
A. Convertible Bonds (continued)

()

2017 Bonds (continued)

On 3 September 2012, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement to issue up to
HK$429,000,000 principal amount of 6% convertible
bonds due in 2016. On 13 September 2012, the
issue of principal amount of HK$312,000,000 of
the convertible bonds was completed (the “New
Underwritten Bonds”). On 19 October 2012, the
issue of principal amount of HK$78,000,000 of
convertible bonds was completed pursuant to an
option under the subscription agreement being
exercised in full before the closing date of the option
(the “"New Option Bonds”). On 13 November 2012,
the issue of HK$39,000,000 in principal amount
of the convertible bonds to Kingly was completed
pursuant to the subscription agreement (the “New
VC Bonds”, and together with the New Underwritten
Bonds and New Option Bonds, the “New 2017
Bonds”).

The New 2017 Bonds have the same terms and
conditions as the Existing 2017 Bonds (the "Existing
2017 Bonds” and together with the New 2017
Bonds, the “2017 Bonds” which due in 2016 was
extended to 28 February 2017 on 9 September 2016
by an extraordinary resolution duly passed by the
bondholders), in all respects except for the issue date
and issue price which is 109.5% of the principal
amount and will be consolidated and form a single
series with the Existing 2017 Bonds and vote together
as one series on all matters with respect to the
Existing 2017 Bonds.

Each bond of 2017 Bonds will, at the option of the
holder (“2017 Bondholders”), be convertible (unless
previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled) on or after 8 November 2011 up to and
including 18 September 2016 into fully paid ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of HK$0.01
each at a conversion price of HK$0.6175 per share,
subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the bonds agreement as a result of
dilutive events.

35. AIMRMES (&)
A TABRES (F)

(i)

—E—+FEEF(F)
R-ZE——FNA=ZH KRB
—OREHE UBTR = —K
FEE A EBEHR®AL29,000,000
BILZOEAREES R T —=
FAA+=B EZKETEALEA
312,000,000 T 2 AJ AR &% ([
BH#ESR]) R-TE——Ft+A+h
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BERENEEEH B BT
171 317 A & %8 578,000,000
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BIEREHEAKnglyRIT AL EHE A
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%) e

M- tHFEFESTEERAE
Z—tHFEHF(RE_Z—LHFEF
BERHF T -LFEFHEAI-F
—tFEF] RE-—RFLAN
AEESFAAERNBBEIRER
BEHAR T R"EARE_ZT
—tEEZAZTNR) ZERE&ME
HE HETEHARETE (RER
BE2109.5% )N HERRF-F
—tFEFAHLBRE R A
ERRA—RIBRE T —LFEF
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

184

A.

Convertible Bonds (continued)

()

(ii)

2017 Bonds (continued)

The 2017 Bonds were issued at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.6175 per share. As a result of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012,
2013 and 2014 and the interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2013 and 2014, pursuant
to the conditions of the 2017 Bonds agreement,
the conversion price of the 2017 Bonds, had been
adjusted from HK$0.6175 to HK$0.61, from HK$0.61
to HK$0.60, from HK$0.60 to HK$0.58, from
HK$0.58 to HK$0.57 and from HK$0.57 to HK$0.56
per share with effect from 19 June 2013, 31 October
2013, 19 June 2014, 31 October 2014 and 19 June
2015 respectively.

As a result of the Rights Issue as set out in Note
49(a), the conversion price of the 2017 Bonds has
been adjusted from HK$0.56 to HK$0.52 per share
with effect from 12 February 2018.

2019 Bonds

On 9 April 2014, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement to issue up to
HK$1,900,000,000 principal amount of 4.5%
convertible bonds due in 2019. On 17 April 2014,
the issue of principal amounts of HK$1,200,000,000
of the convertible bonds and HK$400,000,000 of the
convertible bonds pursuant to an option under the
subscription agreement being exercised in full before
the closing date of the option was completed (the
“Firm & Option Bonds 2019"). On 8 July 2014, the
issue of HK$300,000,000 in principal amount of the
convertible bonds to Kingly was completed pursuant
to the subscription agreement (the “VC Bonds
2019", and together with Firm & Option Bonds 2019,
the “2019 Bonds").

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
A. Convertible Bonds (continued)
(ii) 2019 Bonds (continued)
Each bond of 2019 Bonds will, at the option of
the holder (“2019 Bondholders”), be convertible
(unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled) on or after 27 May 2014 up to and
including 7 April 2019 into fully paid ordinary shares
of the Company with a par value of HK$0.01 each
at a conversion price of HK$1.407 per share, subject
to adjustments in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the bonds agreement as a result of
dilutive events.

The 2019 Bonds were issued at an initial conversion
price of HK$1.407 per share. As a result of the
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2014 and final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014, pursuant to the conditions of the
2019 Bonds, the conversion price of the 2019 Bonds,
had been adjusted from HK$1.407 to HK$1.390
and from HK$1.390 to HK$1.370 per share with
effect from 31 October 2014 and 19 June 2015
respectively.

As a result of the Rights Issue as set out in Note
49(a), the conversion price of the 2019 Bonds has
been adjusted from HK$1.370 to HK$1.290 per share
with effect from 12 February 2018.

Kingly is a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Chan,
a director and substantial shareholder of the Company. The
issue of the VC Bonds 2019, the New VC Bonds and the
VC Bonds to Kingly constituted a non-exempt connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2017 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds (collectively, the
“Bonds"”) are both listed on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

35. AIMRMES (&)
A TABRES (F)

(ii)
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The terms of the Bonds

186

B.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased
and cancelled, 2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds will be
redeemed on extended maturity date 28 February
2017 (extended from 28 September 2016) and 17
April 2019 respectively at their principal amounts
together with accrued but unpaid interest thereon.

Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may at any time after 28 September
2014 and prior to 28 September 2016 redeem in
whole or in part, the 2017 Bonds and after 17
April 2017 and prior to 17 April 2019 redeem in
whole or in part, the 2019 Bonds for the time being
outstanding at their principal amounts together with
interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption,
provided that the closing price of the Company’s
shares for any 20 consecutive trading days, the last
of which occurs not more than five trading days
prior to the date on which notice of such redemption
is published, was at least 130% of the prevailing
Conversion Price; or

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds has already been converted,
redeemed or purchased and cancelled, then the
Company shall have the option to redeem in whole,
but not in part, of the outstanding Bonds at their
principal amounts as at such date together with
interest accrued to such date.

Redemption at the option of the Bondholders
The Company will, at the option of any of the 2017
Bondholders and 2019 Bondholders (collectively the
“Bondholders”), redeem all or some of the 2017
Bonds and 2019 Bonds on 28 September 2014 and
17 April 2017 respectively at their principal amounts
together with interest accrued to such date.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The terms of the Bonds (continued)

(c) Redemption at the option of the Bondholders
(continued)
The Company will also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders,
their principal amounts as at such date together with

redeem all or some of the Bonds at

interest accrued to the relevant date for redemption
when there is a change of control of the Company,
or when the Company's shares cease to be listed or
admitted to trading or suspended for trading for a
period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days on the Stock Exchange subject to the terms
and conditions of 2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds,
respectively.

At initial recognition, the Bonds are separated into a
liability component consisting of the straight debt element
of the Bonds, embedded financial derivatives consisting
of redemption options, and an equity component
representing the conversion options of the Bondholders to
convert the Bonds into equity. As the Company’s and the
Bondholders' redemption options are considered as closely
related to the host contracts, the fair values of these
options, which are determined using Binomial Tree Pricing
Model at initial recognition, have not been separated from
the host contracts, but included in the carrying amount of
the liability component. The equity component is presented
as convertible bonds reserve in equity, whereas the liability
component is classified under non-current liabilities. The
proceeds received from the issue of the Bonds have been
split as follows:

(i)  Liability component represents the fair value of
the contractually determined stream of cash flows
discounted at the prevailing market interest rate
applicable to instruments of comparable credit status
and providing substantially the same cash flows, on
the same terms, but without the conversion features.
The interest charged for the year is calculated by
applying an effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate of the Existing 2017 Bonds, New 2017
Bonds, Firm & Option Bonds 2019 and VC Bonds
2019 are 9.79%, 15.20%, 9.06% and 9.03% per

annum, respectively.

e BBERME (&)

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

35. AIMRMES (&)
B. REEFZHER(E)
() HEFFEAZEMEE (F)
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BEBZERRIGHEZRART  EAR
Bl Z IR B ARF RN
TERB R LM EEEERE R
EEAMBSRABEIEEERS
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 35. ATRRES (&)
B. The terms of the Bonds (continued) B. BEBH2BER(E)

(i)  Equity component represents the conversion options, (i) HEIBHOEEBRERE DRBETZ
which is determined by deducting the fair value of EREAERMERENREELD 2
the liability component from the proceeds of issue of NABEETE-
the Bonds as a whole.

The fair value of the liability component of the Bonds on initial ZEEBEFABEBI NN BRR Z QBN

recognition was calculated using the discounted cash flow REFenERWHE - —BABIREEBKEE A
model. The major inputs used in the Binomial Tree Pricing Model ZEEHABEBNAT

were as follows:

VC Bonds Firm & Option New Existing

2019 Bonds 2019 2017 Bonds 2017 Bonds

—E-NF —E-NF H-B-t& BAA-E-tF

REEES BRRERES &% &%

Share price B HK$0.877% 7t HK$0.937% 7t HK$0.507% 7t HK$0.4738 7T

Exercise price B HK$1.40707 7T HK$1.40707 7T HK$0.6175% 7T HK$0.6175/ 7T

Risk-free rate R & 1.394% 1.380% 0.267% 0.755%

Dividend yield ke 4.115% 3.849% 3.360% 2.213%

Credit spread HEEE 8.184% 8.133% 12.300% 8.407%

Expected life T 4.78 yearst 5.00 years§ 4.04 yearsF 5.00 years§

Volatility IR 46.328% 47.724% 62.431% 67.761%

188

The risk-free rate was determined with reference to the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes Yields as extracted from Bloomberg.
The expected life was the remaining life of the Bonds. Volatility
is the annualised standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the daily average adjusted share
price of the Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result
in changes in the fair value of the liability component. The
variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value
of the liability component are based on the Directors’ best
estimates.
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

C.

Relevant Event and Consent Solicitation Proposals in
relation to the Bonds

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
20 August 2015, pursuant to the terms and conditions
of each of the 2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds, a “Relevant
Event” occurs when, among other things, the Shares are
suspended for trading for a period equal to or exceeding
30 consecutive trading days on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Notice has been given by the
Company to the Bondholders that a “Relevant Event”
occurred. Each holder of the Bonds had the right at such
holder’s option, to require the Company to redeem all or
some only of such holder’'s Bonds on 2 November 2015
(the "Relevant Event Redemption Date"”) at their principal
amount together with interest accrued to such redemption
date, in each case in accordance with the respective terms
and conditions of the 2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds. Upon
redemption of any of the Bonds, such redeemed Bonds will
be cancelled.

35. AIMRMES (&)
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
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C.

Relevant Event and Consent Solicitation Proposals in
relation to the Bonds (continued)

Given the occurrence of the “Relevant Event”, the
Company had formulated various consent solicitation
proposals (the “Proposals”) to the Bondholders to,
among other things, (a) delay the maturity date of
the 2017 Bonds; (b) delay the original Relevant Event
Redemption Date and extend the relevant put period
end date; (c) extended the original 3rd Anniversary Put
Option Redemption Date (as defined in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2017) of 2019 Bonds;
and (d) to waive the events of default for the respective
Bonds. On 29 March 2017, the Company has made a
partial repayment to satisfy part of the principal amount
of the outstanding Bonds and the accrued but unpaid
interest thereon and default interest. Subsequent to the
passing of the extraordinary resolutions by the Bondholders
and the execution of the supplemental trust deed, (i) the
maturity date in relation to 2017 Bonds was delayed to
28 February 2017 and further extended to 28 April 2017,
(i) the Relevant Event Redemption Date in relation to
each series of the Bonds was delayed to 28 April 2017 in
relation to the Relevant Delisting Event (as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2017); (iii) the
3rd Anniversary Put Option Redemption Date of the 2019
Bonds was extended to 31 May 2017; and (iv) any breach
of the terms and conditions or the trust deed of each
series of the Bonds in respect of any non-payment of any
amount otherwise payable is waived on 28 April 2017. The
Company has not made payment of the outstanding Bonds
on 28 April 2017, and the Bonds have been in default
since then.

Detailed information regarding the Proposals and the
relevant meetings/resolutions (as the case may be) of the
Bondholders are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 22 September 2015, 7 October 2015,
29 October 2015, 29 March 2016, 8 April 2016, 3 May
2016, 3 June 2016, 2 August 2016, 9 September 2016, 15
September 2016, 14 February 2017, 14 March 2017, 24
March 2017, 29 March 2017, 21 April 2017, 27 April 2017
and 28 April 2017 respectively.
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 35. AERES (E)

The acceleration of unwinding interest of approximately
HK$19,176,000 arose as a result of the difference between
the carrying amount and the principal amount of a portion
of the 2019 Bonds. The principal amount of this portion
of 2019 Bonds was approximately HK$222,118,000 and it
became due during the reporting year.

As at 31 December 2017,
amount of the Bonds remaining outstanding following

the aggregate principal

the partial redemptions of the Bonds was approximately
HK$652,309,000 (2016:HK$1,653,160,000).
subsequent events after the end of the reporting period

Details of

are shown in Note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

D. The movements of the liability components of the Bonds D. ZEBEHBGEMBHZFANEBHHIMAT :
for the year are set out below:
2019 Bonds 2017 Bonds Total
ZE-NEEE —ET-tEEH &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Carrying amounts at 1 January 2016 RZT—REF
—A—BZKEE 1,752,312 323,090 2,075,402
Redemption during the year FNERE (400,873) (74,585) (475,458)
Interest expense (Note 8) A% (MEs) 100,748 25,560 126,308
Interest payable R FE (75,138) (18,334) (93,472)
Carrying amounts at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R
tZR=+—HZEKHAEE 1,377,049 255,731 1,632,780
Redemption during the year FRED (846,027) (154,824) (1,000,851)
Interest expense (Note 8) FERZ (ME8) 40,820 9,338 50,158
Acceleration of unwinding interest on IR AT AR & 5 2 7| S B B
convertible bonds (Note 8) (Pff:E8) 19,176 - 19,176
Interest payable ERALE (39,616) (9,338) (48,954)
Carrying amounts at 31 December 2017 NZE—+F
+ZA=+—BzKHEAE 551,402 100,907 652,309

#919,176,000/%8 T 2 M0 R # B 5 8 R 8 36
PZE-NFEFZEAERASEHE
MER - RBEFEN EHBH 2T —A1
FEENESEELNA222,118,0008 70 W E
4 ZI| BE o

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—HB REBZI
D& 1;%& MABEZZZEREL &
HEEH) 5652,309,000/8 7 (ZZT —/R4F ¢
1,653,160,000%8 70) - MEHA KRB EFHE
HBFNERA IS REM 7EL9 ©
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36.

37.

192

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligation under finance
lease repayable as follows:

36.

MAHEES
R-B—+F+-A=+—0 AEEEEN?
MEREEBNT

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE

Present Present

value of value of
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease payment  lease payment lease payment lease payment

BRERY HEEH
HRBRE RERATR NHEE SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —FR - - 8,268 8,367
Between 2 to 5 years MEZRF - - - -
- - 8,268 8,367
Less: Total future finance charges R TG B - 99

Present value of lease payments AN HIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the effective interest
rate of the obligation under finance lease was 5.56% per
annum. Certain subsidiaries of the Group had provided
corporate guarantees to the lessor to secure the finance lease
obligation to the extent of HK$56,667,000. The carrying
amount of the printing machine under the sales and leaseback
agreement was disclosed in Note 15.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organized by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC
subsidiaries” employees in the PRC.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Contingent liability in respect of default under the
convertible bonds
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company

ﬁ%zk

MEBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILFE
38. RAME
(a) FRATHREBEFENCHAREE
RBEE-_T—tF+_A=+—HLHF
B ARARRERZZE—CtFHA=FTN\AH

has not fulfilled its redemption obligation of 2017 Bonds
in the principal amount of approximately HK$100,907,000
and the redemption obligation of 2019 Bonds in the
principal amount of approximately HK$551,402,000
on 28 April 2017 and 31 May 2017 respectively. The
amounts under the 2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds have
been outstanding since 28 April 2017 and are currently
due to be repaid to the Bondholders. The trustee or the
Bondholders through the trustee may take legal actions
against the Company in respect of the outstanding Bonds.
The Company does not expect the possible courses of
action to materially impact the Group, as the Company has
sufficient offshore financial resources to fulfill repayment
obligations under the outstanding Bonds.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 19
November 2017, 6 December 2017, 29 January 2018,
19 March 2018 and 21 March 2018 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 23 February 2018, in relation to, among
things, the Rights Issue (as defined in Note 49(a)) and the
CB Subscription (as defined in Note 49(b)) of the proposed
fund raising plans, upon completion of the proposed fund
raising plans, the Company expects it will fully repay the
2017 Bonds and 2019 Bonds on or before 31 May 2018.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company.

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, a subsidiary of the
Group has issued a corporate guarantee in respect of the
secured bank borrowing granted to a subsidiary of the
Group which will expire when the bank borrowing is repaid
(Note 34).

(b)

R—E—+tFRA=+—BHRETASE
%8 49100,907,0008 T2 —T—tFEH
2 HEE & RA &5 4551,402,000% 7T
Z_E-NEFEHZELREF - T —L
FEHER_ZT-NFEFTZREEZST
—+tFMA=-+/\BHE—HEMHNKEE" B

FMERMERTESBEA - ZEALE
FREANBBIXTAARSREEZEZSE
BEHERARBRIUEZITE - ARAR A
BEBRABIINMBEERBITWMRER 2%
ZEFTHERES RAQAIERE

MITB T EHAEEEREATE -

BUOARFHRE-_ZT—+F+—A+A
A ZE2—+tF+=ZARHB - ZF—NF—
AZ+hB ZZT—N\F=ZA+hBEKZ
E-NF=ZA=-F+—BzZ22AHUKBHAE
:%*AE:H:+EEZR%$E(W
RER(EPBER)REAEEFER 2HEK
(FE RWEE49(a) ) AT AR EH R B 1E
(EERMFFA90)) VFAEE REZEEE
FrElERE AARERBER T N\F
AA=Z+—HgZABHEE-_T—tF
BER_T-—NFEHF Bt ARFES
RAEMARNFIRLERZES K

DR MHER
RZE—tEFRZE—R"FT+ZA=+—
B A&E—HHBARERAEEBES
—HBERARER B RIFRTEEED
REER - ZARERENREERTEE
e 2 HR (MY EE34) ©
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, certain subsidiaries of the Group
had issued corporate guarantees in respect of the finance
lease obligation under a sales and leaseback arrangement
granted to a subsidiary which had expired when the lease
terminated during the year 31 December 2017 (Note 36).

The Group has not recognized any deferred income and
the related expenses in respect of such guarantees, as in
the opinion of the Directors, their fair value cannot be
reliably measured using observable market data and their

transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against these
subsidiaries under any of the guarantees.

39. DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

194

1.

Undertakings and shareholder loans
Kingly (being a holder of 2019 Bonds),a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Chan, has provided several
undertakings to the Company (“the Undertaking(s)”) and
shareholder loans, among other things,

) On 3 May 2016, Kingly provided an undertaking:

a. to provide a valid block voting instruction in
favor of the extraordinary resolution which was
duly passed on 3 June 2016;

b. to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured and interest-free shareholder’s loan
in the amount of approximately HK$1,425,000,
with a one-year term, for the Company’'s
general working capital;

c. to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured shareholder’s loan in amount of
approximately HK$19,353,000, with a one-year
term, with an interest rate equals to the coupon
rate of the 2019 Bonds for the Company's
general working capital; and

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)
1. Undertakings and shareholder loans (continued)

D)

On 3 May 2016, Kingly provided an undertaking:

(continued)

d.

not to exercise the put option in relation

to a “Relevant Event” as stated in the
announcement dated 3 May 2016 in respect of

the 2019 Bonds it holds.

The shareholder loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,425,000 and HK$19,353,000 were fully
repaid before the end of the reporting period on 31
December 2016.

On 2 August 2016, Kingly provided an undertaking:

to provide a valid block voting instruction in
favor of the extraordinary resolution which was
duly passed on 9 September 2016;

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured and interest-free shareholder’s loan
in the amount of approximately HK$1,992,000,
with a one-year term, for the Company’'s
general working capital;

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured shareholder’s loan in amount of
approximately HK$45,000,000, with a one-year
term, with an interest rate equals to the coupon
rate of the 2019 Bonds for the Company's
general working capital; and

not to exercise the put option in relation

to a “Relevant Event” as stated in the
announcement dated 2 August 2016 in respect

of the 2019 Bonds it holds.

The shareholder loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,992,000 and HK$45,000,000 were fully
repaid before the end of the reporting period on 31
December 2016.

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE
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39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)
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1.

Undertakings and shareholder loans (continued)

)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Kingly
provided an unsecured, interest-free and repayment
on demand shareholder’s loan in the amount of
approximately HK$280,000,000 for the Company's
general working capital. As at 31 December 2017,
the outstanding principal amount of loan was
approximately HK$269,967,000.

On 29 March 2017, Kingly provided an unsecured
shareholder’s loan in amount of approximately
HK$133,583,000, with a one-year term, with an
interest rate equals to the coupon rate of the 2019
Bonds for the Company’s general working capital.
As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding principal
amount of loan was approximately HK$133,583,000
and the accrued interest on the loan was
approximately HK$4,562,000.

On 17 November 2017, Mr.
undertaking to the Company that the shareholder’s

Chan provided an

loan due to Kingly can only be repaid until after
the completion of the Rights Issue and the CB
Subscription (or the termination of either the Rights
Issue pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting
Agreement or the CB Subscription pursuant to the
terms of the CB Subscription Agreement).

During the year 2016, Mr. Chan has provided unsecured

and interest-free shareholder loans in the amount of
approximately HK$87,140,000 to the Company which
was fully repaid before the end of the reporting period 31
December 2016.
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39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

On 4 January 2016, the Group entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Sunjet, in relation to, among
other things, the sale and purchase of the entire issued
share capital of Multi Glory. Mr. Chan is also a director
of the Purchaser and is its substantial shareholder. In
consideration of the Purchaser entering into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, on 2 August 2016, the Company
executed a deed of guarantee pursuant to which the
Company agreed to guarantee in favor of the Purchaser
the due performance and observance by the seller of all
its obligations under or pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. The Disposal was completed in February 2017.
Details are set out in Note 14 and 41.

On 2 August 2016, Mega Market Assets Limited, wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan has provided an unsecured, interest-
free loan and due for repayment on the completion
date of the Disposal in the amount of approximately
HK$357,867,000, for the Company’'s partial redemption
obligations of convertible bonds and repaid the
shareholder loan provided by Kingly. The Mega Market
Loan has been repaid in February 2017 upon completion of
the Disposal.

In April 2017, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with Keen Start Limited (“Keen
Start”) for the proposed subscription of shares and
convertible bonds by Keen Start (the “Subscription
Agreement”). As the conditions to the completion of
the transaction contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement have not been fully satisfied, the Company
and Keen Start have agreed to terminate the Subscription
Agreement and the related undertaking has been released

and discharged.

In November 2017, the Company entered into the
underwriting agreement as supplemental and amended on
29 January 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”) with,
among others, Keen Start in relation to the Rights Issue.
Mr. Chan, Keen Start and Kingly have given irrevocable
undertaking in relation to the subscription for the Rights
Shares. The Rights Issue has been completed in March
2018.

39. EERRG RHIEGN2ERERE (B)
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39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)

198

7.

In November 2017, the Company entered into the
conditional CB Subscription Agreement for the proposed
subscription of convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$167,500,000 by Keen Start. The Company and
Keen Start had entered into two side letters to the CB
Subscription Agreement on 14 February 2018 and 21
March 2018 respectively to postpone the CB Subscription
Completion Date to 14 May 2018.

During the year, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries (the
"PRC Subsidiaries”) had the following transactions with a
PRC entity (the "PRC Entity”) indirectly controlled by Mr.
Chan: (1) processing fees for machineries and equipment
in the amount of HK$960,000 was charged to one of
the PRC Subsidiaries; (2) one of the PRC Subsidiaries
sold parts to the PRC Entity for the consideration of
HK$18,000; and (3) the PRC Entity advanced interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand loans in the amount
of HK$13,475,000 to the PRC Subsidiaries for operation
under ordinary course of business.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,

arrangements and contracts in which the Company was a party

and in which a director of the Company has a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

39. EERRG RHAEGN2ERERE (B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. COMMITMENTS

e U HERRMKE

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

40. &iE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 (a) RZE—EtF+-_A=+—HUKRELHRE

not provided for in the consolidated financial statements

are as follows:

MBEWENBBZ RN EAFRDT

2017 2016
—ZT—+t#F T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted for RS

— increase in registered capital of — BB A 7z s & AN N
subsidiaries 84,597 84,000
(b) At 31 December 2017, the Group's future aggregate (b) RZZ—tF+-_A=+—B FEEHR

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

(E N

As at 31 December 2017
R-ZTB—+tF+=-A=+—8H

BAAREEEHERN Z RRKERD

Land and Factory
buildings equipments Total
T REF BERE &st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FHET
Within one year —F A 12,447 9,017 21,464

In the second to fifth year E-EZFERF

inclusive (BREEMF) 18,278 35,916 54,194
More than five years HFEU E - 35,515 35,515
30,725 80,448 111,173
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS (continued)

41.

200

(b) (continued)

As at 31 December 2016
RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H

Land and Factory
buildings equipments Total
T g T B =B CE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Within one year —FR 10,879 8,378 19,257

In the second to fifth year F_EFRF

inclusive (BREEREME) 1,723 33,405 35,128
More than five years AFLE - 41,319 41,319
12,602 83,102 95,704

The Group leases various office and factory premises,
office equipments and warehouses under operating leases.
The leases run for a period of 1 to 9 years (2016: 1 to 10

years). The leases do not include any contingent rentals.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal of Sinodata Group

On 4 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with a related
party, Sunjet Investments Limited, in which a director (also a
substantial shareholder) of the Company has beneficial interest,
for the disposal of entire interests in Multi Glory and the loan
due from Multi Glory to the Group for a cash consideration
of HK$2,150,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
completed in February 2017. Further details are set out in Note
14.

The Disposal was

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

41.

AR BIRBEEAEEDS BB AERE
EUE BASREREE - REEERE
—EAE(ZF-AE -EHE)RE
TR ARARS -

HEME QR

HERLER

RZE—AF—AMNA ARAR—H2ENE
A7) ELBFE% 77 Sunjet Investments Limited ( —%
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AIVEERE UWHEEMUt Gloryz 2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41, HEMBLAF (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #MZEZZ—+F+-A=+—HItFE

Sinodata Group

BaEE
HK$'000
FET
The net assets disposed of at the date of disposal were as follows:
REERHZEHESREENT:
Property, plant and equipment ER e 129,501
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights T R 2 TR AR 42,214
Goodwill EES 1,026,795
Intangible assets mEE 21,158
Deposit for acquisition of leasehold building WHHEEF &S 171,416
Inventories "E 94,976
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 153,754
Utility and other deposits NAEEREMES 103,131
Prepayments and other receivables T8 3 30 T8 K E M JE GRIE 521,870
Current tax refundable AREE BRI 172
Cash and bank balances R & RIRITHE S 48,039
Amount due to the Group FET AR B kI8 (1,664,588)
Trade payables JETE 5 R (108,383)
Other payables and accruals L < R IE K FEETRIE (124,095)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (137,573)
Current tax liabilities EMTIEAE (9,876)
Deferred tax assets R TE & B 4,911
Net assets disposed of EREFEE 273,422
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
HEMBATZ (BB WE:
Consideration received and receivables B R (B 2,150,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEFEE (273,422)
Assignment of the amount due to the Group HREENANEBRIE (1,664,588)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 3,759
Expenses in connection with the disposal M EEEAB ML (9,354)
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of EEREERBELBREENSEZBREZ
the net assets reclassified from exchange FEERGELERE
translation reserve to profit or loss upon disposal (41,105)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries before taxation HENB AR ZBRB ATk 165,290
PRC income tax paid for disposal MEHEEFEZN 2HBEMEH (215,200)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries after taxation HEMB AR 2RTEER (49,910)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBERKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HENBLTF (&)
HK$'000
FHET
Satisfied by: XHFRX:
Cash consideration received BEUWRENRE 1,800,000
Cash consideration receivable (Note 25) FEYIR & R & (MiFE25) 350,000
2,150,000
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAR 2R RAFRE:
Total cash consideration received PEWReREHLE 1,800,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERASEED (48,039)
1,751,961
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31 December REBEZE-_Z—tF+_A=+—HILFEHE
2017 contributed approximately HK$35,830,000 to the Group's ZHBRARREE-_ZT—+F+_A=+—8H
revenue and profit of approximately HK$229,000 to the Group's IEFEAAEBE KA ER 435,830,000/ 7t &
loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. R 7R B B 1B 75 AR 7 £9229,00008 7T ©
PRC income tax of HK$215,200,000 is calculated based on a tax FEIATS 215,200,000 0 AR B AERB E R
rate of 10% on the excess of consideration over the capital in FEKIZEHENRBRAGZEARAZZFEH
the disposed subsidiary which is established in the PRC. E10%FH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SMBHRRME (F)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZ-Z

42. RERNES2EMTA

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR ST AN 2REENAT
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial assets cHEE
2017 2016
ZE-tE —3-E
Financial
asset at
fair value
through
Available- profit Available-
for-sale or loss for-sale
Loans and financial held for Loans and financial
receivables assets Total trading  receivables asset Total
BRER
BARE
BEPAL]
EXR e BE- ERR e
FEWzE tHEE B BEEEE JElzE SHEE @5
Notes HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Wit FEx FEn A7 FET FET TET FET
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESRER 20 - 239,432 239,432 - - 288,806 288,806
Trade receivables Fﬂ&‘"%%m 23 388,791 - 388,791 - 490,836 - 490,836
Utility and other deposits NEES J L 24 1,451,872 - 1451812 - 1533259 - 1,533,259
Other receivables Eit R 251,960,048 - 1,960,048 - 1837693 - 1,837,693
Amount due from a joint venture Eh-BAet$5E 19 2,393 - 2393 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit BBEHEALEHEL
or loss TRAE 2% - - - 132 - - 132
Cash and bank balances ReRBOER 27 1,841,219 - 1,841,219 - 2,136,962 - 2,136,962
5,644,323 239,432 5,883,755 132 5,998,750 288,306 6,287,688
Financial liabilities cHAR
Financial liabilities at amortized cost REBEREIREZ2@MAE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$000 HK$000
s FHT FET
Trade payables FETE 5 IR 32 8,238 1,801
Other payables and accruals L E ST FRIE R FEETRRIE 33 70,321 77,271
Bank borrowing IRITIEE 34 5,362 4,901
Convertible bonds AR ES 35 652,309 1,632,780
Obligations under finance leases RIERERE® 36 - 8,268
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< BA Bt 7 k18 45 426,252 1,259,967
Amount due to a joint venture BN —HaEhRK 19 66,552 46,195
1,229,034 3,031,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

204

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the
normal course of its business and financial instruments.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance as follows:

(i)  Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to foreign currency deposits with banks.
The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the trade and
other receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognized
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2017, if HKD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all
other variables held constant, loss for the year
would have been higher/lower by approximately
HK$9,107,000 (2016:HK$7,105,000) and equity
would have been approximately HK$42,129,000
(2016:HK$57,148,000) lower/higher due to
foreign exchange realignment arising from
translating investments in foreign operations
into HKD.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

43. MBEAREEREMIAZAAE

(a) HMBEBEZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)

(1)

(2)

3)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2016.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to cash at banks on a floating
rate basis. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets
resulted from changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly. Therefore, the
Directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its price risk arising from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the Group diversifies its portfolio. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

—tFt+t-A=t—-HLFE

MERAREERESMIAZAAE (F)

(a) MBEBREZE(E)
(i) TEmE(E)

(1)

(2)

3)
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B mERWE (&)

%%AA

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

—tFt+=-A=

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

206

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i1)

Market risk (continued)

(3)  Price risk (continued)
At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that an
increase/a decrease of 10% in the market value
of the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$Nil (2016:
HK$13,000).
management’s assessment of reasonably

The stated changes represent

possible changes in the market value of the
Group's investment portfolio over the period
until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2016.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and other financial
instruments. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible to compile the credit
and risk management policies, to approve credit limits
and determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount for each individual account
receivable at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate allowances for impairment are

made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is effectively controlled and significantly
reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as approximately
7% (2016: 8%) of the total trade and other
receivables were due from the five largest customers.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
Notes 23, 24 and 25 respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk on financial
liabilities. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

eV HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZ-Z

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

43. MBEAREERESMTIAZAAE (F)

(a) BIBEBRERE (&)

(i) EERERE(E)
FBEASERERESER RASE
EREMIZS ARTEHFEREAME
WHEMEEZEERBRZ#E—FE
EWE DRFHNWFE23 - 24%25 ¢

(iii) mBELEE
rEBRsRmAEmM@EYRDESR
B-RREFHRAR EBEEEAR
%Zﬁﬁﬂﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁAE%Z@
REREEEFUNENEHRR S
K EERBRAEREZE ?ﬁm*
FHRRBIHEBREIME-AEE
ZBEDERERERDESFKX
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

208

43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(BE)

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) M¥BEREZR (&)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) HEBELEE (&)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TERATTEBESRBERRERK
maturities at the end of the reporting period of ZEHTERNBINEBER  THAE K ARE
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based RReRE (BERGOMES (W0
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including BEE)RBHREAREAMMNEFTE
interest payments computed using contractual rates Z BT R A R A & [ A B SR
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of Rz xR HHAKE:
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flows demand 5 years
BHRER —FERH BBE-—F
REE ReRELE RER BXREHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
2017 —Z2—tF
Trade payables e E 5 R 8,238 8,238 8,238 -
Other payables and accruals H A FE {5 FRIE I FE 5 RRIE 70,321 70,321 70,321 -
Bank borrowing RITIEE 5,362 5,700 5,700 -
Convertible bonds AmRkES 652,309 652,309 652,309 -
Amounts due to related parties FE S BB 5 5R 1B 426,252 426,252 426,252 -
Amount due to a joint venture E—HEALLERE 66,552 66,552 66,552 -
1,229,034 1,229,372 1,229,372 -
2016 ZE—RF
Trade payables e E 5 BRR 1,801 1,801 1,801 -
Other payables and accruals H A FE {5 FRIE K JE 5t R00R 77,271 77,271 77,271 -
Bank borrowing RITHE 4,901 5,047 5,047 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 1,632,780 1,692,631 1,457,862 234,769
Obligations under finance leases MERERER 8,268 8,367 8,367 -
Amounts due to related parties e R R 5 k08 1,259,967 1,259,967 1,259,967 -
Amount due to a joint venture R —FEaeEtERE 46,195 46,195 46,195 -

3,031,183

3,091,279

2,856,510 234,769



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZ-Z

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present the fair value of the

Group's financial instruments measured at the end of

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined

in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level

into which a fair value measurement is classified

is determined with reference to the observability

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

43. MBEAREERESMTIAZAAE (F)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

%—;A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZE

B mERWE (&)

—tFt+=-A=

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued)

THLEFE

43. MBEAREERESMTIAZAAE (F)

(b) AREFEE)
() BARETEZEHEERERE
(%)

Fair value measurements
categorised into

AhBEHEZHE
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
®t+=A
=t-B2
ARE £-8 £-R E=R
HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
2017 —E—+fF
Recurring fair value measurements: LEERNARERE:
Financial assets at fair value through  BBEZEAAEFEZ
profit or loss: CRIEE
— Listed equity investment — ERAEKE - - - -
2016 —E—RF
Recurring fair value measurements: KEEARETE
Financial assets at fair value through  @iBI8351% /}/LME.:JFEZ
profit or loss: CRIEE
— Listed equity investment — ERAEKE 132 132 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and REE—_T— ti& T*/\iJr -
2016, there was no significant transfer between A=+—BLEFE BE-—HHEE_FK
investments in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or EJZTQ%SIEEKL’F& INEEE A S
out of Level 3. SRS E=REL -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement (continued) (b)

43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(BE)

DMREFE (B)
(i) BAABUIESRZZHEER

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments, including the
available-for-sale financial assets (Note 20), carried
at cost or amortized cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 except for the following financial instruments,
for which their carrying amount and fair value and
the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:

BEEZALHE

765 8] T2 7K B R R AN o 8 AR AR 5|
FreeRTA(BEAIHHESRE
&= (Ma20) ) 2 REEER -T—+

ER-_T—

ANFE+FZA=+—

HZR

ARETEEAZR HETIESBTA
Bo -SRI AZEEERAR

ERRAREEREEMNT

Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2017 categorised into
RZB—tHE+ZA=+-HZ

AREHEDE
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2017 31.12.2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB—tF RZB-+#F
+=A +=A
=+-8 =+-8
ZREE ZARE £-8 E-R E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAET
Convertible bonds Al R (& 5 652,309 658,961 - - 658,961
Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2016 categorised into
RZE-—RE+ZA=+—-HZ
RABHENR
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2016 31.12.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZE—RF RZE-RF
+=A +=A
=f—4 =t—H
ZIREE ZARE £-4 E-H £=4
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Convertible bonds Al R E H 1,632,780 1,595,413 - - 1,595,413

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair

value measurements

The fair value of the convertible bonds is estimated
as being the present values of future cash flows,
discounted at interest rates based on the government
yield curve as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 plus
an adequate constant credit spread, adjusted for the
Group's own credit risk.

FEZRARE BB NG ERMNE

BAE

MEEFZ ARERAR/RRRS
MEZRE DERNR_-_F-—tFR=
E-RFE+ A=+ -BRBNRE
TR EZMEYR ZNTEZ
BEFEEZE UYRAEEAT ZE

EREBELFE-
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44.

212

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light

of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which
includes bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases,
trade and other payables, amount due to a joint venture and
related parties and liability component of convertible bonds plus
unaccrued proposed dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity, other than amounts recognized in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2016, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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EXRERERE
FAEHERERAEEREBEDREAEEEN
HERBSBELEELELE KMEBERRK
FHHEZERRRBEBARNEGERALE
GTRE BEARFRAERRE REMIBTNHES
A2 -

AEBEETHRH RERERRE  URER
IR E R T G AR RS Bk T B
B A AR 5 2 47 T ARRE 2 RS T
A PR A RO A AR M I R

BITEEN B NREBEUNEBHEHREARL
REREBREARBZELE -BUTE £AEH
REBEBREBAR (BRERTER BEEE
B ENEZRRAREMENRE BN —H
EECERBEHBIFAUARTERESZER
BOMFERARZRR) KHBEEABEER
ZHABERD CFRReREBH PN ERNER
ZEEBRINBIERFTRERS -

FRAEEREA_ZT-RNFZRE SEHYH
RABREALEREFRAEKT - BRITHFR
ZLLE AEEAREHABERNTRRZES
BOBTHRG REBEATRE FIEELH
AR EEERE-
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44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

44.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2017 and

2016 were as follows:

EXEBRER (&)
RZE—+ER_ZF-—RF+A=+—-8HZ
BEHHERBEARLTNT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities: BB E -

Trade payables FETE 5 IR 8,238 1,801
Other payables and accruals 5T RRIE R FEETRIE 70,321 77,271
Bank borrowing IRITIEE 5,362 4,901
Current portion of convertible bonds AMRES 2 REHBH 652,309 1,431,040
Obligations under finance leases MEREER - 8,268
Amounts due to related parties JE < A Bt 75 3k I8 426,252 1,259,967
1,162,482 2,783,248

Non-current liabilities: HnBEE:
Amount due to a joint venture B —RHE& & EHIE 66,552 46,195
Convertible bonds, the liability component AMRESF —BEED - 201,740
Total debts BBER 1,229,034 3,031,183
Adjusted capital KRABRER 4,942,084 5,511,177
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FRAEHEAR L % 25% 55%

The Group is not subject to either internally or externally

imposed capital requirements.

AEBHAXEINIBRAETERNELAER
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214

45. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED 45. AR B RER
PARTIES
(a) Details of the Group's significant transactions and balances (a) AEBERFABENTHABFTETEAR
with the following related parties during the year are as S RER FEOT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Shareholder: e
Balance due from the Group JE s 7N &2 [ 45 R 412,777 280,000
Interest on a shareholder loan IR R E TS 4,562 1,020
Redemption of convertible bonds & TR B 5 133,583 64,353
Convertible bonds interest paid BERATRRES TS 4,665 11,864
Consent fee paid for delaying HIERERRREFENZAEE
redemption of convertible bonds 131 4,359
Companies connected with a director: LRS- & ¥L ) /NI
Balances due from the Group JE s 7N &2 [ 45 R 13,475 357,867
Balance due to the Group FE A 2N & [ 45 4 350,000 -
Deposits received on disposal of HERLEE 2 EMZS
Sinodata Group - 622,100
Consideration on disposal of HEREER ZRE
Sinodata Group 2,150,000 -
Processing fees mIT# 960 -
Sales & 18 -

(b)

(9

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group's ordinary course of business or
at terms agreed by both parties. Except the shareholder’s
loan in amount of approximately HK$133,583,000 is
unsecured, bearing an interest equals to the coupon rate
of the 2019 Bonds at 4.5% per annum and repayable
before 29 March 2018, all remaining balances are
unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.

EFT(REBYENTES)RA LI
STRAEBBEEKBERLIZE T H
TEZIEFETT ° 2 49133,583,000/8 7T 2 A%
RERAERE ZEEN_T-NFESH
ZEEEBFA4SEZMEAHERARZZT-N
FZAZThBRIEEIN BT HEHBDI
AEER SERAR—FRNEE-

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Chan had given personal b) RZZE—RNEFE+_A=+—"H BREEE
guarantee in respect of bank borrowings of the Sinodata MBLEE 2 R1T7EE81,900,000% TR
Group of HK$81,900,000 (Note 14). HEAER (HFE14) -

During both years, compensation of key management (0 PMEFERN TEZEBABHEEMTE
personnel represents Directors’ emoluments and those of ORI ZESFRSREIMNE -EF
senior staff as stated in Notes 10 and 11. The Directors’ MemFMEESLRBREARE BER
emoluments are determined by the remuneration KBIARTMSBAERE-

committee having regard to the performance,

responsibilities and experience of individuals and market

trends.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been

WREEXE

adopted in these consolidated financial statements:

46. EEAEMRERZERT HEARRZRE
2

BEAGAMBHEATIRAY FESFMHAE
EREHAUATITRBE-ZE—+tF+-A=+—8
IEFERRERB L RN AL S BB REK AR
Mzies] HERRRE:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RIS BBz &BEBZ
EhtIEER

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB G RELER 2BF]

Amendments to HKFRSs
BV BREER Z(EF]

Amendments to HKAS 28 (2011)

EEEERE28 (T ——F) 27

Amendments to HKAS 40
BB ERIFEL095 2 18F]

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BEYBREEAE2R 2 EET

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BB B REERNEAR ZEFT

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
R MEEA 2 FEUCE
(ZE—WMEZE_ZT-"FBH)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
ERMBHREEYN ZFEUE
(ZE2E-DFE_ZT—tFEH)

Long-term interests in an associate or joint venture
REERAREEPEZ RS

Transfers of investment property

EEREEME

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions
RO XN R B2 E R B

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with
HKFRS 4 insurance contracts

HEBMBREENEIRE [RRAL]
JERERMBREERESR 2RI A]

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+F4F

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—-A—H

1 January 2019
—F-NF—A—H

1 January 2019
—E-NAF—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—ZE-N\E—-—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-\%—A—H
1 January 2018

—E2—-—N\F¥—HA—H
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 46. EEMEMRERZET HEIRZE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT TMEEEZTE (E)

216

YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

KT RPN Z2EBHRZ

S HBER

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation 1 January 2019
BBV BHmEERNEISR 2 EF] BERAwE s REFIERT —E-NF—-A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011)

ERVBRSERE105 K
BB ERNE28H (ZF——F)
ZAEFT

Amendments to HKFRS 15
BBV BREERIE 155 21ER]

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Tt (ERVBRERBEERSY)

— BB
HKFRS 9

FRY SIS EAFEWR

HKFRS 15
BAMBHEEE155

HKFRS 16
BEMGRE LA 16%

HKFRS 17
BAMBHEEUNE17H

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

B (ERVBREREZES)
—BEE235%

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

Sales or contribution of assets between an investor No mandatory effective date

and its associate or joint venture yet determined
REFEERABLENAINELERERZ i 7R 7E 58 Il A 2 H HA

BEHEHRA
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
BEEEBMBmELELE155 —E-N\F—-A—H
Foreign currency transactions and 1 January 2018

advance consideration
SNEER B R TN TEWR(E —E-N\F—-HA—H
Financial instruments 1 January 2018
TRIE —ZE-N\E—-—A—H
Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BEFEA&LHBA AN R &|
Leases 1 January 2019
HE —ZT-hE—-—A—H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
RE 4 T —%—-A—H
Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
PRSI EE 18 2 1N E A 3= —ZT-hFE—-—A—H
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below. Of those
standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the
Group's financial year ending 31 December 2018 and are
expected to have impact upon adoption. Whilst management
has performed a detailed assessment of the estimated impacts
of these standards, that assessment is based on the information
currently available to the Group, including expectations of the
application of transitional provision options and policy choices.
The actual impacts in adoption could be different to those
below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time of
applying the standards and the transitional provisions and policy
options finally adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employees’ tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled
to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employees’ tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction
is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the
date of the modification. On adoption, entities are required
to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if they elect to adopt for
all three amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

46.

CEMERERZIER]  FHEARRE
TMHEEZHE (B)

EHERARASBEZ BB BRELA 28—
FEMBANT - ZEEA R BEMBREE
AIFEOR R B EM B MEEF 1SRN ALEE
BHE_Z-NE+_A=T—HILUWBFEE
B-IERRaREeELETE - BEEEED
AR EEZBATE R EE
RAKBEBRRMARZER (BERAEAZER
BXRBE)EL - FRNEZEBRZ BT EE R
WXtz 8 BT AEENERZS LR
RAEIREZABREEER  UREKER
ZBEAR R R

BB BREERNF2 ST
ERGHMRAER _T-—RFNARMZEE
MBREENE2RETRE=ETERE B
BEGHAEARSCEEUNRN XNRIERS
2B REERITENUKRN X NRIEHEREZ
BBEEMBEHE T2E2ZARNIARER
5 (B FEGETE) 2R ARYEREER
AR AN XA FRIAR B 2 R R G MR E D
BhR e EE AR RBE S BEN -
ZEEIERAEAEEAEE UK X NRIA
B ARESEBGEEARZTETERNUES
EE AR XA - ZFERT 5 A—ERISME
NoBEEREETHREZELT  REERRETT
MEEEMEHNE TSR Z AR X HHIER
Z (MEFRRBERSE)BERADERUERSE
BUBRMDXNFRIAR S o ZBERTES
AR S EEUARMN XN RIARX S 2GR M
HEMER]  BHERBAEREE ARG R
RIAR 5 AR5 BEET B MR ARY &A%
BREEZRG  — KRN BERNERZFER
FEFEIATHE ERNEREERAZE=
HERT LA & EMmAERE - A& EEHER - A
SEBE T NF-A-HERKZSFET-
EHZEET TG RSB MG MRELER
BEAFE-
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group will not restate comparative information
and will recognize any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment of the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts
relate to classification and measurement and the impairment

requirements and are summarized as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held
at fair value. Equity investments currently held as available
for sale will be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the investments are intended to
be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects
to apply the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot
be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognized.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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CEMERERZIER]  FHEARRE
TRELEZEE (H)

ERVRBREEASFReMIA]
RZZ—NFENA BESHMASEMEEH
BREENFIRZHERRA &M T AER
ZEHBRBESARKREBSFERIE395% &
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments

recorded at amortized cost or at fair value through

other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under
HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis.
The Group will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the
present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining
life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group
will apply the general approach and record twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other receivables within
the next twelve months. The Group has expected that
the provision for impairment will increase upon the initial

adoption of the standard.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognized in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

eV HBBERME (&)

—tFt+t-A=t—HLFE

46. EEAEMRERZERT HEARRZRE
TRELEZEE (H)

ERMBREENFERIERMIA] (&)

(b) HfE
BRBRELERNFEIRA T - REHKE
FEBEMEEWER AR ELKZER
THE -EBYEHEFNE EFRENMREEE
MBREENESRLIFBBESEAANE
ARZBBRFRAOZRE BA+ (@
A AFRAERRARAEEBHERE
AR - AEEBRAHETE BIREER
FREESERRNGFRAMEBEEEHE
REMZ A AFREHEBELRE - o
AEBBRB—RITE BRERRT =
18R A HEAMERRIRTRE R E 2 BN E
stz T —EAEREEBERLR - &
SEEM RERRAZERNR  RERE

i 4 0 <

ERUBEREENFI0RRE B ERFE285
(ZB——F) 2184

EATBRELENFI10HR LB B S ERIE28
W ZE——F) 2B HEEBH B RS EA
%10%&§5ﬁﬁ§+5ﬁau“zs%ﬁ(:%——i) A
REREFHEBENANEGECENMZEE
WERBAFAZAN—BHRTE - ZZEBTHRE
EREEHEBRENRRNEGEACERNZEAEN
BEHIRABK —TBEBE  AER 2B
B-BESREEZRGTHEE—BER  AlZEA
RGEEZREKNEBERIEEE ZBENER

HEATHBEREERZBERARARNAERLHE
ZERRR ZEEITBERAKREREER &

ERAMASER - RF—ABUEER A
RIZEREMBHREERNF10E LB B G ER
F28W (T ——F) 2RI 2RBIERAH
MEREI LN B RENEBERRRGELE

EHREEKEREZRIREE A ZF
CHERRIE: S8
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

220

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and
related amendments

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognizing revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial application of the standard.
In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licenses of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognize
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only
to contracts that are not completed before 1 January 2018. The
Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on
1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies,
as further explained below, will have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 15.

The Group's principal activities is principally engaged in lottery
business comprising development and production of lottery
machines, related operating software system and networks
for lottery industry, the distribution and marketing of lottery
products and development of paperless electronic lottery
platform for lottery business in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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CEMERERZIER]  FHEARRE
TMHEEZHE (B)

ERUBBREENESRIEFEARAIR
HEER]
RZB-—MELARTZEEUBRELLE
1SSEHES T —IEEM 2 ABRTSRE - BIARE
KEEPEHZWA -REFBHMBREENSE
1558 WARZSRRMRERBENKE SR
BEERTEPMAERBRZRE EEYBRE
EREISEZRANERT EFHREZTEFE
R HERWN - RTINS AEZ 2 IR E 83
BRE BEIFUALE EHBENEEZE
BT RBEZANEERABREEHREHNU
Ko ZH R R A F o ZERIBER B BT A R IR
FERPBREENRRBRAZERE - BRERZ
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and
related amendments (continued)

The Group does not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 will have
a significant impact on the Group's financial performance and
financial position. However, the presentation and disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those
under the current HKAS 18. The presentation requirements
represent a significant change from current practice and
will significantly increase the volume of disclosures required
in the Group’s financial statements. Many of the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed
that the impact of some of these disclosure requirements will
be significant. In particular, the Group expects that the notes
to the financial statements will be expanded because of the
disclosure of significant judgements made on determining
the transaction prices of those contracts that include variable
consideration, how the transaction prices have been allocated
to the performance obligations, and the assumptions made
to estimate the stand-alone selling price of each performance
obligation. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group will
disaggregate revenue recognized from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors. It will also disclose information about the relationship
between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment.

46.

CEMERERZIER]  FHEARRE
TMHEEZHE (B)

ERUBBREENESRIEFEARAIR
HBEET (4)
AEERPRNEBUBRESENE SRS
HAKEZMHRERTBIRRNBRERTZE -
AW BEMBHRELENEISK 22 RWER
ERBRITEREGHERNE1EMREE LR
W-ZELINRERREGHERE TR LR
EEMAEERBERRATBIELHZBEAR -
BERMBRELUE ISR ZHRERETH
RIE MAKEEHEEREOWEREREE
EERFE -FHT ARNFERBEEETZSEA
WRXGER(BREAZKE)KAFELZERY
i X ZERNAIRENEEDEARBEHE
HEABEZBLEEM R ZERER AEETE
B BMR TS ER - N RIEFEUTH
BEEMBISHR AT AKETHRELAL
FREER 2 RADH B Z @R - AR A KR
EREZUHE 28 BHEIHEEERRNMNZ
RERZZE -AEETSERESFRARE N
BEMEDHABRBRABR ZEBERNER -

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+F4F

221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

46.

222

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC) — Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK (SIC) - Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of lease,
a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on
the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in
Note 40(b) to the financial statements, at 31 December 2017,
the Group had future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$111,173,000. Upon adoption of HKAS 16, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognized as new right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new rights of use assets
and lease liabilities to be recognized, including, but not limited
to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and

new leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when
an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment property.
The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a property
does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments
should be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity should
reassess the classification of property held at the date that it first
applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property
to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective
application is only permitted if it is possible without the use
of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

47. RMIBRABEIZERE

TREJNEHARE XS BEXRBEREXN
FEZHMBARFE-

Group.
Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRT/EMREK
=L SER AR SR R i B TEEBREXBE BRERE ERFE g Es
REXCAPITAL Financial Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 ordinary shares 100%
Limited HNBRIHS in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETREZR 197,400,856 & X E (B 18 7T
ZERmR
REXCAPITAL Financial British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
Management Limited RBRLES in Hong Kong IREBEIETZ L BR
REBETRERER
Genius Nation Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
KBRELES in Hong Kong IREEIETZERBR
REBETREER
Huge Top Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
KBRLES in Hong Kong IREEIETZERBR
REBETRERER
Wai Tian Limited British Virgin Islands Provision of system 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
SNKRBER A KBETHE software in the PRC 1REEIET 2 EBR
R B R R e i
Oriental View Limited Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EBHRAA B in Hong Kong 12 LBk
REBETREER
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of Ordinary shares of HK$2 100%
Management Limited o administration services 27Tz LBk

WHECEERARRA

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

47. ARBRARZRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /HEMREK
=L SEM B i R i B TEEBREEBY BRARERE ERFE s ER gL
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited Hong Kong Money lending and Ordinary shares of 100%
HREEERAT e investment trading HK$2,000,000
in Hong Kong 2,000,000/8 7T 2 % i@ X
REBETERK
REEE
FINAEHRPRIZE PRC Investment holding HK$153,885,941 100%
BRAR H in the PRC 153,885,941 7T
(Shenzhen Qianhai RexLot RAPBETREER
Investment Co. Ltd.*)
RYIT BB AR Bl PRC Provision of paperless RMB30,000,000 100%
BEREERAF H systems and services AR #30,000,0007TC
(Shenzhen Sinocyber to industrial specific
Technology Co. Ltd.*) channels
RiETEXRERME
AR5 R IR
RINT & NE PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 100%
BRAA i machines in the PRC AR #55,000,0007C
(Shenzhen Kingsail Software KRB EER E#
Tech Co. Ltd.*)
RINTEERFERE PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
ARRA i in the PRC A #30,000,0007T
(REXLot Investment RPBETRERER
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*)
IRELREREERAT  PRC Provision of lottery RMB44,000,000 100%
(Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery e printing service AR #44,000,0007T
Technology Co. Ltd.*) in the PRC
PR B R R R ED R AR 75
BMTEEHREHLERAR PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 90%
(Guangzhou Latech H machines in the PRC AR #55,000,0007T
Technology Co. Ltd.*) KPR EEYRE
b R EEAN 7 = 8 R PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 1,280,000 60%
BRAA H marketing business AR #1,280,0007T

(Beijing Lohowin Marketing
Co. Ltd.*)

in the PRC
RABETR ER AR
L EY
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

47. ARRBRATZRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /HEMREK
=L SEM B i R i B TEEBREEBY BRARERE ERFE s ER gL
FERIE R 8Bl PRC Provision of marketing RMB10,000,000 80%
BRAT H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007T
business in the PRC
RPBERRYEEB 2
3% R
RIS R BR A A PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 10,000,000 100%
H marketing business AR #10,000,0007C
in the PRC
RAPBEETY R KR
REES
IREEEHMBAERADA  PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
H in the PRC AR#100,0007C
R BEETRERR
TR (ALR) B PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB30,000,000 50%*
BRAF H added services for AR #30,000,0007T
(Elottery Vision (Beijing) lottery business
Technology Co. Ltd.*) in the PRC
R B Y REBRE
FHRIZERS
BEEBYBNEERLA  PRC Provision of mobile value-  RMB10,000,000 50%*
H added services for AR #10,000,0007C
lottery business
in the PRC
RAPBEREEEBRE
FHIEERE
ERRABEREARAR  PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB1,010,000 50%7
i added services for AR#1,010,00070
lottery business
in the PRC
RAPBEREEEBKRE
FHIEERS
BEZR (ER)BBERR PRC Investment holding RMB50,000,000 66.6%
ARRA i REERK AR #50,000,0007C
RYINTREEHER DA PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
i E REER AR #100,0007C

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. RIBLARIZRE (&)

# These investee companies are regarded as subsidiaries of the # BERNEBEEARSIEIRENTZS0%HEAE
Group, although the Group has only 50% ownership in these B HEZEEIRECAIEEATEEZHMBR
investee companies. The Directors concluded that the Group has a AleBE2HERA BRAKBERAZSTERIRE
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities RABFERER WAEEERERHETERE
of these investee companies as the Group holds more than half the BaERZEEIREAR ZABEE-

voting rights in these investees.

The Directors are of the opinion that none of the Group's EERA HAFERERCASEWNE R AH
subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests are material to the GEVBRERERBUAEAN Bt WERES
consolidated financial statements as a whole and therefore, the BB REENENR [ HEREM TR 2 #
financial information in respect of those subsidiaries that have w2V EEEAERER B RR 2T
non-controlling interests are not presented under HKFRS 12, Ao

Disclosure of interests in other entities.
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48. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. ARIEBEZHMBRRE
POSITION
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
NOZ‘E:S HK$000 HK$'000
b at FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N ENGIPA - F 5,784,137 7,698,910
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments TERFRIE - 2,959
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEEH 26 1,075
Total current assets REBEEHAE 26 4,034
Total assets EE#AE 5,784,163 7,702,944
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable EAREERREEELRERE
to equity shareholders of
the Company
Share capital & 7 29 100,285 100,285
Reserves i 48(a) 4,588,712 4,691,953
Total equity RSB 4,688,997 4,792,238
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Convertible bonds AR E S - 201,740
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H M FE S FRIE R FEET B 30,080 17,959
Amounts due to related parties FE S BA B 5 FROR - 1,259,967
Amounts due to a shareholder R — BB R IE 412,777 -
Current portion of convertible bonds ARKRESZREBHT D 652,309 1,431,040
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 1,095,166 2,708,966
Total liabilities aEH8HE 1,095,166 2,910,706
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 5,784,163 7,702,944
Net current liabilities REBAEETFEHE (1,095,140) (2,704,932)

228

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board on 29 March 2018 and are signed on behalf of the

Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

()
Director

BF
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BBHRERER_ZE-NF=ZA-_+LBEEZS
ERERBRETE ITHTINEETERERE:

Boo Chun Lon
IR i 5E
Director
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48. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

48. RRBEZMBMRRE (H)
M) ARz HER

Capital ~ Convertible  Share-based

Share  redemption bonds payment  Contributed Retained
Premium reserve reserve reserve surplus profits Total
-2 TRE  ARGXH
R EE RE#E BHEE  WEZRE AR REER At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R=%F 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6,329 199,605 559,846 5,176,022
Loss for the year FREBE - - - - (498,309) (498,309)
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - (6,329) - 6,329 -
Exercise of share option fiF B 5,733 - - (1,314) - - 4,419
Share option granted BRIz ERE - - 10,367 - - 10,367
Redemption of convertible bonds WO ATRRES (M335)
(Note 35) - (89,030) - - 88,484 (546)
At 31 December 2016 and i ANETZA=T-8BR
1 January 2017 —t&—-A—-H 4,018,663 3,025 305,257 9,053 199,605 156,350 4,691,953
Loss for the year FEBA - - - - (103,241) (103,241)
Redemption of convertible bonds BEATRRES (M:35)
(Note 35) - - (184,808) - - 184,808 -
At 31 December 2017 KZF—+tF+=-A=t-H 4,018,663 3,025 120,449 9,053 199,605 237,917 4,588,712

49. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Rights Issue

On 19 November 2017, the Company announced that
proposed to raise not less than HK$255,726,631 but not
more than HK$276,741,792 before expense by way of
a rights issue, on the basis of 1 rights share (the “Rights
Share”) for every 2 existing shares held on the record
date at the subscription price of HK$0.051 per Rights
Share payable in full on acceptance by the qualifying
shareholders of the Company (the “Rights Issue”). As a
result of the completion of Rights Issue on 20 March 2018,
the number of issued shares of the Company increased
from 10,028,495,338 shares to 15,042,743,007 shares.
Details of Rights Issue are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 19 November 2017, 6 December
2017, 29 January 2018 and 19 March 2018 and the
Company’s prospectus dated 23 February 2018.

49. BEMREFHBER

(a) #

=]

E—+tF+—A+NAB KREEM
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THETHBR (EEANZHABRERFAE2
RIR AR D REREG  EE TR
255,726,631 B TN %18276,741,792/%8
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MR 2N (THAR]) - BRAMHRR
ER-ZE-N\F=ZA-t+HEK AR
AIE TR BB 2 810,028,495,338/%
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49. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

230

(b)

CB Subscription

The Company and Keen Start Limited (“Keen Start”),
a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, entered into a conditional
subscription agreement dated 17 November 2017 (as
March
2018) (the "CB Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to

supplemented on 14 February 2018 and 21

which, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue to Keen Start, and Keen Start has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate principal amount
HK$167,500,000 3.0% convertible bonds due 2023 (the
“New CB") at the initial conversion price of HK$0.067
“CB Subscription”). The New CB will, at
the option of the holder, be convertible (unless previously

per share (the

redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) from the
40th calendar day after the issue date of the New CB up
to the close of business on the 10th calendar day prior to
the date of maturity on 2023 into fully paid ordinary shares
of the Company with a par value of HK$0.01 each at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.067 per share, subject to
adjustments in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the CB Subscription Agreement as a result of dilutive
events.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the CB Subscription has not yet been completed. Details
of the CB Subscription are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 19 November 2017, 29 January
2018 and 21 March 2018 and the Company's prospectus
dated 23 February 2018.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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49. MEMRRIFAESR (H)

(b)
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49. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

*

(0

Increase in Authorized Share Capital

In order to allow sufficient authorized share capital after
completion of the proposed fund raising plans which
included the Rights Issue and the CB Subscription as stated
above, the Board has proposed and will seek approval
from the shareholders to increase the authorized share
capital of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares to HK$500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000,000 shares, by the creation of an additional
30,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each which shall rank
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects upon
allotment and issue.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the increase in authorized share capital has not yet been
completed. Details of the increase in authorized share
capital are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 19 November 2017 and 21 March 2018 and the
Company'’s prospectus dated 23 February 2018.

The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information

purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English

translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFFUBRE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2017,
which have been prepared on the basis set out in Notes 2 and 3 to

the consolidated financial statements.

NTRAAEEBE—T—+tF+_A=+—BLARE
FEZHEAXH BENAERZ EDRREEH
BRI T2 NI 2 TR -

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t§ —ZE-Xf —ZT—-hF —T-NF ZT—=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Fi&ET FET FET FET
Revenue LON 402,305 1,252,144 1,554,394 1,687,953 2,165,474
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E518) % 7 (520,355) (416,091) 205,358 (141,541) 1,000,939
Taxation THIB (210,448) (29,898) (41,124) (30,559) (74,489)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE) &7 (730,803) (445,989) 164,234 (172,100) 926,450
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 26,538 52,982 (13,355) 68,408 (57,468)
Equity shareholders of the Company ZA2 Bl # & % & (704,265) (393,007) 150,879 (103,692) 868,982
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-8
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t§ —ZEZ-X% ZZE-hF ZT—NF ZT—=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET FET
Total assets BERE 6,337,425 9,111,799 8,730,468 8,566,521 7,596,344
Total liabilities BELE (1,395,341)  (3,600,622)  (2,645,065)  (2,426,415)  (1,373,672)
Total equity B

232 REXLot Holdings Limited #Zee #A%R B 2 7]

4,942,084

5,511,177 6,085,403 6,140,106 6,222,672
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